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Financial Summary
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2013 Performance Highlights
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Financial Summary

IAB R

The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, results and other financial information of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) as of year ended 31 March

for the last five years.

O B R A R A (AN w]]) RHME A 7 (i (ALl ) REBAE R FARE=A =1L FEZHE

FE MR -~ SREUCH A B R

2012 2011 2010 2009
Financials (HK$ million) WBIEH (BRI CE-THE B CE-RE CETPE
Total assets BEE 10,592 8,595 7,313 8,121
Total liabilities BAR 5,274 3,716 3,088 4,460
Total equity AL 5318 4,879 4,225 3,661
Non-controlling interests FEERHE 7 324 399 377 381
Shareholders’ funds RFEE 4,994 4,480 3,848 3,280
Share capital JRA
~ in number (million) — ¥ (AER) 278 278 278 278
— in value (HK$1.25 per share) — Bl (KR 257) 347 347 347 347
Revenue A 3,850 3,491 3,934 5,196
Profit attributable to equity holders — #/ al BRHEFFA A
of the Company A 658 798 417 123
Per Share Basis (HK$) Rt S ()
Farnings - basic R —HEA 2.37 2.87 1.50 0.44
Dividends 1195} 0.95 1.15 0.70 0.455
Net assets value G E
— excluding non-controlling interests  — A JF ¥ e 46 18.0 16.1 13.8 11.8
2013 2012
- St 2 B S =
HK$ million HK$ million
L SR Pl HEE T T
Segment Revenue* Vig N
Construction and engineering A A AR 3,872 3,553
Insurance and investment PRB KA E 211 265
Property LYES 831 616
Food and beverage B 756 691
Computer and information communication B NS B R R R
technology and others T HA 1,421 1,268
Total kil 7,091 6,393
Segment Performance®* g JHA Bl
Construction and engineering A T AR 302 253
Insurance and investment PRB KB 96 (5)
Property LES 919 409
Food and beverage BAR (11) 160
Computer and information communication CHE Y E-EViE R
technology and others pai (39) (2)
Total ik ] 1,267 815
# Included share of revenue/results of associates and jointly controlled entities
FLAE BT AL B T B SRR A S 2 A A
*  Represented segment results and gains on disposal of subsidiaries and an associate
PRI B W Jag 2 7] B — M) Mg 2 ) 2 i 4
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Final Results
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Annual General Meeting

Payment of Dividends

Interim dividend of
HK$0.20 per share
(with scrip option)

Final dividend of
HK$0.65 per share
(with scrip option)
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27 June 2013
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5 February 2013
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Chairman’s Statement
Ei % 4

=

TR

During a year of global political and policy changes, the global
economic recovery persisted unevenly through 2012 as many
developed countries worked through a long-term debt reduction
cycle that, in turn, influenced the economic fortunes of emerging
markets. In the first half of 2012, the financial world focused closely
on the need for capital by European banks as well as a fear for a
“hard landing” in Mainland China’s economy. In 2012’s second
half, investors’ concerns continued to focus on the uncertainty
around the Eurozone, but they also expanded to include elections
in the US and the country’s looming “fiscal cliff” of scheduled tax
increases and spending cuts. Towards the end of the year, all the
worldwide financial markets have improved markedly, as a result
of the US and EU wide measures to improve fiscal sustainability.
While signals from financial markets are encouraging, real-side of
the global economy is more mixed. Global economic environment
remains fragile and growth is expected to be modest as the sentiment
in the market continues to be volatile.

Property tightening measures announced by State Council of the
People’s Republic of China, weaker data for consumption and
industrial activities and weaker-than-expected 1Q 2013 GDP have
led to a dramatic resetting of investor expectations for Mainland
China’s cyclical outlook. Income disparity, reduced competitiveness
in its exports and inadequate domestic consumption to boost
economic growth are hidden concerns behind Mainland China’s
rapid economic growth.

Due to unfavourable external environment in 2012, the overall
Hong Kong economy saw sub-trend growth throughout the year.
GDP growth for 2012 recorded only 1.4%, down from 4.9% in
2011 and much lower than the average of 4.5% over the past 10
years. Due to high employment and improved income, private
consumption grew by 4% in real terms for the year. Although
the intricate external environment will remain unstable in 2013,
fundamentals in Asia remain strong. It is expected that a modest
improvement in Hong Kong economy and forecast GDP growth of
1.5% to 3.5%.

i T AR > A BRI AR AR R K
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TG I 9 AS B B TR R A J% 5 8 R 788 A S el
) S8 BE AR  Bek B SR TR IR ]
FE o JRAFEJE > R 5 R IR S 0 R A
T > FRAE T B BB > & BRI R
B 0 o AT B Al T 35 1 R B N
P HERETHN T E IR IGFIERE -
BRRECPEREAIRIE S - o T 8 B SR A
WEAE > FAR N SRRy R -

H e N T 80 B 5 (e 2 A ) 5 0 7 R 1 i
RS EEHURER- ¢ 6/ I ST IRV e o
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FR 22 W OB = TR
A4 4R 14 T B A M AR R Y R R R
o

SR T TAERFI MR ERSE > ARR
AR TR I R 7 IR 4 AR R AR AR ) H B o R
T TAHEAMEERAENERA1.4% > &
i F A 4.9% - 3l R 8 %+
AP AR AR AR IR 4.5% o R
DR T & LR > F B AAE L 51
4% EE IR o fE R T F - ZFEEMEN
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8RR Sh > FUHIAER i AP Er IOl = > 8
A A 2 MBI R AP 1.5% 23.5% ©
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Despite the constantly changing market sentiments and the volatility
that has been the common theme overshadowing the investment
environment, the Group has achieved a record high profit mainly
due to the fair value gain from its investment properties this
year. Given the fair value gain is not recurring and may not be
sustainable, the value of the investment properties may change in
future subject to market changes. With the continuous expansion
of Macau hotel and casino resort projects and the HKSAR
Government’s investment in infrastructure development projects,
it is anticipated that the construction and engineering services
segment of the Group will have healthy increase in revenue and
bottom line. However, shortage of skillful labour and professional
engineers in Hong Kong remain a challenge for the industry.

Although an upward trend was recorded in the second half of the
year from the global investment markets, the recovery of the US
remains slow and China’s economy is subdued. Both the insurance
and investment teams will maintain a prudent and conservative
approach to its financial investments in the coming year.

The implementation of property market austerity measures by
Mainland China Government to curb property price inflation and
restrict speculation on real estate continued to adversely impact
market sentiment throughout 2012. Although it ensures the long-
term supply-demand balance and the healthy and stable development
of the property market, short term challenges to the Group are
unavoidable. Equipped with refined community environment and
comprehensive facilities, the Group’s property project located at
Shuangliu County, Chengdu and Chevalier City at Luyuan District,
Changchun will be launched to the market this year.

After the investment in US senior housing in 2011, the Group
completed further investment in 18 senior housing properties in
December 2012. To strengthen our investment portfolio, subsequent
to the year end, the Group has acquired another senior housing
property located at North Carolina, US from an independent third
party. The Group is optimistic about the senior housing business
and will continue to look for and invest in suitable projects so as to
strengthen our existing portfolio.

Subsequent to the year end, the Group has made investment in
the Moraitis Group, one of the leading fruit and vegetable supplier
aggregators and suppliers of fresh produce in Australia. The Group
aims to increase market share and utilise this business as a platform
to provide investment, farm management and distribution services
to investors looking for agricultural investment opportunities in
Australia. Meanwhile, the Group is exploring further opportunities
for export of fresh produce to China. Capitalizing on the know-how
and expertise of the Moraitis Group in farm management to retail
supply chain solutions, the Group is looking for opportunities to
expand into China’s fresh produce industry in the medium to long
term.

Looking forward, the Group will capitalise on our strength and
continue to drive profitable growth in our known segments in both
Hong Kong and overseas so as to position the Group for growth and
profitability in the challenging business environment.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to our shareholders, business partners for their
continued support. | would also like to thank all the staff of the
Group for their loyalty, dedication and continuing hard work.

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B i e g e

The Group’s consolidated revenue increased by 8.8%, from
HK$3,850 million in 2011/12 to HK$4,189 million for the year
ended 31 March 2013. Major contributors of such growth included
increase in the revenue of the Group’s business in construction
and engineering segment and property segment. After taking up the
share of revenue of associates and jointly controlled entities, the
total segment revenue was HK$7,091 million for the year ended 31
March 2013, an 10.9% increase over last financial year.

Financial results of the Group reached a record high in this financial
year. Stabilisation of the economic conditions in Hong Kong
and investment markets worldwide led to a significant increase
in the profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 as
compared to the profit in last financial year. The Group’s profit
for the year boosted 53.8% from HK$704 million in 2011/12 to
HK$1,083 million in 2012/13 despite the fact that there were gains
on disposals of a subsidiary and an associate of HK$180 million
recognised in 2011/12. Segment profit also rose from HK$636
million in 2011/12 to HK$1,267 million in 2012/13. The increase
in the Group’s profit for the year was mainly attributable to (i) the
increase in fair value of investment properties amounted to HK$670
million (2012: HK$256 million); (ii) the fair value gain on securities
and financial derivatives investments of HK$57.8 million (2012:
HK$14.5 million) in addition to a remarkable growth in profit from
operations. Profit attributable to equity holders for the year ended
31 March 2013 reached HK$1,012 million (2012: HK$658 million),
leading to an earnings per share of HK$3.64 (2012: HK$2.37).

Dividend

The Board of Directors recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.65 (2012: final dividend of HK$0.35 and special dividend of
HK$0.40) per share payable to shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Members of the Company on Thursday, 19 September
2013. Subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 6
September 2013 (the “AGM”), the dividend warrants will be distributed
and paid on or about Tuesday, 12 November 2013. Together with the
interim dividend of HK$0.20 (2012: HK$0.20) per share paid on 5
February 2013, the total dividends for the year amounted to HK$0.85
(2012: HK$0.95) per share.
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Construction and Engineering

The construction and engineering segment’s revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2013 recorded an increase of 9.0% to HK$3,872
million (2012: HK$3,553 million), mainly due to the increase in
revenue contribution from aluminium windows and curtain walls,
electrical and mechanical engineering and building materials
supplies projects in Hong Kong and Macau, and from lifts and
escalators associates in China; offsetting the loss of revenue
contribution from an associate in pipe technology disposed on
27 March 2012. Given the improvement in revenue, profit of this
segment also increased by 44.5% from HK$209 million in 2011/12
to HK$302 million in 2012/13. Nevertheless, the Group continued
to face keen operating environment in construction and engineering
works in view of current shortage of competent professionals and
skilled labours and staff at managerial and supervisory levels.
In response to rising materials and labour costs driven by the
tremendous market demands, the Group has carried out strategic
measures like increasing usage of prefabrication and developing
construction initiatives in design and technology for higher
productivity. The Group would continue implementing measures to
control costs and enhance operation efficiency. The contribution
of the lifts and escalators business covering China, Hong Kong,
Singapore and Macau in which the Group has 49% equity interest
maintained stable during the financial year. The contribution from
the lifts and escalators manufacturing plants located in Shanghai
and Shenyang in which the Group has 20% equity interest was also
encouraging. The Chief Executive of the HKSAR has stated in 2013
Policy Address that the Government will expedite public housing
development and infrastructure projects in Hong Kong. Based on the
proven track record and dedicated teams of building construction,
lifts and escalators; as well as electrical and mechanical engineering
and other related services, the Group is well positioned to
participate further in those projects.

As at 31 March 2013, the total value of the outstanding construction
and engineering contracts in hands of the Group’s subsidiaries
amounted to HK$1,918 million. Major contracts are:

1. Construction of alteration and addition works at Sha Tin
Racecourse;

2. Construction of the Superstructure Works for the Proposed
Composite Building at No. 140-146 Camp Street, Sham Shui Po;

3. Construction of composite development at junction of Plover
Cove Road and Po Wu Lane, Taipo;

4. Electrical and mechanical works for Expansion of Tai Po Water
Treatment Works Stream Il and piping works at CLP Black Point
Gas Supply project;

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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5. Electrical and mechanical works for Galaxy Phase 2, Macau;

6. Supply and Installation of MVAC in Kellett School New Campus
and electrical and mechanical works for CLP Shamshuipo Data
Centre Stage | Enhancement;

7. Supply of prestige ‘Manhattan’ kitchen cabinets for luxurious
residential in Hing Hon Road, Mid-level West and Lee Tung
Street, Wanchai;

8. Design, supply and installation of curtain walls of three
educational institutions, including Hang Seng Management
College, the Open University of Hong Kong and Charles Perkins
Centre of Sydney University and for the proposed residential
development in Pak Shek Kok, Tai Po;

9. Salt Water Supply for Northwest New Territories — Construction
of Lok On Pai Salt Water Pumping Station and Associated
Works.

Insurance and Investment

Total revenue of the insurance and investment segment decreased
20.4% from HK$265 million in 2011/12 to HK$211 million in
2012/13 primarily as a result of the absence of gross insurance
premium written in Employees’ Compensation from large
construction contracts of large scale infrastructure projects as in
2011/12 although dividend from private equity fund increased
sharply.

The segment recorded a profit of HK$96.0 million for the year
end 31 March 2013, turned around from a loss of HK$4.5 million
in 2011/12, represented a rapid recovery in financial investment
market and an increase in underwriting profit which was mainly
generated from property insurance.

Property

The property segment’s revenue rose by 34.9%, from HK$616
million in 2011/12 to HK$831 million for the year ended 31 March
2013, resulting from the full year and three-month operations of US
senior housing business in Oregon (acquired on 30 June 2011) and
North Carolina (acquired on 21 December 2012) respectively by the
Group and the increase in the disposal of properties for sale.

The segment’s profit recorded a significant growth at 125% from
HK$409 million in 2011/12 to HK$919 million in 2012/13. Other
than the incremental increase of HK$414 million in fair value gain
of investment properties in 2012/13 as compared with last financial
year, the share of the gain on disposal of an investment property
from an associate also contributed to the boost of the segment profit.
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The Group has entered into the senior housing business in US by
acquiring 3 senior housing located at Oregon with a total gross
building area of 210,000 sq. ft. since June 2011. A total of 336 beds
and services ranging from assisted living, memory care, respite care
and hospice care are provided to the seniors. In December 2012,
the Group has made further acquisition of 18 assisted living/medical
care senior housing facilities located at North Carolina, US for a
consideration of US$120 million (net of cost of maintenance). Those
18 facilities have an aggregate capacity of 1,322 beds while the
aggregate gross floor area exceeds 440,000 sq. ft. and the aggregate
site areas over 4,000,000 sq. ft. The occupancy rate recorded over
80% during the financial year. Although it had experienced a net
loss for this financial year after absorbing the initial acquisition costs
in North Carolina senior housing business, the Group has already
developed a solid record of executing transactions and built good
relationship with the experienced counter parties and would be a
significant foothold for future acquisition in the similar business in
US. The Group is optimistic that this operation will generate stable
operating income and offer capital appreciation potential of those
properties in future.

Subsequent to the year end, the Group has entered into assignment
of the purchase and sale agreement to acquire another assisted
living senior housing property located at North Carolina, US from
an independent third party. The new senior housing property has
an aggregate capacity of 120 beds and site area of approximately
180,000 sq. ft.

The performance of the Group’s cold storage and logistics operation
was satisfactory with steady contributions in both revenue and
profit. The property management business maintains its profitable
position in Hong Kong and Shanghai. During the financial year
under review, the Group has provided property management
services to residential, industrial and commercial properties with
total gross floor area of approximately 10,000,000 sq. ft. in Hong
Kong. The management will continue to look for opportunities in
property management in the coming financial year.

The property development business was affected by austerity
measures imposed by the government of Mainland China. During
the financial year under review, number of units sold was slowed
for the Beijing project — “My Villa”, in which the Group has 44%
interest.

“Chevalier City” situated at Luyuan District in Changchun is 96%
owned by the Group. The site of this project, with a site area of
approximately 4,200,000 sq. ft. and an estimated gross floor area of
approximately 8,320,000 sq. ft., has commenced its development
in early 2013 and pre-sale for Phase | covering 1,600,000 sq. ft. is
expected to be commenced at the end of 2013.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB A BT

“Chateau Ermitas” situated at Lushan Avenue in Shuangliu County,
Chengdu is 49% owned by the Group. The project is comprised
over 60 units of villas, more than 700 residential apartment units, a
deluxe club house, a shopping mall and car parking facility. Phase
I of Chateau Ermitas is in final stage for completion and is targeted
to commence the pre-sale before the end of 2013. Construction of
Phase Il will be commenced in early 2014.

The Urban Renewal Authority of Hong Kong awarded a 50-50
jointly controlled entity of the Group the rights to develop the
site at Chi Kiang Street/Ha Heung Road, To Kwa Wan. The site is
located in the residential area of To Kwa Wan and is currently in the
foundation stage. The project consists of a total gross floor area of
about 70,000 sq. ft. of residential space and about 15,000 sq. ft. of
commercial space and is expected to be completed in the financial
year of 2015/16.

Food and Beverage

The food and beverage segment’s revenue increased from HK$691
million in 2011/12 to HK$756 million in 2012/13 with new outlets
opened by subsidiaries and associates of the Group during the
financial year. The segment results recorded a loss of HK$11.2
million in 2012/13 as compared to a profit of HK$24.4 million in
2011/12. The operating environment was challenging partially due
to the minimum wage legislation, continuous rise of food costs and
rental levels.

In response to the overwhelming consumer’s demands, the Group is
actively sourcing for ideal locations to expand the two new brands
— Dim Sum Bar which offers Chinese cuisine in a modern and
casual setting and Berliner German Bar & Restaurant which features
German specialties like roasted pork knuckle and a wide selection
of German beers. Cafe Deco Group is going to open another new
concept store — Cafe Deco Pizzeria at Elements offering a simple and
chic setting for pizza lovers.

The central food processing centre in Chai Wan continues to act
as a quality controller in standardising food quality and delivering
an assured supply of safe and high-quality products at competitive
prices. The Group will continue to explore business opportunities
for more new outlets and develop more high value innovative food
products with different and unique dining experience to attract new
and loyal customers. In view of the great growth potential of the
Chinese market, the Group is also exploring business opportunities
for franchise operations of its various brands in Mainland China.

Subsequent to year end, the Group has exercised its right under the
put option to dispose its 20% equity interest in the Pacific Coffee
Group at an exercise price of HK$81,660,000. After the completion
of the transaction on 11 June 2013, the Group has no longer held
any equity interest in the Pacific Coffee Group.
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Computer and Information Communication
Technology and Others

The segment’s revenue grew by 12.2%, from HK$1,267 million in
2011/12 to HK$1,421 million during the year under review mainly
due to better revenue gained from the associates’ car dealership
business in Mainland China although the car dealership business in
Canada and computer and information technology business of the
Group experienced setback in revenue.

The Group recorded a high segment loss of HK$38.7 million
in 2012/13 compared to a loss of HK$2.0 million in 2011/12.
In addition to the increase in share of loss from associates’ car
dealership business in Chengdu and the accounting for the
acquisition-related expenses incurred from the acquisition in
agricultural business in Australia, the businesses of the Group in this
segment experienced a general decline in profit.

During the financial year, revenue from car dealership business in
Canada decreased considerably because of keen competition. While
in Mainland China, 13 4S Shops which distribute across different
cities of Sichuan province have operated under the car dealership in
Chengdu in which the Group has 40% equity interest. Though profit
margin decreased, total revenue exceeded RMB1,300 million with
9,700 automobiles sold in this financial year. In addition to new and
used car sales, the 4S shops also rendered a variety of services to
the market ranging from car rental, spare parts sales, to repair and
maintenance. The Group will continue to develop the value chain of
the automobile after-sales business by leveraging the customer base
and professional operating system on new car sales. Looking ahead,
the Group is cautiously optimistic towards the car dealership market
in Mainland China.

The consumer market for notebook computer products distributed
by the Group has been shrinking due to the uptake of tablet PC and
smartphones. On the other hand, the Group has experienced steady
growth in the commercial market for notebook computers and
business telephone systems, network infrastructure solutions and
office automation solutions. In meeting with the market demand,
the Group will continue to focus on opportunities arising from the
commercial sector.

During the year, the Group spent considerable time exploring
agricultural investment opportunities in Australia. After an extended
period of review and negotiations, the Group was finally able to
complete the acquisition of the Moraitis Group shortly after the
end of the financial year under an associated company. The Group
intends to leverage on the expertise of the Moraitis Group to take
advantage of China’s growing demand for imported and locally
grown quality fresh produce. Currently, the Moraitis Group has
infrastructure nation-wide across Australia, with farms, packing
facilities, ripening facilities, prepacking facilities, wholesaling
activities as well as owning numerous exclusive plant breeding
rights. The Group intends to expand the Moraitis’ market share
domestically in Australia, while exploring export opportunities to
Mainland China with the support of a weakening Australian dollar.
In addition, the Group also sees opportunity to take the Moraitis’
know-how and expertise in farm-to-retail distribution, including its
technology, systems and process, to develop a distribution platform
in Mainland China based off the Moraitis’ strong reputation and
capability in delivering quality and safe fresh produce.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review
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Consolidated Income Statement

Revenue

Revenue of the Group increased by 8.8% or HK$339 million from
HK$3,850 million last year to HK$4,189 million this year. The major
contributors of such increase were the strong growth in construction
and engineering business, the new inclusion of three-month revenue
from the senior housing business in North Carolina, US after the
Group’s acquisition in the mid of December 2012 and the full year
revenue from the senior housing business in Oregon, US after the
Group’s acquisition at the end of June 2011.

Gross profit

Gross profit increased from HK$937 million in 2011/12 to
HK$1,102 million in 2012/13 and gross margin improved from
24.3% to 26.3%.

Other income, net

There was a net other income of HK$147 million this year (2012:
HK$53.2 million). The rise was mainly streamed from the significant
gain on financial investments and derivative instruments of HK$78.1
million (2012: loss of HK$14.5 million) following the revaluation of
the put option to dispose of the 20% equity interest in Pacific Coffee
(Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries retained by the Group.

Other gains, net

Net other gains of HK$617 million were recorded for the year ended
31 March 2013 (2012: HK$390 million). Major components of net
other gains were increase in fair value of investment properties
of HK$670 million (2012: HK$256 million), despite the fact that
there were loss on disposal of other subsidiaries of HK$6.2 million
(2012: gain on disposal of Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited of
HK$135 million) and impairment loss on trade debtors and retention
receivables of HK$36.4 million (2012: HK$0.8 million).

Share of results of jointly controlled entities

The Group’s share of results of jointly controlled entities recorded
a loss of HK$18.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012:
HK$62.0 million). The reduction in loss was mainly resulted from
the improvement in performance of jointly controlled entities in
Mainland China under property segment.

Finance costs, net

Net finance costs rose significantly by 158% or HK$36.6 million.
The increments in bank borrowings and effective borrowing rates
escalated the finance costs during the year.

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$1,012
million was achieved for the year ended 31 March 2013, boosted
53.8% or HK$354 million over last year.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Investment properties

The significant increase in the carrying value of investment
properties of HK$728 million to year end balance of HK$3,407
million was basically due to the fair value gain of the properties
amounted to HK$670 million reflecting the upward adjustment in
the property market value in region.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment from acquisition of senior housing
business of HK$371 million led to a surge of HK$350 million in
the carrying value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment to
HK$1,679 million as at 31 March 2013.

Goodwill

In December 2012, the Group acquired senior housing business
located at North Carolina, US for a consideration (net of cost of
maintenance) of US$120 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$928 million) resulting in an addition of goodwill of HK$559
million.

Interests in jointly controlled entities (under non-current
assets) and amounts due from jointly controlled entities
(under current assets)

Interests in jointly controlled entities consisted of interests in
jointly controlled entities, including goodwill, of HK$330 million
(2012: HK$348 million) and non-current portion of amounts due
from jointly controlled entities of HK$893 million (2012: HK$327
million).

The increase in amounts due from jointly controlled entities (under
non-current and current assets) from HK$885 million last year to
HK$1,271 million as at 31 March 2013 represented the further loans
advanced to jointly controlled entities in Mainland China under
property segment.

Properties under development (under non-current and
current assets)

The additions of HK$111 million to properties under development
(under non-current and current assets) represented the costs
incurred for a property development project in Changchun,
Mainland China. The pre-sale for Phase I of this project is expected
to be commenced at the end of 2013, and an amount of HK$212
million was classified as current assets as at 31 March 2013.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

The significant increase in investments at fair value through profit
or loss of HK$113 million to year end balance of HK$406 million
was basically due to the increase in fair value of the securities
investments reflecting the upward adjustment in the investment
markets worldwide and the investment in a mutual fund during the
year.

Financial Review
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Financial Review
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Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Other than movement arising from normal operation, there was
repayment from joint venture partners on the Group’s previous
advances for businesses of jointly controlled entities of the Group in
Mainland China.

Bank balances and cash

As at 31 March 2013, bank balances and cash increased 23.7%
to HK$1,280 million (2012: HK$1,035 million). At the end of the
reporting period, 66.6% (2012: 71.6%) of bank balances and cash
were denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars while 24.5%
(2012: 16.5%) were denominated in Renminbi.

Bank borrowings (under current and non-current liabilities)
As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s bank borrowings increased to
HK$4,323 million (2012: HK$2,980 million), due to the drawn
down of Hong Kong and US dollars bank borrowings for financing
the acquisition of senior housing business in North Carolina, US and
Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi bank borrowings for the property
development projects in Mainland China during the year. At the end
of the reporting period, 90.5% and 8.4% (2012: 91.8% and 7.2%)
of bank borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars
and Renminbi respectively.

The Group’s bank borrowings in respect of the portion due within
one year dropped to 21.8% as at 31 March 2013 (2012: 52.3%) due
to the drawn down of the HK$1.5 billion 3 years club loan from
banks in September and October 2012 to repay the previous HK$1
billion club loan and fund its operation.

Most of the borrowings were carrying floating interest rates based on
Hong Kong or London Interbank Offered Rates with small portions
based on prime rates.

Finance costs charged to the consolidated income statement during
the year rose to HK$74.4 million (2012: HK$31.7 million).

Shareholders’ Equity

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s net assets attributable to equity
holders of the Company amounted to HK$5,821 million (2012:
HK$4,994 million), an increase of HK$827 million or 16.6% when
compared with 2012. Such increase was mainly resulted from
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HK$1,012 million, fair value surplus of properties upon transfer
to investment properties of HK$31.8 million, issue of shares
under scrip dividend scheme of HK$40.8 million, offsetting by the
appropriation of dividends of HK$264 million during the year ended
31 March 2013.
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Leverage Ratios

The Group generally finances its operation with internally generated
cash flow and credit facilities provided by its principal bankers in
Hong Kong, Mainland China and US.

As at 31 March 2013, included in the Group’s total secured debt of
HK$2,054 million (2012: HK$1,344 million), being 47.5% of total
debt (2012: 45.1%), was HK$874 million (2012: HK$200 million)
attributable to senior housing business, in which HK$746 million
(2012: HK$185 million) was without recourse to the Company.
Analysis of the net debt is set out below:

Financial Review
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2013 2012

R =4 AR

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T o0

Unsecured: A 2,268,571 1,636,467

Secured: A AT

— senior housing business — LR 873,580 199,967

— other businesses — HAh ZE % 1,180,640 1,143,837
2,054,220 1,343,804

Total debt RGBS 4,322,791 2,980,271
Bank balances and cash RATEE R4 (1,280,016) (1,035,209)
Net debt FE TS 3,042,775 1,945,062

At the end of the reporting period, with the increase in bank
borrowings, total debt to equity ratio increased to 69.6% (2012:
56.0%), which was expressed as a percentage of the bank
borrowings over the Group’s net assets of HK$6,211 million (2012:
HK$5,318 million). The net debt to equity ratio became 49.0%
(2012: 36.6%), which was expressed as a percentage of the net bank
borrowings (representing the total debt net of the bank balances
and cash) over the Group’s net assets. The ratio of total debt to total
assets of HK$12,796 million (2012: HK$10,592 million) increased
from 28.1% last year to 33.8% as at 31 March 2013.

With adequate banking facilities in place and the recurrent cash
generation from its operation, the Group has sufficient financial
resources to meet the funding requirements for its ongoing operation
as well as its future expansion.
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Financial Review
g sain

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and
financial management. The Group’s treasury activities are
centralised in order to achieve better risk control and minimise
cost of funds. Cash is generally placed in short-term deposits
denominated in Hong Kong or US dollars. The Group's liquidity and
financing requirements are frequently reviewed. In anticipating new
investments or maturity of bank loans, the Group will consider new
financing while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Interest Rates

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had arranged foreign currency
forward contracts amounting to HK$79.7 million (2012: HK$37.5
million) to hedge the exchange rate exposure between various
foreign currencies to other cross currencies. The Group had
outstanding interest rate swap contracts which amounted to
HK$1,070 million in total (2012: HK$620 million) at the end of
the reporting period, enabling the Group to manage its interest rate
exposure.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 March 2013, bank borrowings of HK$2,054 million
(2012: HK$1,344 million) and other unutilised banking facilities
were secured by charges on investment properties of HK$2,069
million (2012: HK$1,574 million), property, plant and equipment
of HK$930 million (2012: HK$609 million), inventories of HK$47.2
million (2012: HK$29.0 million), properties for sales of HK$1.9
million (2012: HK$24.9 million) and deposits at bank of HK$235
million (2012: HK$52.6 million).

Contingent Liabilities
Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Commitment

Details of the commitment are set out in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements. The commitment is to be financed by
borrowings and internal funds.
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Financial Assistance to Affiliated Companies and
their Proforma Combined Statement of Financial
Position

The Company and/or its subsidiaries had provided financial
assistance to, and guarantees for banking facilities granted to,
affiliated companies as at 31 March 2013, which together in
aggregate amounted to HK$1,718 million as loans and HK$559
million as guarantees issued for banking facilities granted. These
amounts represented a percentage ratio of approximately 18.1%
as at 31 March 2013 and exceeded the asset ratio of 8% under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In
accordance with the Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, an unaudited
proforma combined statement of financial position of those affiliated
companies with financial assistance from the Group and the Group's

Financial Review
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attributable interest in those affiliated companies as at 31 March AR REAG ST
2013 are presented below:
2013
e St o

Proforma

combined
statement of Group’s
financial attributable
position interest
% & bF A4 1
W BLE JRE AV B 2
HK$ million HK$ million
W E T WA E T
Non-current assets it B 1,443 669
Current assets ) A 3,129 1,440
Current liabilities N =R (1,298) (586)
Non-current liabilities E N (562) (243)
Shareholders’ advances JB SRR K (1,988) (1,718)
Total equity R 2 724 (438)

As at 31 March 2013, the banking facilities utilised by the affiliated
companies, against which the Group has provided guarantees,
amounted to HK$232 million (2012: HK$134 million).
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Management Profile
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DR CHOW YEI CHING G.B.S., 0.B.E., Executive Director, Chairman
of the Board and Executive Committee, aged 77, is the founder
of Chevalier Group since 1970. He is also directors of certain
companies of the Group. Dr Chow is an independent non-executive
director of Television Broadcasts Limited. In 1995, Dr Chow
was awarded with an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Business
Administration by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and an
Honorary University Fellow by The University of Hong Kong. In
1997, he was conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Laws by
The University of Hong Kong. He is also a Consultative Professor
of Zhejiang University and a Lecture Professor of Sichuan Union
University in Mainland China. In 2008, Dr Chow was awarded
with an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Social Science by City
University of Hong Kong. Dr Chow’s enthusiasm in public services
is evidenced in his appointment in 2001 as the Vice Patron of The
Community Chest in Hong Kong. He was also appointed as the
Honorary Consul of The Kingdom of Bahrain in Hong Kong in 2001.
Dr Chow also actively participates in various professional bodies
and associations on fraternal and Chinese affairs. To name a few,
he is the Founding President of International Ningbo Merchants
Association Company Limited, the President of The Japan Society of
Hong Kong and the Permanent Honorary President of the National
Taiwan University — HK Alumni Association, etc. In recognition of
his contributions to local and overseas societies alike, Dr Chow was
awarded honorable decorations from Britain, Belgium, France and
Japan and especially the Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with
Neck Ribbon in Japan in 2008. Furthermore, Dr Chow was also
awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star from the HKSAR Government in
2004. He is the father of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily
Chow, Executive Directors of the Company.

R+ G, 0.B.E > MATHEF > HH
TR EAESER > BEL K ?R
—IILERAEF ST AL E o BRIN A AL
TAFZ#EH - R A BRI R
WAL IEATHE R A —JJULRAE > B L5
| A T S B LR BRI AR L A R
LA R A TS BN 44 BB e B > I
— UL AR HE T S R B 45 B L Rl 1 B
57 o 5% 310 2 F R A0 L VTR B2 2 i P AR S
VO KR 2 Gl A% o i R\
T 2R A U I T R B A S A o R R
it o R L OB ENREL -
TR —FHELFB N RS EBATR -
IR R — A TAT By AR T [ B A s 44
B o TR — BB RIS A B
FEE RS o AR A R AR KB O
B H B E RS TER SRRE > HPE
FEt R p s AR A R AT R
Fis A AL g g R EAEREFBRA
ARG o A s 3 HI
B S A5 MR B A6 T R A 5 RRRIDIY RN
A A ARBUN R R A R A2 | LRSS X
PRI BB AN gAML e 2 B R - FE O
T R AR A P R R UM I
SR o A AN RIEAT HE B SR AR R SR AR
R JRIRHT/INE 2 ACH »

24 Chevalier International Holdings Limited 4[5 B4 AT FiL /A A



MR KUOK HOI SANG, Executive Director, Vice Chairman and
Managing Director, a member of the Executive Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, aged
63, joined Chevalier Group in 1972. He is also directors of certain
companies of the Group. He is the President of The Lift and Escalator
Contractors Association in Hong Kong, the Vice-Chairman of the
Hong Kong — China Branch of The International Association of
Elevator Engineers, Vice President of the Hong Kong Federation
of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors Limited and a Registered
Lift and Escalator Engineer in Hong Kong. He is a member of
the Guangzhou Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. Mr Kuok has extensive experience in
business development and is responsible for the strategic planning
and management of the operations of lifts and escalators, building
construction, building materials and supplies, aluminium works,
electrical and mechanical services, civil engineering, property
development as well as investment projects of the Chevalier
Group.

MR TAM KWOK WING, Executive Director, Deputy Managing
Director and a member of the Executive Committee, aged 52, joined
Chevalier Group in 1986. He is also directors of certain companies
of the Group. Overseeing the operation of insurance underwriting
together with property investment and development, property
management, cold storage and logistics as well as travel agency
businesses, he is also responsible for legal affairs and corporate
communications of Chevalier Group.

Mr Tam holds a Bachelor Degree in Laws from the Beijing University
of the People’s Republic of China, a Master of Arts Degree from
the City University of Hong Kong and a Postgraduate Diploma
in Corporate Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is also a Fellow Member of the Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
in the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr Tam is appointed as a Deputy Director of the Hong
Kong Macao Taiwan Overseas and Chinese Foreign Committee
and a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, Changchun. He is elected as the Vice President of
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and also serves
as the Vice Chairman in its Education Committee. He is also a
Council Member served in The Hong Kong Association of Property
Management Companies as well as an Honorary Secretary of the
Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau.
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MR CHOW VEE TSUNG, OSCAR, Executive Director, a member
of the Executive Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee, aged 39, joined Chevalier Group in
2000. He is also directors of certain companies of the Group and is
currently in charge of the project development, assets management
and food and beverage business of the Group. He is also responsible
for the Chevalier Group’s electronic data processing and company
secretarial affairs. Mr Chow was elected as an independent non-
executive director of Towngas China Company Limited on 4 June
2012, a public company listed on the Stock Exchange. He holds a
degree in Master of Engineering from The University of Oxford, U.K.
and is currently a General Committee Member of the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce and a General Committee Member
of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong. He is also
a member of the Shanghai Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and a Committee Member of the Advisory Council on
the Environment, and a member of the SME Development Fund
Vetting Committee. Mr Chow is also a court member of The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and The University of Hong Kong and
also a Council Member of The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology. Mr Chow is the son of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the
Chairman of the Company and is also a brother of Miss Lily Chow,
Executive Director of the Company.

MR HO CHUNG LEUNG, Executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee, aged 63, joined Chevalier Group in 1985.
He is also directors of certain companies of the Group and is
responsible for the management of Chevalier Group’s accounting
and treasury activities. Mr Ho is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the U.K. and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

MR MA CHI WING, Executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee, aged 44, joined Chevalier Group in 1993.
He is also directors of certain companies of the Group. Mr Ma has
extensive experience in the project management and is currently in
charge of the car dealerships, hotel investments and trading business
of the Group. He is also responsible for the oversight of the Group’s
human resources and general administration activities. Mr Ma holds
a Master Degree in Business Administration from University of
Warwick, U.K., a Bachelor Degree in International Business Studies
from City University of Hong Kong, a Corporate Finance Certificate
from UC Berkeley, US, and a Professional Certificate in China
Construction from Tsinghua University, PRC.
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MISS LILY CHOW, Executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee, aged 50, joined Chevalier Group in 1990.
She is also a director of a subsidiary company of the Group. She
is responsible for strategic planning and business development of
the Group. Miss Chow holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the
University of British Columbia. Miss Chow is currently a member
of each of Harbourfront Commission of Development Bureau,
Transport Advisory Committee of the Transport and Housing
Bureau of the HKSAR Government and Independent Member of
Appeal Board of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong. She is
also currently a member of the Ningbo Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. Miss Chow is the
daughter of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the Chairman of the Company and
is also a sister of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Executive Director of
the Company.

DR CHOW MING KUEN, JOSEPH o0.8.E., J.P., Independent Non-
Executive Director, chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee,
aged 71, joined the Company in 2002. He is the Chairman of Joseph
Chow & Partners Ltd., an independent non-executive director of
Build King Holdings Limited, Road King Infrastructure Limited and
Harbour Centre Development Limited. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Hsin Chong Construction
Group Ltd. on 17 June 2013. He has over 40 years of experience in
the planning, design and construction of many major engineering
projects in the U.K., Middle East, Mainland China and Hong
Kong. He was formerly the Chairman of the Construction Workers
Registration Authority and Hon. Senior Superintendent of the Hong
Kong Auxiliary Police Force. He was previously the President
of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, Chairman of Hong
Kong Engineers’ Registration Board, Hong Kong Examinations
and Assessment Authority and Pamela Youde Nethersole Eastern
Hospital Governing Committee as well as a Member of the Hong
Kong Housing Authority and Hospital Authority.

MR SUN KAl DAH, GEORGE, Independent Non-Executive Director,
chairman of the Nomination Committee, a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, aged 73, joined
the Company in 2006. He has extensive experience in business
management. He was the founder of Zindart Limited, a company
incorporated in 1978 and listed on the United States NASDAQ. He
has retired from the position of Chief Executive Officer of Zindart
Limited since 1998.
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MR YANG CHUEN LIANG, CHARLES B8.8.s., J.P., Independent Non-
Executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee, a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
aged 54, joined the Company in 2008. Mr Yang obtained a Master
Degree in Business Administration from Cass Business School
London in 1983 and is currently a partner at S. Y. Yang & Company,
Practising firm of Accountants and member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales as well as the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a director
of Phoenix U Radio Limited. His community duties include the
Director and ABAC chairman of the Community Chest, member
of the Social Welfare Advisory Committee, Occupational Safety
& Health Council, Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning) and an
independent director of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong.
Mr Yang was selected as “Outstanding Accountant Ambassador”
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was
appointed as Justice of Peace by the HKSAR Government in 2004
and awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government in
2011.

PROFESSOR POON CHUNG KWONG G.8.S., J.P., Ph.D., D.Sc., aged
73, was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company on 28 December 2012. Professor Poon is currently the
chairman of Virya Foundation Limited (a registered non-profit
charitable organization). He is the President Emeritus of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and had devoted 40 years of his life
to advancing university education in Hong Kong before he retired
in January 2009 from his 18-year presidency at The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Professor Poon was appointed a non-
official Justice of the Peace in 1989 and received the OBE award
in 1991, the Gold Bauhinia Star award in 2002, the “Leader of
the Year Awards 2008 (Education)” and the Honorary Degree of
Doctor of Humanities from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2009. In addition, Professor Poon was appointed as a member
of the Legislative Council (1985-1991) and a member of the
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (1998-2013). Professor Poon is a non-executive director
of Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited and an independent
non-executive director of Henderson Land Development Company
Limited, The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited,
Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited and K. Wah International
Holdings Limited, all of which are public companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

DR KO CHAN GOCK, WILLIAM s.8.s., Ph.D., Non-Executive Director,
aged 67, joined the Company in 2009. Dr Ko graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in 1968. He has served in the HKSAR
Government for more than 38 years, having worked in a wide
range of departments including the Water Supplies Department,
the Highways Department, the Civil Engineering and Development
Department and the Works Branch. In 2001, he was appointed as
the Director of Water Supplies. Dr Ko retired from the civil service
in January 2007.

Vit s, gp. > W IFEPATEDS
WhHFREZBG TN - FMEE G RIREZE
BelE > HAELTIR > B FTAEN
AL T o M5t — LN ZF R # Cass
Business School % T. & 45 BRAE + 27 » B
L\ a a2 AN > 3 2 AR T A
BT e ST A & K E S G RN e
B o D5l 2 BRI R A A PR R 2 R o
WIMEATE Z THATR BT » @A & E 38
BT EEFEN - AR ZE S -
FELAEFHRE - LT B E T EE)
BCE A SR SR LB IR o M
M B S G TR A e TR g R Rl o
AR T T 2 U A A S A D R 2R AT 2 ROT
Al s TR R — AR TR I U AR
SRR -

WENEFE GBS, )P, PhD, D.Sc. > BIFEET=
o N E AR A S ANA RS
RN FVESLIERATHE D o HEIRI R
SAERAF (GEMERFESAS SR -
WA AW T REBLERER > ik —EZIL
E— FRARHET » AL H I T RERE 2
N WHEFRB—EHSIEBRERT
PO A4F o BB — LI E BT AT
SEARTA s~ i — UL AR e R A T
BT R R U R R UM R
BERHET N FT /A [
RIS (B ) I i B E AT I TR
LI BN SO A o AN IR
PN E— UL AT 5 50 3k Rk
B B — LIV S T — S BT
ANREGAH M ERERAZEGRE - BHFE
BT SCERA R AR 2 AT EH - i
JEEMEARAA - FEsPERE AR
Al AR s LA R A 5 HE B R 4E
HRAR Z B EHATEDS » ZEARHG
WA EAR LT 2 AR -

HBEML ses, php. o FEWTES > B
ANt REBRIIVUEMAARLNTH - &l
L= U AR R ZE AU 5 o % IR
A 22 s R I UM SR P B AR = A
FEKBS &~ BEE - AR EE N T
Bl o i —EE - FRBELHKBEER -
AR TR AE— AR AKE o

28 Chevalier International Holdings Limited (s B2 H 45 FRA 7]



Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows:

(I) Held as Investment Properties/Properties for

Own Use

Schedule of Major Properties

ERWFER

RAEE 2 EEYEREIIWR

() FfEdkE AR

Location

H

Approximate
gross
Usage

sq. ft. PR

floor area*

& i 1 A

Lease term

A

The Group’s
interest

A5 T P A B 2
%

Hong Kong
wi

Units 1011 to 1019 on 10th Floor,
19th to 23rd Floors and
one-third interest in 201
car parking spaces of
Chevalier Commercial Centre,
8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay

JURE S 7 Bl 7\ 5%
HAemEho
—R-—F R JE
TREZ =M
B =4y — £ 2 AF HA 20118

Chevalier Engineering Service Centre,
21 Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay
JUREEE BE R
HA TR O

Chevalier Warehouse Building,
3 On Fuk Street, On Lok Tsuen,
Fanling, New Territories

B S A L R L AR = 5
HEBARE

Ground Floor of Blocks A and B,
East Sun Industrial Centre,
16 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon

JUREBLE U TN 58
TG AR T3E 0 AT J2 B JEE 3L T

8 Kwai Hei Street,
Kwai Chung, New Territories

EIRE SR 2% VAN

Office premise and 174,600

carpark

I NCYSEE R R

Industrial/ 177,500

Office premise

T2 WAE

Industrial 118,300

T3

Industrial

T3

14,900

Cold storage warehouse

Y O i

380,000

Medium
Hh

Medium
Hh

Medium
Hh

Medium
A

Medium
A

100

100

100

100

75
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Schedule of Major Properties
B SYE £

(1) Held as Investment Properties/Properties for () FfE#E HRHYE @
Own Use (continued)

Approximate

gross The Group’s
Location Usage floor area*  Lease term interest
% & 8 1A O A %0 SRR AR S 18 T A R 25
sq. ft. P %
124-130 Kwok Shui Road and Cold storage warehouse 427,500 Medium 75
79-85 Yau Ma Hom Road, A T GRE L]
Kwai Chung, New Territories
T 25 G I8 i
= AU E T = R
LR EATIE
29-33 Tsing Yi Road, Tsing Yi Island,  Industrial 253,500 Medium 87.5
New Territories T2 i He
FAEREERE - THLE=T=5%
9 Henderson Road, Jardine’s Lookout  Residential 9,500 Long 100
) 1L AR R LR 7 =
No. 20, Shek O Road Residential 5,300 Long 100
ARE fFEE =18
Singapore
B 3
Chevalier House, 23 Genting Road, Industrial 106,500 Freehold 100
Singapore 349481 T3 K SERE
The Blue Building, 10 Genting Road,  Industrial 16,900 Freehold 100
Singapore 349473 T3 K SERE
Canada
mER
838 Hamilton Street, Vancouver, B.C. Hotel 66,000 Freehold 90
s Tk AR
4334-4340 Kingston Road, Ontario, Office and workshop 20,200 Freehold 100
MIF 2M8 for automobile TR ZERE
dealership
FERHLAE 8 2
WEAE R T35
14535-14583 Yonge Street, Aurora, Office and workshop 25,000 Freehold 100
Ontario for automobile TR ZERE
dealership
FER AL AE 8
WEAE R T35
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Schedule of Major Properties

FEY L

() FfE®E HAWE @

(I) Held as Investment Properties/Properties for

Own Use (continued)

Approximate

gross The Group’s
Location Usage floor area* Lease term interest
H s & 1A D A 0 SRR A A B e A i AR
sq. ft. “F M %
us
I
430 East Grand Avenue, Industrial/Warehouse 37,000 Freehold 100
South San Francisco, CA 94080 T2/ % TN ERE
13258 Nelson Avenue, Industrial/Warehouse 38,600 Freehold 100
City of Industry, Los Angeles, T3, B KA GERE
CA 91746
4510 Duraleigh Road, Raleigh, Senior Housing 52,700 Freehold 100
NC 27612 E AT K SEHE
1665 NE 18th Street, Gresham, Senior Housing 33,000 Freehold 100
OR 97030 e AT KA SERE
3060 SE Stark Street, Portland, Senior Housing 143,000 Freehold 100
OR 97214 o KK ERE
14420 SW, Farmington Road, Senior Housing 35,000 Freehold 100
Beaverton, OR 97005 LR K A FEHE
535 U.S 158W, Yanceyville, Senior Housing 38,300 Freehold 100
NC 27379 A K FEHE
2560 Willard Road, Winston-Salem, Senior Housing 33,300 Freehold 100
NC 27107 U E AT KA ERE
Thailand
1
Chevalier House, Office premise and 21,300 Freehold 100
540 Bamrungmuang Road, showroom IR SERE
Debsirin Sub-district, WA= TR A =
Pomprab District,
Bangkok Metropolis
Mainland China
v [ 7
Chevalier Place, 168 An Fu Road, Residential, shop and 142,600 Long 80
Xuhui District, Shanghai carpark =
BT RE R AR — S A 22~ Pl KA i
pINE
Units 3-9 of 18th Floor, Office premise 13,000 Medium 100
Dongshan Plaza, /N H3
69 Xianlie Zhong Road,
Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province
& SR BN T SR B S T LR
WILEG /= NE
355 Minquan Road, Xinyang City, Hotel 105,000 Medium 70
Henan Province S T
T B A5 B T R R = R
*  Excluding car parking spaces * RNEFE
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Schedule of Major Properties
B SYE £

(I Properties for Sale

(DGR ZE S

Approximate

gross The Group’s
Location floor area Lease term interest
H R TR TR A B LRV A A R A
sq. ft. *F-77 R %
Hong Kong
s
Units 1501 to 1506 on 15th Floor, 10,400 Medium 100
Units 1601-1603 on 16th Floor, Skl
Chevalier House, 45-51 Chatham Road South,
Tsim Sha Tsui
RYPBEBEmM T HE L =9 R E i —hE—%
—HERE > A -AE-FE AT EE
Mainland China
v [ Py
My Villa — 26 villas, 35 shop units and 47 residential units, 286,000 Medium 44
Huairou District, Beijing A
A6 T 5 [ RR B BE B 2 6401 - PSS SR K AT 4718
(Il Properties Under Development (INE: A E S
Estimated
gross floor
Stage of Expected date of Approximate area after  The Group’s
Location completion  completion Major usage site area  completion* interest
W e AEH
i i) 3 HHESETHM FEMRE TR 4 T 4 Pt At HE 2
sq.ft. THAUW  sq.ft. TR %
Mainland China
o B g
Luyuan District, Changchun  In progress 2015 to 2027 Residential and 3,370,000 7,370,000 96
o4 Tl 4k [ [ TREGh —FE—-HER commercial
e i (EEYTHE S
Shuangliu County, Chengdu In progress 2013 to 2016 Villa, residential 1,250,000 1,810,000 49
JICHR i R TREfh —F-ZEE and commercial
RN A R
*  Excluding the floor areas of basements, carparks, public amenities, v REREHTE - (FEY - AFRE - 1

resettlement buildings and clubhouses

B R i 2 T A
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence
and maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of stakeholders and comply with
the increasing stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules sets out two levels of corporate governance code
namely, code provisions that a listed company must comply with or
explain its non-compliance, and recommended best practices that a
listed company is encouraged to comply with but need not disclose
in the case of non-compliance. The Company is in compliance
with the code provisions of the CG Code except for the following
deviations:

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. All the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term but subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at annual general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-Laws.

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that the Independent Non-Executive
Directors and other Non-Executive Directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Mr Sun Kai Dah, George, an Independent Non-
Executive Director was unable to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 7 September 2012 due to an oversea
commitment. Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph and Mr Yang Chuen
Liang, Charles, both Independent Non-Executive Directors were
unable to attend the special general meeting of the Company held
on 21 December 2012 due to other engagement.

Board of Directors

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board sets the Group’s overall
objectives and strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating
and financial performance and reviews the corporate governance
standard of the Company. It also decides on matters such as annual
and interim results, notifiable transactions, director appointments
or re-appointment, and dividend and accounting policies.
Management profile of the Company as at the date of this report is
set out on pages 24 to 28.

_B e RN,

Corporate Governance Report

EEE R E

T\ BOIHERR R KB SRR IR L
SEVE AT IR GE o NI ER AR I A A R AR
5 15 A R e SR e R
oo Yy TR B R AR B A 45 A A
AR AE T RS BB
A RLER - DA B o 3 By
SEEIIRGE > B0 A At 4R 1 A9 43¢

EIRHHL o

TR B BR kPO P A SRR ST R
Fe (A2 R ) (TR SR <P I ) #TH
T {1 R A SR PRI B SP RIS
— LA Ny > ST AT A T R
ARSCHY I DUAE Hh R 5 Mol el i W —
LAY IPSE SRR iaa T )
AIMEOL o A28 Al ST S IR ST R P A ST
HIGESC > MERAR 22 55 G SCRR b

BAAN I EFRITEF O RALEA
AL > AR AR - AN AP
FBATE SR AR EEM > MR A A
AR A2 R EHCA AF R & B (ESE -
[l AT -

HEAL6.7 25 SCH B S IR AT R A
FEFUATE I RO B R R
BRANIEMN TR - AN AB I TES
TR BH 2 Se 2k R 2 R T A S > O BE
JEALN AR & — T JUA & H BT 22 B
ARG o M7 IE AT 2E R A R A R
857 oA N T R B A S BIOR BE RS
RAFIN B — 4+ A+ — BT
JBEHRRR R K & -

HHY

HWHEE A AN A EEEIEESCRMAE
ERSEE - RS M E - B AR sk
Hby o HR 0 ZE L DA 2 T e HL R R R 5
FyHT AT o B 5T 7 AR R ) 2 R R
7] BB RN R AN A A [ L B EA RS
2R WARFI AN T Z BEEIE KT -
HHGIHILE S HAFSE > HhaEEs
RS - AT AMNRY - EREE
BRI - KRR IR BLE FHEOR o i AR
HEZH > AAFERBENHRE24EHE
28K o
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Corporate Governance Report
S

Board of Directors (continued)

The Board comprises seven Executive Directors, one Non-Executive
Director and four Independent Non-Executive Directors. The full
Board met four times during the year under review. The attendance
of Directors at the Board Meetings, the Board Committees Meetings
and General Meetings is set out in the table below:

wHEF @

WHEH CAWTESF - — K ERWTEFK
I 42 $85 7 I AT AL, o 9 AE R LB
AR SEFAERaTaR- - EF
Z B O 655 MR RO 5k 00 U S

Meetings Attended/Held
7k R BT R

Board A udit
Directors Meeting  Committee

£ HEHEG  HEREAT

Remuneration Nomination General
Committee =~ Committee Meeting

HMEZEE RAZARE Jie K 1

Executive Directors
HITHEF
Dr Chow Yei Ching (Chairman) 2/4 -
JETRI T L ()
Mr Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and

Managing Director) 4/4 -
SRR S (R T A AT )
Mr Tam Kwok Wing

(Deputy Managing Director) 4/4 -
L B 2R e (A AR )
Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar 4/4 -
JH HEIE S A
Mr Ho Chung Leung 4/4 -
R RSB
Mr Ma Chi Wing 4/4 -
LYY et
Miss Lily Chow 4/4 -
JEAIAT /N

Non-Executive Directors
HFHITEH
Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph? 4/4 3/3
JE IR -
Mr Sun Kai Dah, George* 4/4 3/3
FRBARE LA
Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles? 4/4 3/3
W e ek
Dr Ko Chan Gock, William 4/4 -
R E It
Professor Poon Chung Kwong* 11 -
(appointed on 28 December 2012)
il e
e e = BV
HEZAT)

* Independent Non-Executive Director

WL AT EH

- - 2/2

11 11 2/2

- - 2/2

11 1/1 1/2

- - 2/2

- - 2/2

- - 2/2

11 1/1 1/2

11 1/1 1/2

11 1/1 1/2

- - 2/2
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
relationships with each other except that Dr Chow Yei Ching is the
father of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily Chow; while Miss
Chow is a sister of Mr Chow.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company met
at all times the requirements of the Listing Rules to have at least
three Independent Non-Executive Directors representing at least
one-third of the Board and with at least one Independent Non-
Executive Director possessing appropriate accounting and financial
management expertise and professional qualifications.

The Company has received from its Independent Non-Executive
Directors annual confirmation of independence in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their
independence and concluded that all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors are independent.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. An induction would
be given to the newly appointed Director to provide information
regarding the business and operation of the Company and as well as
his responsibilities under the Listing Rules and relevant regulations.
The Company also provides reading materials updates to the
Directors on the latest developments and changes to the Listing
Rules, the applicable laws and regulations relating to directors’
duties and responsibilities.

During the year under review, the Company arranged a seminar to
the Directors to update them on the relevant amendment of Listing
Rules regarding price-sensitive information disclosure. All Directors,
except Professor Poon Chung Kwong who was not yet appointed a
Director at the relevant time, attended the seminar. Professor Poon
attended training courses relevant to his profession and duties as a
director. Directors’ training is an ongoing process, all Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expenses. Directors are requested to provide records of training they
received to the company secretary of the Company for records.

Corporate Governance Report
DI

wHEF @
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Corporate Governance Report
DI R

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board shall have power to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a vacancy or for expansion of the Board. The Company
has set up a Nomination Committee for formulating nomination
policy for consideration of the Board and making recommendations
to the Board on the selection, appointment and re-appointment of
Directors. All candidates must also meet the standards as set forth in
Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be
appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director should also
meet the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meetings of the Company. New Directors appointed by the
Board during the year are required to retire and submit themselves
for re-election at the annual general meeting or general meeting
immediately following their appointments. Further, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors, or, if their number is
not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third are required to retire from office by rotation and no later
than the third annual general meeting since the last re-election or
appointment of such Director.

Appointment of Independent Non-Executive Director was
recommended by Nomination Committee to the Board for
consideration and confirmed at a Board Meeting of the Company
held on 29 November 2012.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The CG Code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same person. The Chairman of the Company is Dr
Chow Yei Ching and the Managing Director is Mr Kuok Hoi Sang.
The role of the Chairman is separate from that of the Managing
Director. The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the functioning
of the Board while the Managing Director is responsible for
managing the Group’s businesses.

wHZ RN
EREGAERATAMALAES IR
Tk BN N S A o AR FIRET R A
ZET > AEGIERABORG TEAGES
BE o DA R E Pk AT E B BT
HER B ERE - AR AYEAS LT
AI%53.08 &% 3.09%c 2 B3k » T AE Z AT S Ik
AT HE FF > B A TR AT A LT AR
33T T8 51 2 Bk -

MRIE A FIANA > B A o SR AR 8 ] 2 R
BFERE LR > I EEEAE - RER
WHEEGRALZ EHIAEERERZ BT
Pl SR AF K A AL AR 0 ek LR
> AT AT - T R e BRI AR
R BHA =0 2 — s (I SR AT NEOR
M) REEEADIR =02 — 1 E
FORAT > A (0 S A H R R
TR AN = Je 2 SR AR FIRAT o

ZAEBL AT ER I RE TR G @ I
e St S S s S NS (% /N
ik D AFE e R

R B AT B

AR 1A S I SO S AT AR
(A JESY B B A B ph [ — AT » AR A AT
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1998 with written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have
been revised in March 2012 in compliance with the provisions set
out in the CG Code. Mr Yang Chuen Liang, Charles, Independent
Non-Executive Director, is the Chairman of the committee. He has
extensive experience in financial reporting and controls. Other
members include all other Independent Non-Executive Directors,
namely, Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph and Mr Sun Kai Dabh,
George. The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment
of external auditors, review of the Group’s financial information
and oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management frameworks. It is also
responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the
Group prior to recommending them to the Board for approval.
Its terms of reference are accessible on the Stock Exchange’s
website at http://www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at
http://www.chevalier.com.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 March 2013. At the meetings, it reviewed the connected
transactions (if any), the interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2012 and last year’s final results for the year ended 31
March 2012, and has reviewed with management the accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group and discussed the
auditing, internal controls, financial reporting matters and risk
management systems of the Group. The final results for the year
ended 31 March 2013 were reviewed by the Audit Committee in
its meeting held on 20 June 2013. The Audit Committee of the
Company regularly discusses with the management the system of
internal control to ensure an effective internal control system.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10 March
2005 with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee have been revised in March 2012
in compliance with the provisions set out in the CG Code. Dr
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph is the Chairman of the committee. Other
members of the committee include Messrs Yang Chuen Liang,
Charles, Sun Kai Dah, George, Kuok Hoi Sang and Chow Vee Tsung,
Oscar. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the operation
model where it has the responsibility, powers and discretion
to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management
of the Company. Its terms of reference are accessible on the Stock
Exchange’s website at http://www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s
website at http://www.chevalier.com.

Corporate Governance Report
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DI R

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2013 to review the remuneration packages
paid to Directors and senior management for the year ended 31
March 2013. Details of the emoluments of Directors and senior
management by bands are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 March 2012 with
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee have been revised in June 2013 so as to incorporate
Board Diversity Policy to be effective from 1 September 2013. Mr
Sun Kai Dah, George is the Chairman of the committee. Other
members of the committee include Dr Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph,
Messrs Yang Chuen Liang, Charles, Kuok Hoi Sang and Chow
Vee Tsung, Oscar. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular the chairman
and the chief executive. The Nomination Committee has the
responsibility to consider, identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships.
Its terms of reference are accessible on the Stock Exchange’s
website at http://www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website
at http://www.chevalier.com. The Nomination Committee held
a meeting during the year ended 31 March 2013 to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. During the year,
the Nomination Committee has reviewed and considered the
nomination of Professor Poon Chung Kwong as an additional
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company by way of
written resolution. The related recommendation was made to the
Board for consideration and approval.

Management Committee

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s business to an Executive Committee
which was established in 1991. The terms of reference of the
Executive Committee have been revised in March 2012 so as to
incorporate corporate governance functions as stipulated in the
CG Code. Members of the Executive Committee comprise seven
Executive Directors, namely Dr Chow Yei Ching, Chairman of the
committee, Messrs Kuok Hoi Sang, Tam Kwok Wing, Chow Vee
Tsung, Oscar, Ho Chung Leung, Ma Chi Wing and Miss Lily Chow.
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Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective internal controls in the Group. During the year, the Board
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system
of internal control, covering financial, operational, compliance
control and risk management functions. The Group’s system of
internal control includes a defined management structure with
limits of authority, and is designed to help the Group achieve its
business objectives, safeguard its assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use
or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and
to manage rather than eliminate all risks of failure in the Group’s
operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s business
objectives.

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the
internal controls of the Group and reports directly to the Chairman.
It has unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s
activities and internal controls. It also conducts special audits of
areas of concern identified by Management or the Audit Committee.
The Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-based audit approach.
All audit reports are circulated to the Audit Committee and key
management. The Internal Audit Department is also responsible
for following up the implementation of recommendations and
corrective actions. The Audit Committee has free and direct access
to the Head of Internal Audit Department without reference to the
Chairman of the Board or management.

Directors’” and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
consolidated the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2013, which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors have
adopted generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made
judgements and estimates that are fair and reasonable and prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Auditor of the Company acknowledge their reporting
responsibilities in the Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 as set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 51 to 52.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the fees paid/
payable to the auditors in respect of the audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditors to the Group were as follows:

A% Bl 2 T

WE B~ S = B IR
AL > A g AR 0 2 R B A
SO © 3/ BTN 4

Nature of services

Il 5 1 B

Amount (HK$’000)
ST )

Audit services

BN

— PricewaterhouseCoopers and other firms of the worldwide 7,407
network of PricewaterhouseCoopers

FE T LI A B RS T % A R AR T LK A 2 BR A A%

) 85
— other auditors

HoAAZ Wi

Non-audit services

TR BB

2,748

— PricewaterhouseCoopers and other firms of the worldwide 8,905
network of PricewaterhouseCoopers

B T LI A B T S T % A R A T ALK A 2 BR A A%

) 85
— other auditors

Ho A AZ Wi

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following a specific
enquiry, each of the Directors confirmed that he/she has complied
with the Model Code throughout the year.

Social Responsibility

The Group is committed to its corporate social responsibility
through participation in various charitable activities, with the aim to
contribute to the society.

To support the development of community service, the Group has
made donations to different charity organisations and sponsored
a variety of charitable events during the year, such as “Hike for
Hospice 2013” of Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care,
“HKGCC Free Ride Day” organised by the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce, “Chevalier Blood Donation Day” co-
organised with the Hong Kong Red Cross, “Community Chest
Corporate Challenge 2013” and various projects organised by the
Community Chest of Hong Kong. The Group’s contribution to and
caring for the society has been widely recognised and was conferred
the award of “Caring Company Logo” by the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service.
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Social Responsibility (continued)

To take a further step to repay the community, a volunteer team
— “Chevalier Cares” was formed and has actively participated in
different voluntary programs and served the people in need including,
the elderly, the children, the disabled and low income family. With
the ambition to nurture the next generation and enrich their learning
opportunities, the Group has also supported various programs
organised by universities, including Chinese University of Hong
Kong, the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and HKU SPACE.

Being a pioneer in the environment engineering industry, the
Group also shows its dedication and contribution to environmental
protection through participating in the “Take a Brake Low Carbon
Action — Corporate Green Driving Award Scheme” organised
by Friends of the Earth. Moreover, the Group has a committed
partnership with WWF, a well-established conservation non-
governmental organisation, to contribute to sustainable
development of our environment.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. During the year
under review, the Company Secretary has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening a general meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposit at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong.

The meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.

Putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary and deposit at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or by e-mail to
enquiry@chevalier.com.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

Putting forward proposal at general meeting (“GM”)
Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a resolution
at GM. The number of shareholders shall represent not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM, or shall not
less than one hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied by
a statement with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at the GM. It must also
be signed by all of the shareholders concerned and be deposited
at Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Company Secretary.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses giving the
notice of the resolution and circulating the statement submitted by
the shareholders concerned under applicable laws and rules.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a
person for election as a director is posted on the website of the
Company.

Investor and Shareholder Relations

The Group’s senior management maintains close communications
with investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by various
channels including individual interviews and meetings. The Group
also responds promptly to request for information and queries from
the investors.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or Management directly.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group timely to
the shareholders and the public through the publication of interim
and annual reports, circulars, notices and announcements. The
financial and other information relating to the Group are disclosed
on the Company’s website at http://www.chevalier.com.

Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the
Company

During the reporting period, no amendment had been made to the
Memorandum of Association and Bye-Laws of the Company.
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The Directors present to shareholders their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities are shown on pages 159 to 168.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March
2013 analysed by operating segments are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 54. An interim
dividend of HK$0.20 per share was paid on Tuesday, 5 February
2013. The Directors now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.65 per share in cash, with an option granted to
shareholders to receive new and fully paid shares of HK$1.25 each
in the share capital of the Company in lieu of cash or partly in cash
and partly in shares under the scrip dividend scheme (the “Scrip
Dividend Scheme”). The circular containing details of the Scrip
Dividend Scheme and the relevant election form will be sent to
shareholders on or about Friday, 11 October 2013.

The Scrip Dividend Scheme is conditional upon the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange granting the listing of and
permission to deal in the new shares to be issued under the Scrip
Dividend Scheme. Final dividend will be distributed and the share
certificates issued under the Scrip Dividend Scheme will be sent to
shareholders on or about Tuesday, 12 November 2013.

Closure of Register of Members

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 2
September 2013 to Friday, 6 September 2013, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard
Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 30 August
2013.

Report of the Directors
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Closure of Register of Members (continued)

The record date for entitlement to the proposed final dividend is
Thursday, 19 September 2013. For determining the entitlement to
the proposed final dividend (subject to the passing of an ordinary
resolution by the shareholders of the Company at the AGM), the
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
16 September 2013 to Thursday, 19 September 2013, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Standard Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 13 September 2013.

Share Capital
Movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set
out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves
Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2013, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders amounted to HK$719,127,000 (2012:
HK$975,930,000).

Investment Properties
Movements in investment properties of the Group during the year
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Bank Borrowings
Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2013 are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Summary/Financial Review
A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown
on pages 2 to 5 and on pages 18 to 23 respectively.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s revenue and purchases of the year attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers respectively were less
than 30%. None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(whom to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers or five largest customers.

Major Properties
Particulars of major properties of the Group as at 31 March 2013 are
set out on pages 29 to 32.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group employed approximately 3,400 full-time staff under
its subsidiaries globally as at 31 March 2013. Total staff costs
amounted to HK$854 million for the year ended 31 March 2013.
The remuneration policies of the Group are reviewed periodically
on the basis of the nature of job, market trend, company
performance and individual performance. Other staff benefits
include bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical schemes
and retirement schemes.

Donations
During the year, the Group made donations of HK$13,719,000 to
charitable bodies.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws although there are no restriction against such rights under
the laws in Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.
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Report of the Directors
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Directors
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman)

Mr KUOK Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr TAM Kwok Wing (Deputy Managing Director)

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

Mr HO Chung Leung

Mr MA Chi Wing

Miss Lily CHOW

Non-Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph?

Mr SUN Kai Dah, George*

Mr YANG Chuen Liang, Charles?

Professor POON Chung Kwong?
(appointed on 28 December 2012)

Dr KO Chan Gock, William

*  Independent Non-Executive Director

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Messrs CHOW
Vee Tsung, Oscar, HO Chung Leung, SUN Kai Dah, George and
Professor POON Chung Kwong shall retire from office at the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election. The Non-Executive Directors are subject to the same
retirement requirements as the Executive Directors.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a material
interest subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business
During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any
business constituting a competing business to the Group.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Securities

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporation, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the register
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Interests in the Company - Shares
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Approximate

Personal Family percentage

Name of Directors Capacity interests interests Total of interest
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0/0

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 169,510,088* - 169,510,088 60.24
JE IR Hai A A

KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 100,058 - 100,058 0.04
L Ha A A

TAM Kwok Wing Beneficial owner 172,186 33,082 205,268 0.07
[ 2 HaHEA A

HO Chung Leung Beneficial owner 40,000 - 40,000 0.01
(EEN Hai A A

*  Dr CHOW Yei Ching beneficially owned 169,510,088 shares of the
Company, representing approximately 60.24% of the issued share
capital of the Company. These shares were same as those shares
disclosed in the section “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in
Securities” below.

As at 31 March 2013, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company, no other person has interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of
the SFO); or are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
recorded in the register referred to therein; or are required, pursuant
to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
R

Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of the Company on 20 September
2002. The Scheme was fully complied with Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules. The Scheme had expired on 19 September 2012. During the
year and up to the date of its expiry, no share option was granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Scheme. There was no
outstanding option under the Scheme at the beginning of the year
and up to the date of its expiry.

Particulars of the share option scheme is set out in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Management Contracts

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into or subsisted
during the year.

Retirement Schemes
The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for
the benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Schemes”) and Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes (the “MPF Schemes”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000.
The ORSO Schemes are funded by monthly contributions from both
employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to 7.5% of the
employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of service with the
Group. For members of the MPF Schemes, the Group contributes
5% of the relevant payroll costs per employee, at a maximum of
HK$1,250 per month currently, to the mandatory contribution of the
MPF Schemes.

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in
countries or locations where the Group operates. The Group is
required to make defined contributions at rates calculated as a
certain percentage or sum of the monthly payroll.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to
the consolidated income statement during the year amounted to
HK$38.5 million against which no forfeited contributions have been
deducted.

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in note 45
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities
As at 31 March 2013, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company, the interests and short positions
of the persons or corporations in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which have been disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

_B e RN,

Report of the Directors
G

E R Z w6 o7 B

R SRS S H o A
R EEATBORBTA > T I AL80E MR A
A ) B 0 SECAT R BB O o T ZB ARG 55 I
I B0 )5 XV 4652 123 4 S 0 S 1
AR BORRR BRI A A R R R 25 0 £
G 91433 6 e A 2 L P 2 2 I e
m

Approximate

Number of percentage

Substantial shareholders Capacity Shares held of interest

FRBH Sy 53¢ Oy HESERER

%o

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 169,510,088 60.24
JEL IR Ha A A

MIYAKAWA Michiko Beneficial owner 169,510,088* 60.24
HINEE T A A

*  Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr
Chow Yei Ching, is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
169,510,088 shares held by Dr Chow.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, so far as is known
to the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other
person has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company.

Arrangement for Acquisition of Shares or
Debentures

Except for the share option scheme adopted by the Company, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors
R

Corporate Governance

The Board of the Company is committed to maintain high standards
of corporate governance. In the opinion of the Directors, the
Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in
the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 March 2013, with deviations from
code provisions A.4.1 and A.6.7 which have already been stated in
the Corporate Governance Report of the Annual Report. Detailed
information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages 33 to
42 of the Annual Report.

Changes in Directors’ Biographical Details
Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change of
Directors’ biographical details since the date of the Company’s
Interim Report 2012-2013 is set out as follows:

Dr CHOW Ming Kuen, Joseph was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. on
17 June 2013.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change of Directors’
biographical details required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of Public Float

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage
of the Company’s share which is in the hands of the public exceeds
25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares as at 27 June
2013, the latest practicable date to ascertain such information prior
to the issue of this annual report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Messrs
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2013
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chevalier
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 168, which comprise the
consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 31 March
2013, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
P8 ST AZ AR o

Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2013, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 June 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

Ak 7 W i

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BEF—=F=H=1T—HILFZE

2013 2012
TE =4 R
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 3 BT T 0
Revenue WA 5 4,189,258 3,849,780
Cost of sales B LA (3,087,616) (2,912,902)
Gross profit EF| 1,101,642 936,878
Other income, net HAbUC A > EE 6 147,196 53,235
Other gains, net HAobs £5 > wR5E 7 617,039 389,830
Selling and distribution costs S S AR B AR (507,319) (482,957)
Administrative expenses ATE (196,340) (179,471)
Operating profit KL A 1,162,218 717,515
Share of results of associates ST A W ) AR 96,583 94,478
Share of results of jointly controlled entities i fif 3t [/ 43¢ i 1> 3E 2E 45 (18,611) (62,033)
Gain on disposal of an associate B — [ 0 B 2 il 47(d) = 44,333
1,240,190 794,293
Finance income WA 8 14,606 8,528
Finance costs P52 H 8 (74,403) (31,705)
Finance costs, net BN > FE 8 (59,797) (23,177)
Profit before taxation o ot 1 Vi ) 9 1,180,393 771,116
Income tax expenses RET I 10 (97,107) (67,267)
Profit for the year A B e B 1,083,286 703,849
Attributable to: JEAL 5
Equity holders of the Company AL FBRHERF AN 1,011,923 657,897
Non-controlling interests P S 4 71,363 45,952
1,083,286 703,849
Earnings per share IR A
- basic (HK$ per share) — FEA (AR ) 11 3.64 2.37
— diluted (HK$ per share) — T (B IR ) 11 3.64 2.37
Dividends i1 358 12 238,414 263,686

The notes on pages 63 to 168 are integral parts of these consolidated $63H 168 H X Mtak I 55 45 & M R 2 4
financial statements. JREB B o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Vo d /N YN
FRE AR R
For the year ended 31 March 2013
BEZ—-=F=H=1T—HIFE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
W T o0 W T IT
Profit for the year A R A 1,083,286 703,849
Other comprehensive income for the year  4F 3 il 4 ifi i 25
Exchange difference on translation of BRSNS A R B A R K
operations of overseas subsidiaries, L ¥ EE 2
associates and jointly controlled entities BN 58 B 18,358 75,701
Fair value surplus of properties upon S EREY RN L
transfer to investment properties N FAE BB 31,833 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale w2 B
investments transferred to consolidated GRIEN GEELEEE

income statement SEA M as R 4,639 765

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale B R 2 BB
investments transferred to consolidated i 4 4
income statement ER e & (289) (8,669)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale L 2 S B )
investments, net R (15,462) 64
Fair value adjustments on the derivative T 2y Bl T B Y
financial instruments designated as A1 A= s T H.
cash flow hedge in respect of interest rate A BRI 40 5 20
swap contracts N AR 41 -
Exchange difference released upon H A TR o ) BT AR B
disposal of an associate HINIE 58 4602 B = 1,492
Other comprehensive income for the year, A JE HA A T I A
net of tax Rl 1% 39,120 69,353
Total comprehensive income for the year AP BE A i WK i AR A 1,122,406 773,202
Attributable to: JEAL 5
Equity holders of the Company AL FBRHERF AN 1,050,029 720,910
Non-controlling interests I P JHEE 1 72,377 52,292
1,122,406 773,202
Note: BFRE -

T HAb A TR B TR 2 JH S SR SH 2 o

Items shown within other comprehensive income have no tax effect.

He3EHE168H X Wil It &4 4 BBtk 2 4l
B o

The notes on pages 63 to 168 are integral parts of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B3 S 55K Dt e

As at 31 March 2013
REFE—=FEH=1—H

2013 2012
e S b S
Note HK$’000 HK$000
B 5 BT T o0
Non-current assets Ik i By
Investment properties Ev-L7E 14 3,407,266 2,679,689
Property, plant and equipment W~ B KA 15 1,678,889 1,329,292
Prepaid lease payments FEAHH S IE 16 _ 345
Goodwill ok 17 681,743 129,696
Other intangible assets HAth TV & 7 18 28,023 33,643
Interests in associates T A B N ] 2 RE AR 20 973,514 929,028
Interests in jointly controlled entities ST A L [R] 2 S 2 AR 21 1,223,129 675,133
Available-for-sale investments Al it 2 s 22 192,892 230,099
Properties under development R 23 702,569 803,067
Deferred tax assets % AR TR 37 26,323 13,472
Other non-current assets HoAth FF 7 B 24 106,137 83,485
9,020,485 6,906,949
Current assets B A
Amounts due from associates R A B 7 T 20 33,830 32,163
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities  J i3t 7] 3 1 A 2EIE 3 21 378,065 557,286
Available-for-sale investments AR EZ G 22 = 8,109
Investments at fair value through U FAPINIEETPN S E Y 82
profit or loss & 25 405,694 292,759
Inventories by 26 203,694 176,279
Properties for sale G LVES 27 57,248 110,512
Properties under development )k 23 211,974 -
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JREMSTNR 3K~ 7 4% 4 M AT RO 28 942,101 1,322,995
Amounts due from customers for A # TR IE 1 & P i
contract work P ¢ 29 175,155 103,317
Derivative financial instruments firE B T A 30 82,364 43,288
Prepaid tax TA AT B IE 5,153 3,235
Bank balances and cash WATEE AR M4 31 1,280,016 1,035,209
3,775,294 3,685,152
Current liabilities wE A
Amounts due to non-controlling interests TEASH IF 152 HHE 55 I 4,644 6,143
Dividend payable to non-controlling JREAST IF P A 45
interests il:958 2,400 5,529
Amounts due to customers for contract work — st& &) L ME [ % 5 S0 A2 3008 29 582,625 622,607
Derivative financial instruments A HE P T H 30 30,921 46,869
Creditors, bills payable, deposits and FEATIRGR - EAT SRS - AR
accruals JEEE 32 912,430 966,772
Unearned insurance premiums and I TE {5 B e K R o 1 L B
unexpired risk reserves G4 111,391 117,678
Outstanding insurance claims R PR B = 33 276,931 202,837
Deferred income IEAEWLA 23,628 20,846
Current income tax liabilities EHRTER A E 55,990 33,467
Bank borrowings AT K 34 944,285 1,559,426
2,945,245 3,582,174
Net current assets B R 830,049 102,978
Total assets less current liabilities H8 % A B AL 9,850,534 7,009,927
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

LR A BRI R
As at 31 March 2013
W oE—=ZFEEA=+—H
2013 2012
R =4 ZE T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 T T o0
Capital and reserves JBe AR K fik
Share capital &S 35 351,734 346,955
Reserves [Fdi 36 5,469,085 4,646,770
Shareholders’ funds JE R 4 5,820,819 4,993,725
Non-controlling interests IE P I HE 75 390,223 323,845
Total equity A HE 25 6,211,042 5,317,570
Non-current liabilities Ik i By £
Unearned insurance premiums 5% FIE {4 gz 2 75,476 104,628
Bank borrowings SRATE 2K 34 3,378,506 1,420,845
Deferred tax liabilities R SUE L T 4 37 185,510 166,884
3,639,492 1,692,357
Total equity and non-current liabilities A BE i B2 IF T B £ A 9,850,534 7,009,927

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2013 and signed on its behalf

by:

KUOK Hoi Sang
PR itg A
Director

EzH

The notes on pages 63 to 168 are integral parts of these consolidated

financial statements.

HHEF AN T - =N B AHHE >
TONEFACREE

CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

JH £t 1

Director

2
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Company Statement of Financial Position

o W) S 55K Dt e

As at 31 March 2013

RoE =A== H
2013 ) 2012
—Er—=hE TR TR
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
fi 3 W T T oo
Non-current assets T & A
Interests in subsidiaries JIT A B A m) 2 RE 4 19 3,189,585 2,986,148
Interests in associates T A N ] 2 RE AR 20 89,594 89,594
Other intangible assets HoAb IR & 599 599
Available-for-sale investments it E 2 R 22 192,892 225,460
3,472,670 3,301,801
Current assets A b2 gz
Amounts due from subsidiaries JHRE oA o BB 2 ) W 19 2,480,524 1,985,227
Amounts due from associates RSB 7 N R 2K 20 38,083 -
Available-for-sale investments it E 2 R 22 = 8,109
Investments at fair value through F2 N B A B 4 b 31
profit or loss paid -y 25 48,380 51,044
Debtors, deposits and prepayments EMOMR 3R~ A7t 3 4 BT RIE 28 1,530 1,745
Derivative financial instruments A B e TR 30 62 202
Bank balances and cash SRATH A B & 31 215,955 325,406
2,784,534 2,371,733
Current liabilities Wi B £ £
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST B JE 2 w3 19 2,777,599 2,636,112
Amount due to an associate AT — [T B 3 N w3 20 = 5,795
Derivative financial instruments fi A s T H 30 5,870 21,715
Creditors, deposits and accruals TEATIRE R ~ T A4 N FEEEE 32 15,719 7,044
Bank borrowings BRAT K 34 47,000 1,002,000
2,846,188 3,672,666
Net current liabilities B £ A (61,654) (1,300,933)
Total assets less current liabilities H8 % A B AL 3,411,016 2,000,868
Capital and reserves Jie A % fits
Share capital A 35 351,734 346,955
Reserves Fdi 36 1,207,011 1,438,913
Total equity HERE 25 1,558,745 1,785,868
Non-current liability LB f 0
Bank borrowings AT 34 1,852,271 215,000
Total equity and non-current liability HERE 25 B Ik I B £ 0 3,411,016 2,000,868

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2013 and signed on its behalf
by:

KUOK Hoi Sang

Y
Di

AR

rector

The notes on pages 63 to 168 are integral parts of these consolidated

financial statements.

MERER F—ZFERA L AAHE > Wb
THIEHAREE

CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

J 4 1E

Director

FO3HE168H Z Mt JI M E 456 MBIk 2 4

By o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2013
B R - = HIREE

Equity
attributable
to equity
holders of the ~ Non-controlling Total
Company interests equity
AR m R
T NGRS e R 4 HAHE £
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i T T IT
At 1 April 2011 AR ——HUH—H 4,479,565 399,833 4,879,398
Profit for the year A U5 657,897 45,952 703,849
Exchange difference on translation of 457 g 41 bt 8§ 23 ) ~ B 2
operations of overseas subsidiaries, [ 3[R FE i {26 2 25
associates and jointly controlled ST E A 2 AN
entities SRR 69,361 6,340 75,701
Impairment loss on available-for- DIREE i § il
sale investments transferred to CRIEL G 87 R
consolidated income statement AR 765 - 765
Gain on disposal of available-for- AW & 2
sale investments transferred to PO W A A A
consolidated income statement AR R (8,669) - (8,669)
Change in fair value of available-for- T {it ) # 2 $ G A9 A RAE ST
sale investments, net I 64 - 64
Exchange difference released upon 45 — [ B /3 )
disposal of an associate JiT 5 B 2 AN St 4
(note 47(d)) (Bt 7E47(d)) 1,492 - 1,492
Total comprehensive income AR AR AR
for the year Mo 720,910 52,292 773,202
Dividends paid 2R E (208,173) - (208,173)
Dividends paid to non-controlling AT 7 I 22 A £
interests JB & - (57,511) (57,511)
Share options granted by a listed — ] LTI R A FR T
subsidiary — consultancy services i I HE — B HE L
received bt B 3,009 2,549 5,558
Acquisition of additional interests in IS} 8§ A 7l 2
subsidiaries HHOME £
— Sharp Rise (note 47(c)) — FIFF (F5E47(c)) - (77,004) (77,004)
— other subsidiaries — oAt B g 2 ) (1,254) 204 (1,050)
Disposal of a listed subsidiary H A — ] T BB 2
(note 47(c)) (Pft&E47(c)) (332) 3,482 3,150
At 31 March 2012 e s i Ry el & 4,993,725 323,845 5,317,570
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
H L 44

L EetEfR ) R

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE R A = HIREE

Equity
attributable
to equity
holders of the  Non-controlling Total
Company interests equity
s 2 ) fie i
Fi A N A HE 2 Ik 4 It it i SR £
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT oo BT oo T
At 1 April 2012 W AR — [ 4,993,725 323,845 5,317,570
Profit for the year A Vi 1,011,923 71,363 1,083,286
Exchange difference on translation of 55 S A | ~ B A
operations of overseas subsidiaries,  J&J:[m] 2 il {26 2 25
associates and jointly controlled JTE A 2 AN
entities SRR 17,344 1,014 18,358
Fair value surplus of properties upon  #i#5 Z= 5 G SR 3 >
transfer to investment properties NV RR S 31,833 - 31,833
Impairment loss on available-for- I 2 BOER)
sale investments transferred to (B R
consolidated income statement SRR R 4,639 = 4,639
Gain on disposal of available-for- et &
sale investments transferred to it =GP LI E L 55 &
consolidated income statement e (e (289) - (289)
Change in fair value of available-for- A {8 > H &K A (S »
sale investments, net iR (15,462) = (15,462)
Fair value adjustments on the 1858 2y B Ui B
derivative financial instruments A B s T
designated as cash flow hedge in A7 B A e A 49 1Y
respect of interest rate swap contracts /A SL{H # % 41 - 41
Total comprehensive income AF A T AR
for the year Pt 1,050,029 72,377 1,122,406
Dividends appropriated B IRIEE (263,686) - (263,686)
Issue of shares under scrip dividend R4 LA BAC B 5t
scheme AT IR A 40,751 = 40,751
Dividends paid to non-controlling CAT7 IR P IO RE 45
interests JB R - (12,942) (12,942)
Capital contribution by JEPEIAE £ B A
..noncontrollinginterests .. BA ... ... )0
At 31 March 2013 R E—=F=H=1—H 5,820,819 390,223 6,211,042
The notes on pages 63 to 168 are integral parts of these consolidated FO3HE168H Z ik 4 MM Rz 4
financial statements. R o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A ERER

For the year ended 31 March 2013
B R - = HIREE

2013 2012
e R
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B} 5 T o0 BT IC
Operating activities REEY
Cash generated from operation e [ 4% 7 B 4 47(a) 558,758 226,524
Interest paid EATHLE (93,845) (46,429)
Profits tax paid BT R (72,857) (89,796)
Profits tax refund 23 BR 3K 1,100 1,265
Net cash from operating activities PHER Y- 37 Pkt 393,156 91,564
Investing activities a7
Interest received AR 14,606 8,528
Dividends received from associates BB A\ 2 S 78,034 60,300
Dividends received from jointly controlled B tdk[ml #E il {2 2
entities % 2,831 -
Dividends received from listed securities Bl s R 2 B 44,931 22,147
Purchase of investment properties LR -LY/ES (15,533) -
Proceeds from disposal of investment R
properties JREE e 8,088 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B &% Fﬁlﬁ& i} (95,466) (74,252)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - BRE M
and equipment and prepaid lease Tﬁﬁ?ﬂgyﬁﬁz
payments RET e 6,051 32,998
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WA DA 45 TE 2 B4 Tk R A
— senior housing business AT 47(b)(i) (928,204) (266,466)
— a company owning a property in —BEA LA R — Y
Kwai Chung 0 R /A 47(b)(ii) = (573,460)
— a group of companies owning a property — AN E AR —THYE
in Tsing Yi Island i — 40723 A 47(b)(iii) = (286,481)
— other subsidiaries — oA B Jag 24 W - (1,050)
Net cash inflow from disposal of AU & TH 2 Blg A A
- CPHL —HtE 47(c) - 72,700
— other subsidiaries — HAU K 2 W) 2,388 -
- subsidiaries and their related jointly — i JeE N T Mg ECAH R 3 A
controlled entity 2 - 59,544
- remaining 25% interest in Sekisui SPR —Sekisui SPRER T 25%7HE #i 47(d) - 48,383
Capital contribution by non-controlling FEPEIRAE 4 B A
interests A 6,943 -
Purchase of other intangible assets N A 4 = (500)
Proceeds from disposal of other intangible 4 :.,\ﬁﬁﬂiﬁ/ﬁﬁz
assets JIr 5 KA = 48
Investment in an associate WA R 2 & ) -
Advances to associates T B 5 2 W) T AR 22 B3 (69,656) (134,021)
Repayments from associates A B A T 2 R RIE 44,588 5,999
Advances to jointly controlled entities I e 7] 28 il 4 2E P 1 2 2K (384,916) (538,875)
Repayments from jointly controlled entities 8¢ [ 4 ] 2 il 4> 26 2 35 3K0H 534 -
Purchase of available-for-sale investments B B A {i i 4 2 #it % (827) (22,315)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale 8 Al fit 8 > &Y
investments A5 B OH 30,681 11,859
Net cash used in investing activities R B R B 2 Bl & WA (1,254,931) (1,574,914)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GABERER

For the year ended 31 March 2013
BE R A = HIREE

2013 2012
e g
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B T W T T T
Financing activities il BB
Dividends paid oA (222,935) (208,173)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests £} 5 I # B 5 i 5. (12,942) (57,511)
Drawn down of bank borrowings PRIUSRAT 7K 3,092,987 1,925,264
Repayment of bank borrowings TR BRAT 3K (1,751,651) (620,982)
Increase in pledged deposits E R AE S 0 (182,456) (50,190)
Net cash from financing activities = AAMYCR#ZHEw®E . 923003 988,408 _
Increase/(decrease) in cash and HEeRBE%5HED
cash equivalents ¥, (W) 61,228 (494,942)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning WAERZ B4 R
of the year e ED 982,580 1,473,968
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates /Ml 5 58 B > i 2 1,123 3,554
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year R4ERZ B & KB EZEY 1,044,931 982,580
Analysis of balances of cash and cash Bl R B &S HM &1
equivalents iz
Bank balances and cash WATEE A M4 1,280,016 1,035,209
Less: Pledged deposits W BRI (235,085) (52,629)
1,044,931 982,580
The notes on pages 63 to 168 are integral parts of these consolidated FO3EHE168H Z Mt I IL 4G MBSk 2 A
financial statements. R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General Information

Chevalier International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
listed company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12,
Bermuda and 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi
Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong respectively. The Company has its
shares listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while
the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar, which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2013.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties, available-
for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or
loss.

As at 31 March 2013, the Company’s current liabilities exceed its
current assets by HK$61,654,000. The directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) believe that the Company will continue as a going
concern and consequently prepared the financial statements on
going concern basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

A 7 B 5 e A P

— &k

HAEEBEEBARAR (TARKHE]) 25—
8 B BTG AR AR R SO 2 A BR A E]
A ] A S T A S 2 M hE
/% Bl & Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda 2 75 i JURE & 47
B 898 H - pi 2 b 2248 o H A F
522 5 B BRA A (THR 22 B 1) BT o

Aoy ) 2 E B Iy BRI T
i 2 T 2 SR HOR A A R I RE49

PESE £ BB iR DL I 2 51 > BLA N w2
TREE A  REEFMBHRRCO R ZF
—ZAERHA AL H R E S E R .

HOR 8 RHBOR M

A B 55 R R T 4R ) 2 T B R
I o 2 WA R B - BB R
CLALIE R 2 912 A 4R

(@) SR

A ) B F (AR [ A SR )
ZEEMBERRTIRE TR G T A g
(T FBEFMAE ) TS FEMHR
Q) (7 i B 55 o ME U ) A S o
W0 A5 B A5 3 T 45 JRR S AR 40 A
o RRE AW - b & 2 B RS
B N RESI A SR 2 I S
7 R A5 (LR A AR TR ) 2 EAl T
(LHIE

Mo FE—="HF=H=1+—H A
A i B R A B R
61,654,0007C » RAFZEF ([HEF])
AEAE AN w5 AT FR AR > IR IR A
2 LR AR P R K -

R 7 i 5 5 O U A S 2 B A S
AR ZOR M A st wt > I
SRR T A AT AR AR T UK 2 AR
R E HLVBT © £ PR R R B R4
B T W R KN BB M 2 > B
BB f e MBI R AT R AR R B Al R
I e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(M

(ii)

Amendment to existing standard that is effective for
the Group’s financial year beginning on 1 April 2012

The following amendment to existing standard, that is relevant
to the Group’s operation, is mandatory for financial year of the
Group beginning on 1 April 2012:

Disclosures — Transfers of financial
assets

HKFRS 7 (amendment)

The adoption of the amendment to existing standard does
not have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
results and financial position nor any substantial changes in
the Group’s accounting policies and the presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Standards, amendments and improvements to existing
standards that have been issued but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group
The following new or revised standards, amendments and
improvements to existing standards, that are relevant to the
Group’s operation, have been issued but not yet effective for
the financial year beginning on 1 April 2012 and have not
been early adopted:

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

HKAS 1 (amendment)

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee benefits

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate financial statements

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in associates and joint

ventures
HKAS 32 (amendment)  Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities
HKFRS 7 (amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities;
Mandatory effective date and
transition disclosures

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 (amendment)  Financial instruments — Mandatory
effective date and transition
disclosures

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated financial statements —
Transition guidance

HKFRS 10 (amendment)

HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements

HKFRS 11 (amendment) Joint arrangements — Transition
guidance

NS

2 HEOREFFBUORBEE (40)

(@) BBk (4)

@

(ii)
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(ii) Standards, amendments and improvements to existing
standards that have been issued but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group (continued)

Disclosure of interests in other
entities

Disclosure of interests in other
entities — Transition guidance

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 (amendment)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurements

Annual Improvements
Project

Improvements to HKFRS published
in June 2012

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the
related impact to the Group but is not yet in a position to state
whether there will be any substantial changes to the Group’s
significant accounting policies and presentation of financial
information.

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
March.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another
entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the entity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
agreement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at the
fair values at the acquisition date. There is a choice, on the basis
of each acquisition to measure the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR A B R I E

2 HERKEFEFEORBEE (40

(a)

(b)

B LR A (41
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (continued)

(c)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of any
previous entity interest in the acquiree at the date of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides ensure
of impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests is the equity in a subsidiary which is not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent. The Group treats
transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with
equity owners of the Group, instead of transactions with parties
not within the Group. For purchases of additional interests in
subsidiaries from non-controlling shareholders, the difference
between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals of partial interests to non-
controlling shareholders are also recorded in equity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Goodwill/discount on acquisitions

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, an associate
or a jointly controlled entity, representing the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Group’s interest in net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the acquiree at the acquisitions date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisitions-by-
acquisitions basis, either at the fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportional share of the recognised amount of acquiree’s
net identifiable assets.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate or a jointly
controlled entity is included in the cost of the investment of the
relevant associate or jointly controlled entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR A B R I E

2 HEAEEBORBE 50

(c) VBCJ 2 A 2 v B e (4E)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(c) Goodwill/discount on acquisitions (continued)

Separately recognised goodwill is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if there is indication that goodwill might be
impaired. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and jointly
controlled entities is included in investments in respective
associates and jointly controlled entities and is tested for
impairment as part of the overall balance. For the purposes of
impairment testing, separately recognised goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUSs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the
CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement and is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, an associate or a jointly
controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised
is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary,
an associate or a jointly controlled entity represents the excess
of the share of net fair value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of the business
combination and is recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement.

Contingent liabilities of an acquiree are recognised at the date of
the acquisition if the fair value of the contingent liabilities can be
measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are initially measured at
fair value at the date of acquisition.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(d) Interests in associates

(e)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and of changes in other comprehensive
income of the associates, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability
is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the relevant associate, except to the extent that
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case, the full amount of losses is recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interests in
associates is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. The
results of associates are accounted for on the basis of dividend
received and receivable during the year.

Joint ventures

Jointly controlled assets

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint venture
arrangements directly, constituted as jointly controlled assets, the
Group’s share of the jointly controlled assets and share of any
liabilities incurred jointly with other venturers are recognised in
the consolidated financial statements and classified according to
their natures. Liabilities and expenses incurred directly in respect of
interests in jointly controlled assets are accounted for on an accrual
basis.

Income from the sale or use of the Group’s share of the output of
the jointly controlled assets, together with its share of any expenses
incurred, are recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to/from the
Group.

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled
entities.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
(e) Joint ventures (continued)

()

Jointly controlled entities

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, interests in
jointly controlled entities are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in equity
of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional
share of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled
entity.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of
the Group, unrealised profits or losses are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the relevant jointly controlled entity,
except to the extent that unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case, the full amount
of losses is recognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received or receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity
is recognised in the income statement.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(f) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged or cancelled, or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid or payable is recognised
in income statement.

@

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into either financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are set
out below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At the end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in the income statement in the period in
which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each reporting period end date subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including debtors
and receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities and bank balances) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are
reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the
asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject
to a restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

As at 31 March 2013, loans and receivables represent amounts
due from associates and jointly controlled entities, debtors and
receivables, bank balances and amounts due from subsidiaries
of the Company.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
(f) Financial instruments (continued)

(M

(ii)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as any of the other
categories set out above. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income, until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
equity is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the income statement. Any impairment losses on
available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in the income
statement.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through the income statement in subsequent
periods. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair
value of the investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment losses.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
losses will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect
of financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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ARG TS TR M R

NS

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 HREEHBORBEE (5)
(continued)
(f) Financial instruments (continued) f) WHETHE)

(i) Financial liabilities and equity (continued) (i) B AR EA (4)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
financial liabilities held for trading on initial recognition.
At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are re-measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised directly in the income statement in the period in
which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank borrowings,
outstanding insurance claims, creditors and payables,
dividend payable to non-controlling interests, amounts due
to non-controlling interests, amount due to an associate and
amounts due to subsidiaries of the Company are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(iii) Derivatives

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage
its exposure against currency risk and interest rate risk.
Such derivatives are measured at fair value. Changes in fair
values of such derivatives are recognised directly in the
income statement, except for those derivatives qualified for
hedge accounting are recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
separated from the relevant host contracts and deemed as
held-for-trading when the economic characteristics and
risks of the embedded derivatives are not closely related
to those of the host contracts, and the combined contracts
are not measured at fair value through profit or loss. In all
other circumstances, derivatives embedded are not separated
and are accounted for together with the host contracts in
accordance with appropriate standards. Where the Group
needs to separate an embedded derivative but is unable
to measure the embedded derivative, the entire combined
contracts are treated as designated at fair value though profit or
loss on initial recognition.

Gains and losses from the changes in the fair value of the
derivatives (excluding the interest component and those
derivatives qualified for hedge accounting) are recognised in
other income, net. The interest component is reported as part
of interest income from investments included in revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B H R Mt
2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 HREENBORBEE ()

(continued)

(g) Investment properties (g) HEWE

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating leases
and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating
leases is classified and accounted for as investment property
when the rest of the definition of investment property is met. The
operating lease is accounted for as if it was a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including
related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
property is carried at fair value. Fair value is determined by
professional valuation conducted as at the end of the reporting
period. Changes in fair value are recognised in the income
statement.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of
the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement as
part of the other gains, net.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value
at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting
purposes. If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this
item at the date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation
of property, plant and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if
a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in the income statement.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Leasehold land classified as
finance lease commences depreciation from the time when the
land interest becomes available for its intended use. Depreciation
on leasehold land classified as finance lease and other assets is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives at the
following rates per annum:

Annual charge

Building Over the shorter of 20 to 50 years or

the remaining lease term

Leasehold land classified
as finance lease

Over the remaining lease term

Leasehold improvements

Machinery

Furniture, fixtures, office
equipment and motor
vehicles

Others

Over the remaining lease term
10%
10% - 33'3%

10% - 20%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term and their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is
determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income
statement.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments classified as operating leases represent
upfront premiums paid for land cost. These amounts are charged
to income statement over the term of relevant land leases on a
straight-line basis. The amortisation during the period before the
commencement and after the completion of the construction of the
properties (except for investment properties and properties under
development) is expensed in the income statement. Impairment
loss, if any, will be charged to income statement.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

()

k)

)

(m

~

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately and
from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value
respectively. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised.

Properties under development

Properties under development which are intended for sale upon
completion comprise prepaid lease payments, development
expenditure and borrowing costs capitalised.

The carrying amount is written down immediately to its net
realisable value if it is greater than its cost. The net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
costs to complete development and selling expenses.

Impairment of the Group’s investments in associates and
jointly controlled entities

Management regularly reviews whether there are any indications
of impairment of the Group’s investments in associates and jointly
controlled entities primarily based on value in use calculations.

In determining the value in use, management assesses the present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from their
businesses. Estimates and judgements are applied in determining
these future cash flows and discount rate. Management estimates
the future cash flows based on certain assumptions, such as
revenue growth.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out or weighted
average method. Net realisable value is determined on the basis of
anticipated sales proceeds in the ordinary course of business less
applicable selling expenses.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(n)

(0)

(p)

(q)

Properties for sale

Properties for sale, which comprise prepaid lease payments and
buildings held for resale, are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of properties for sale comprises prepaid
lease payments and related development costs.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised with reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, as measured by the proportion that the value of
work carried out during the year.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred. When it is probable that contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as expense
immediately.

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown
as an amount due from customers for contract work. For contracts
where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as
an amount due to customers for contract work. Amounts received
before the related work is performed are included in the statement
of financial position, as a liability, as creditors. Amounts billed for
work performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in
the statement of financial position under debtors.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks with original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown as a separate current
liability in the statement of financial position.

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and cash
equivalents.

Trade creditors

Trade creditors are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
(r) Provisions and contingencies

(r) B Rk AR

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the
Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be
a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow economic
benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

The Group regards its financial guarantee contracts in respect of
mortgage facilities provided by banks to certain property buyers,
and credit facilities provided by financial institutions to its
subsidiaries, associates, jointly controlled entities and joint venture
partner as insurance contracts.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(s)

(®

(u)

Unearned insurance premiums and unexpired risk reserves
Unearned insurance premiums represent the estimated portions
of the premiums written which relate to periods of insurance
subsequent to the end of the reporting period and are deferred to
subsequent accounting periods. Unearned premiums are computed
on the basis of net premiums written for all classes of insurance.
Net premium written represents gross premiums received or
receivable after deducting reinsurance premiums.

Provision is made for unexpired risks arising from the expected
value of claims and expenses attributable to the unexpired periods
of policies in force which, at the end of the reporting period,
exceeds the unearned premiums provision in relation to such
policies.

Insurance claims

Claims paid and outstanding comprise claims paid, claims reported
but not yet paid as at the end of the reporting period and an
estimate of claims incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) which is
calculated with reference to foreseeable events, past experiences
and trends.

Insurance claims are recognised when they are incurred and
reported. Incurred claims include the losses, related costs and
expenses paid during the year and the change in the reserve for
outstanding claims during the year. Reserves for outstanding claims
are reported on an undiscounted basis which include reserves for
reported claims and reserves for IBNR claims.

Every notified claim is assessed on a case-by-case basis. The
reserve of a reported claim is made by the claims handler based
on his experience and based on the information, documents and
the claim amount submitted by the claimant and is checked by the
officer before updating the information into the claims system. The
reserve is reviewed and revised regularly to reflect the development
of the claim and the change of the market practice.

Reserves for outstanding claims represent estimated liabilities
relating to claims reported and IBNR at the end of the reporting
period after deducting amounts recoverable from reinsurers.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
(v) Revenue recognition

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised using the percentage of completion
method, measured with reference to the value of work carried
out during the period. When the outcome of a contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.

Income from sale of properties is recognised on the execution of a
binding sales agreement or the completion of properties, whichever
is later.

Income from sale of goods such as information technology
equipment, motor vehicles and food and beverage are recognised
when goods are delivered and title to the goods has passed to
the customers. Revenue is arrived at after deduction of any sales
returns, discount and value-added tax.

Income from rendering of services such as provision of
maintenance and property management services, warehouse and
logistics services, hotel operations and senior housing operations
are recognised at the time when services are rendered. Receipts
in advance of provision of services are accounted for as deferred
income.

Premiums for direct insurance business are recognised as income
when an insurance policy is accepted and the relevant debit note is
issued.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis,
with reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to its net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s
rights to receive payment have been established.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the respective leases.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(w) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair values at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement
of financial position as an obligation under finance lease. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction
of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to the income statement, unless they are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs as stated in the
policy below.

Rentals payables under operating leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivables as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over
the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(x) Employee benefits

(M

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

Provision for bonus plans is recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

(iii) Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
including the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes are charged
as an expense as they fall due, net of forfeited contributions.

(iv) Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based compensation
plans. The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of share options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
period is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted at the date of grant, excluding the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest. It recognises the impact
of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

(y) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in
the period in which they are incurred.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(z) Taxation

Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
period. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes income
statement items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit, and is accounted for using the liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, and interests in
associates and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets arising from
investment properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore are
determined based on the presumption that the carrying amount of
such investment properties will be recovered through sale with the
corresponding tax rate applied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B H R Mt
2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 HREENBORBEE ()

(continued)
(aa) Foreign currencies (aa) Hh¥E

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value has determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-
translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the
income statement in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part
of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, which are
recognised in equity in the consolidated financial statements.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items carried at fair value are included in the income statement for
the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange components of that
gain or loss are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income as a separate component of equity, the
exchange fluctuation reserve. Such exchange differences are
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the period in
which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences so arising are recognised in the exchange fluctuation
reserve.

TP A 251 ) S P A 2 22 B 5 R
A LA RE B W LA 2 B (AN ) i
1T 238 5 Y4528 gy W) 2 308 T HE SR 4R 5
FIRE B (A2 A A T E B A
Pl 2 B0 TR o A HUE IR
DASI I 2oy B0 2 B WA T B e 45 0
R8T o e F(H TR LA
W B 2 JF G WL TE B S R S fE
SEEH 20 TR AR o S 1R AR 7
B DUANE By B 2 IR B v T I 2H
B -

TG R ARG B W TE [ IR A 2 S
2 BRI 1 P Y R A A 2R R
AL A S [ AP 265 R L IRy 2
WP JE H T AR 2 T SLZE R BR AN o %5
B S8 ZE BT IR e A BT R R R iR A
ft o A RMHINE 2 B BRI E A
TR AR T E A 2l 2 T % 4] 51
AWt > WESR AT BCRR M i 18 3%
TEHE ST N RS 2 I B WV T A BT AR 2
HE S RHBR AN - A Bl ik 2O 1R 2 1 5
PRI TN B TE AR A TERY o

BRI RS AR S - AR 4 g A
T B KA BT R A IR AL
F 2 B 15 W 2 I S B T
N TS T 45 2 T T P R HE A T
B B e A TR A B i
B RBEWT - MRARESERZ
B TME SR o f7 A2 2l S22 0 () ik
JF A2 T WS A R M i 2 D S A
(OMIE SLAIF B RS ) © "2 DL 223y
T AN SET B 2 BT DA A B WA
RN

R B 1S5 T 7 A 22 2 T
e 2 24 f0 8 B TR i 5 ST
e BRI 2
BT o 7 1 2 M 325 AR SR St 00
Bt i e e -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG TS TR M R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 HREEHBORBEE (5)
(continued)
(ab) Impairment (ab) Ik AA
Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example AT fef P A PR AE 3 A9 T A (49 4 R )
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually DRR RGN - (B S AUET BE IR - &
for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever A S B B 0 el s R R 1 (R AT R
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying S U T IR o B % T AT U (B A
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised w o Yo (R MG 4R A R T (R ]
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its Wi e 455 BRI 2 22 RE TR o T i [m] B LA
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of R 2N SR A0 R B R A B
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. For the (T A 2 P e 2 2 ME o i B UK
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest TEIRE » 2 22 ml 4y B ik ) B 4 i (R
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash- R AR LAY ) 2 IR E AL A o BRI
generating units). Non- financial assets other than goodwill that b 5 B 5% WA 2 I 4 RilE A A B R R
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the T B A B 75 AT LA R BT AR o
impairment at each reporting date.
(ac) Segment reporting (ac) 4 BHH
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with R o Oy A2 B A PR
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision- ER A AT Sy - I G YA
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for B HE R S A R P 2 A PO
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating Ho BES AR H AR S B
segments, has been identified as the Directors that makes strategic KB o
decisions.
Segment assets mainly consist of non-current assets and current OYBUA FE IR AR MBI IR A B
assets as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial & 2 IF VLB P M) A o MR AL
position except deferred tax assets, prepaid tax, unallocated bank THEE - FANBUIE - ROTLRATEAF K
balances and cash, and other unallocated assets. B4 S A R Ay Tl R A o
Segment liabilities mainly consist of current liabilities and non- P AT TR AR A MEHIR DL AR A B
current liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated statement of TR 2 ) B R IR ) B M T
financial position except current income tax liabilities, bank ABLAR - AT RIERIA AT K
borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated liabilities. HoAth TR 43 Wie B fE RSP -
3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies VA 5 T B 4 PR A R BOSR
The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale AR 2 TR TR AR 2
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss, debtors and B A U E B AR 4RI 2 B - R
receivables, derivative financial instruments, creditors and payables, PR RECERIE ~ AT A BB TR~ REATIR 3R S
outstanding insurance claims, amounts due from/to related companies, JEAT SR ~ R PR B FR A - HE AT B
amounts due to non-controlling interests, dividend payable to non- IS AR K ~ MEAST I 42 IEHE SR R~ MEAST IR 4
controlling interests, bank balances and bank borrowings. Details of JRHRERT IS, - SRATHAE RHAT I K  i% %5
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes to the B LB Z 5E 16 i i A BT R 2 A0 B B 5 b B
consolidated financial statements. The risks associated with these B o WA BT TR 2 AR BH R DA B U 5% A
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are JEBG 2 R GAnR o RE AE A
set out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures SERCEE S DLW AR S A A i AT R 2
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and it o
effective manner.
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3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from investments
in debt securities, derivative financial instruments, bills
payable, bank borrowings and floating and fixed rates
bank deposits. Majority of the Group’s bank borrowings
carry interests at floating rates and expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. The management monitors
interest rate exposure and hedges significant interest rate
exposure by using financial instruments such as interest
rate swap contracts. Certain instruments are qualified for
hedge accounting.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had
been increased/decreased by one percentage point and
all other variables were held constant, the post-tax profit
of the Group and the Company, excluding impact of
fair value changes of investments in debt securities and
derivative financial instruments, would decrease/increase
by HK$16,669,000 (2012: HK$14,609,000) and decrease/
increase by HK$7,019,000 (2012: HK$6,908,000)
respectively, resulting mainly from the change in the
borrowing costs of bank borrowings and finance income
of bank deposits.

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign currency risk arising from various currency
exposures. Foreign currency risk arises when the Group’s
recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in
currencies that are not the entities” functional currency.

The Group’s financial assets that are exposed to foreign
currency risk mainly comprise of investments in debts and
equity securities, trade debtors balances arising from sales
made to overseas customers, bank balances and cash and
amounts due from group companies (on entity level). The
Group’s financial liabilities that are exposed to foreign
currency risk mainly arise from overseas purchases and
amounts due to group companies (on entity level). It is
the Group’s policies to ensure that the net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to address short-
term imbalances. The management will continue to
monitor foreign exchange exposure and will consider
economically hedging significant foreign currency
exposure by using financial instruments such as foreign
currency forward contracts should the needs arise.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR A B R I E

3 B R R4S PE H B R BUR ()

3.1 BAR R B R &R
(@) T %R

()

(ii)

el
AR 2 AR SR B A AR
FARE - AT TR - REAS
R SRATIE R T B SOE B
SRATAR AR o AR LEBIHR 5y $RAT
EFLIFEBFIZ5H S > AR
VR 70 TR S B < i A ) S
L B M) S Bt LT A
R i 1 5 200 45 B B T L3
FORA R - &5 T THAFS
BpErar el o

i a=R i N S 15
A 5B T A A AT
SRR IMEREASE - HIARSEH
R AR W) 2 BAR Wi A OR AL 5
T 76 5 B M i A i Es L
HZARE#LZ ) &3
B R AT M8 B2 AR
SRATAF B Z B W AT 43 il
Wb 18 % 16,669,000
g6 ( TFE - A kW
14,609,0007C) K i8> /14
# M 7,019,0007C ( & —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KA T R I R

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 3 W A B PR AR R BUR ()

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WAHs )R B W%(f:‘;ﬁ)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) i )E B (4E)
(ii) Foreign currency risk (continued) (i)  SMIEE i (48)

Financial instruments under foreign currencies (other than
the functional currencies of the Group’s entities) that are
exposed to foreign exchange risk are mainly denominated
in Canadian dollar, Hong Kong dollar, Japanese Yen,
Macau Pataca, Renminbi, Singapore dollar and United
States dollar (“US dollar”). The carrying amounts of the
Group’s (on entity level) and the Company’s foreign
currency denominated financial assets and financial
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

TE 6 A/ TR e 2 71 s A 55 1 A
(NEIESE M2 2 DR B H)
FEOnERTT - %A
NG AR LN L N 1 17
TERFETT(ETT]) BN o A
LT (A2 1) Be A A wl RASH
W oy B 2 B S BB
FUREE H Z iR mEIT

Assets Liabilities
<93 £ 15
The Group AR H 2013 2012 2013 2012
TR CE T DB SE CFR T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

W Tou el T oo

T T e

Australian dollar b BTH 23,345 3,894 - (533)
Canadian dollar JIEY. 218,522 222,413 = -
Euro IR 2 27,417 21,818 (56,706) (59,318)
Hong Kong dollar ki 131,594 20,020 - -
Japanese Yen H 119,235 68,891 (52) (184)
Macau Pataca ek = 5,170 (286,677) (265,532)
Renminbi N 362,603 293,438 = -
Singapore dollar B T 126,181 188,212 - -
uUS dollar EH 711,043 562,448 (9,118) (132)
Others HoAth 18,598 22,068 (10,918) 2)

Assets Liabilities

& 1%

The Company Y /A 2013 2012 2013 2012
SR EE - B EE T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

W T U T o0

b T o0

Australian dollar ot 22,055 3,492
Canadian dollar P E=NPTH 218,522 222,413
Euro i 2 23,289 17,511
Macau Pataca B[ = -
Renminbi N 304,592 289,117
Singapore dollar HmyE o 126,178 188,209
uUS dollar ESH 224,912 262,516
Others HoAl 22,064 22,044

= (533)
(56,706) (59,318)
(286,677) (265,532)

(2,074) (124)
= (2)
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3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)
(ii) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s sensitivity to every percentage point increase
and decrease in the functional currency of corresponding
group entity against the above foreign currency. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the year end for every percentage
point increase in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit/investment
revaluation reserve where the above foreign currency
strengthens every percentage point against the functional
currency of corresponding group entity.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG TS TR I R

3 S5 I b A PR AR R BOR ()

3.1 BB E ()

(a) TR R (45)
(i) AN (4)
T A
B4 ] 223
W2 1 8 I
2R - i
HAEA A BLAN
VSR - e
I — {1 5 48

EV &/
RERE W DL 1 Ah
R (NER ]
ST LA
W A B 2 B
TR AR R R A5
2 AT LA

% o DUF IE SR AL S 5

AR 5] 48 P A
THE— R 2>

EFAIL: Ay N
B2 AH VLT R

B ol it AT TR

The Group A 5 2013 2012
R =48 TR TR

HK$’000 HK$’000

BTt T oo

Increase in profit Tai 1 48 11,837 7,051
Increase in investment revaluation reserve 3 & {5 fs# #5184 Jin 1,929 2,382
The Company AR T 2013 2012
—®—=4 ey

HK$’000 HK$’000

i TG

Increase in profit i A28 i 4,034 3,726
Increase in investment revaluation reserve % & 5 it fifi f 1 fin 1,929 2,336
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG TS TR M R

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 3 5 I B A PR AR R BOR ()

(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BABS IR b R & (4)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) T E B (%)

(iii) Price risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to equity
securities price risk because investments held by
the Group and the Company are classified on the
consolidated statement of financial position and the
Company’s statement of financial position either as
available-for-sale investments or investments at fair value
through profit or loss.

If the prices of the respective quoted equity instruments
of the Group had been increased/decreased by one
percentage point and all other variables held constant:

- the post-tax profit of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2013 would increase/decrease by
HK$1,605,000 (2012: HK$1,123,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss;

If the prices of the respective quoted equity instruments
of the Company had been increased/decreased by one
percentage point and all other variables held constant:

—  the post-tax profit of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2013 would increase/decrease by
HK$265,000 (2012: HK$124,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

(b) Credit risk

Principal financial assets consist of debtors and receivables,
amounts due from related companies, available-for-sale
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss,
derivative financial instruments and bank balances. The
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at the end
of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Debtors of the Group may be affected by the unfavourable
economic conditions and the lower liquidity situation which
could in turn impact their ability to repay the amounts owed.
Deteriorating operating conditions for debtors may also
have an impact on management’s cash flow forecasts and
assessment of the impairment of receivables. To the extent that
information is available, management has properly reflected
revised estimates of expected future cash flows in their
impairment assessments.

(iii) 1E R

7 4 (8] N A 7 ) TR G A s
RS SRS > e T F A A A ] R
AN T 2 BB R Gi A B
R L2 B AR W) B IR I 2%
P U ] A A 2 B ek
N SUME B AR 25 R FE 2 4
ITEL -

il A S B A TR A B TR
RENTE D) | Sl [ N
B T H A AT 8 R BRI AR

5 0l

— ALEHEE _EF-=4F
“H=T—HILFEZ
B A% Ui B 3 >
# 1,605,000 70 (%
— T4 ¥ 1,123,000
Je) o BETh R A LA
YA B 5 R PR 2 B B
PAASINIEE -3 U

AN A A T RS B BTk
TERE G, 9o — R 7T 50 B
[IESUEIE-SESLUEIZEMN -
il

- ARRAFEE_F-ZF=
A=Z+—HILEEZB
% s B 5 s D s
¥ 265,000 00 ( —~ & — .
A ¥ 124,00000)
TG A FE S AR B S AR
%5 IS R 2 A L
H AR B T E -

(b) fr B ES

B B B R AR e B R
A~ RSB A AR AR - AT
BZBE - A RMEI AR R
ZALE TR I LA RRAT A
o A S B TFIEETRE 2
T - AR ER R R A D
e W A 5 T BT AR 32 2 B K AR AT L
W Jo o 3 T B AR L 2 TR T 9 R 2
P Z R H

AR I 2 A N B 52 B S M AR
TR R e U B M AR LR B
T 5% B HCAB KR ) 5 AR
BIR VLA IR AT BE S B B 2 B
A VAL A 2 T L ) R A IR BBl
FEAL o B LR COARR TG 2 R
T I (F Tl 8 S R A B T 2 T
JAAR A Bl R o
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3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has established different credit policies for
customers in each of its core businesses. The average credit
period granted to trade debtors is 60 days, except for insurance
business where credit terms granted to certain debtors are over
60 days. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at each reporting date to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

Amounts due from related companies are continuously
monitored by assessing the credit quality of the counterparties,
taking into account their financial position, past experience
and other factors. Where necessary, impairment loss is made
for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

Available-for-sale investments, investments at fair value
through profit or loss, derivative financial instruments,
interest receivables and bank balances are limited to financial
institutions or investment counterparty with high quality.
The Group controls its credit risk to non-performance by its
counterparties through monitoring their credit rating and
setting approved counterparty credit limits that are regularly
reviewed. The Group does not expect any significant
counterparty risk. Moreover, credit limits are set for individual
counterparties and periodic reviews are conducted to ensure
that the limits are strictly followed.

The Group has assessed the credit risk arising from guarantees
given to financial institutions for credit facilities granted
to certain property buyers, subsidiaries, associates, jointly
controlled entities and joint venture partner taking into
consideration the realisable value of the underlying projects/
assets. The Group does not expect any significant credit risk
arising from these guarantees.

The Group does not have a significant exposure to any
individual debtors or counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk management
and flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash
equivalents, readily realisable marketable securities and to
have committed short term and medium term credit lines
available.

The Directors believe that the Group has obtained sufficient
committed and uncommitted general credit facilities from
banks for working capital purposes.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR A B R I E

3 B R R4S PE H B R BUR ()

3.1 B B IR 3 (360

(b)

(c)

e B B (7))

AR A A TE R0 2E 5 2 5 L EST.
AR ZfEHEE - S TRHFEF 2
SEHERIAR60R o M TR
B2 ETHRFINESMEB0R -
A HCE B o A S AR o
B AR K 2 T A o] R o e R sl e
TR AR R 2 BE R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KA T R I R

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 3 W A B PR AR R BUR ()

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WABS)RLBE I & (48)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) & <o i Bh B (45%)
The Group’s liquidity position and compliance with loan AN R B ) e A AR B i
covenants are monitored closely by the management of the 5 R DL B T R L -
Company. The following table details the Group’s and the TRFESIASE ] RAL R H
Company’s contractual maturity for its financial liabilities at WHES B2 B BTG OL  RARTD
the reporting date. The table has been drawn up based on the AR AR G [ AR 23 ) 43l T i 5K
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the A Z e B 2 BB U R B
earliest date on which the Group or the Company respectively BUBLE WA R o F4% O RImAE
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and B Ay 2 Bl o

principal cash flows.

The Group
ALEH

Total
Less than More than undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows
A Bl
B &nE
A — 4 —F A “EHAE B T4 A

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T IT T T T IT T IT

2013 SR =R
Bank borrowings SATIE 982,005 1,490,742 2,255,387 = 4,728,134
Outstanding insurance claims & J{x i % 276,931 - - - 276,931
Creditors and payables JREASFIR K T A sk IR 547,843 = - - 547,843
Dividend payable to non-  FEAF I RS

controlling interests Jie B 2,400 = = = 2,400
Amounts due to non- JREAS T 42 R 4

controlling interests Rk 4,644 = = = 4,644
Derivative financial fiiE g TR

instruments (net settled) (TFghHE) 28,330 506 255 = 29,091
Derivative financial (e p N

instruments (gross settled) (HAFREEE)

- outflow — i 45,504 - - - 45,504

— inflow — A (68,570) = - - (68,570)
2012 N S
Bank borrowings AT 1,592,994 859,243 507,146 150,621 3,110,004
Outstanding insurance claims Y fg i & 202,837 - - - 202,837
Creditors and payables JRE AT M % JE A T 688,062 - - - 688,062
Dividend payable to non-  JEARIEFEBRERS

controlling interests i35 5,529 - - - 5,529
Amounts due to non- JREART I 2 PO HE i

controlling interests I 2k 6,143 - - - 6,143
Derivative financial fiiE s TR

instruments (net settled) (45 30,417 459 - - 30,876
Derivative financial (e N

instruments (gross settled) (HBAEST)

- outflow — Vi ih 38,659 2,232 - - 40,891

— inflow — A (32,158) (1,268) - - (33,426)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG TS TR I R

3 S5 I b A PR AR R BOR ()

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

3.1 BAR R B R & (48)
(c) &4 B b (4)

The Company

A4 W]
Total
Less than undiscounted
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows
REEB
B&WmE
A — 4 —FE 4R ZERAE A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T T
2013 R AR
Bank borrowings AT 48,270 224,666 1,873,023 2,145,959
Creditors JRE AT e 2K 5,709 = = 5,709
Derivative financial T HE B LR
instruments (net settled) (F 455 3,330 506 255 4,091
Derivative financial fir A TR
instruments (gross settled) (RUAHED)
— outflow — it 42,588 = = 42,588
— inflow — A (39,898) - - (39,898)
2012 ZE T4
Bank borrowings SRATAE X 1,009,951 15,239 208,062 1,233,252
Creditors JREAST R K 7,044 - - 7,044
Amount due to an associate  FEfT— [ B2 F) IR K 5,795 - - 5,795
Derivative financial fir A TR
instruments (net settled) (T 455 5,455 459 - 5,914
Derivative financial fir B BB T H
instruments (gross settled) (RS
— outflow — i 16,153 2,232 - 18,385
— inflow — WA (9,845) (1,268) - (11,113)

3.2 Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern while maximising
the returns to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

3.2 BA )R by H
AR AR 2 B 2 PR A A
RE 2 RES) > IR I de 2 0
A EC 1) 5 I AR A e Rl 4 o

The Group regularly and closely reviews and manages its capital
structure to provide cost efficient funding to the Group and its
companies and make adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes of economic conditions or corporate needs.

S T T S e U) A E BR HCEAR
o DL A B RO N 2 AR A
BAR A 2 B A o AR TR B B A 2
iR 2 AL B E AR SR LI o

The Group monitors the capital on the basis of net debt to equity
ratio, which is expressed as a percentage of net debt (comprises
total debt less bank balances and cash) over total equity. Total debt
represents bank borrowings.

A S 22 A5 BRLE £ LU R 2 R MR A
BA o R ALYE L TR AR (6L AR
WATH A LBl HUREG 2 a0 .
RS Sy SRAT I K -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG TS TR M R

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
(continued)
3.2 Capital risk management (continued)
The net debt to equity ratio as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 was as

3 BB R B A P H R R BUR ()

3.2 G AR b A B (48)
O i o o =V o

follows: H 2 i (75 BLRE #5 LSRR -
2013 2012
—Er—=hE TR TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
W% T 0 T
Total debt HAETS 4,322,791 2,980,271
Bank balances and cash SRATHE R Bl (1,280,016) (1,035,209)
Net debt PG 3,042,775 1,945,062
Total equity HAME 27 6,211,042 5,317,570
Net debt to equity ratio 1 {05 BLRE 4 LE % 49.0% 36.6%

The net debt to equity ratio increased from 36.6% as at 31
March 2012 to 49.0% as at 31 March 2013 mainly representing
the increase of the Group’s bank borrowings for financing the
acquisition of subsidiaries and the business in relation to jointly
controlled entities during the year.

Pursuant to Chapter 41 of The Hong Kong Insurance Companies
Ordinance, all authorised insurance companies are required to
maintain an excess of assets over liabilities of not less than a
required solvency margin. For the years ended 31 March 2013 and
2012, the Group’s relevant subsidiaries complied with the solvency
margin requirements as set out by the relevant authorities in Hong
Kong.

3.3 Fair value estimation
The Group uses the following fair value measurement hierarchies
for disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

3.3

FEB AR LR - = A
=t HZ36.6%ME _EF—-=4F=H
= 1+—HZ49.0% > EEHAREMBIT
A8 S PR AT PR 0 R 2 ) % 2 L[] 4 o
22 SETS I B0 TS -

MR PR F B 5541 55 JiT At
AR B~ AR E R R
HEARDIME ZAEATEA & o PR
SR EFER R THEEA=1H
AR ARTE 5 AR AR Bl B J 2 ) 8y e
BB B 5 A 2 (LA MR A

VAP IR
AR WA T 92 S B R 2 AR R
WHTARZARME

o HEEESBMEREE RS2
E CRim ) G —#L) -

o 7B EUR BT WA (N AR R
S — AN AR o AT (R
%) B[R] He i (B (RS 5 1) Al
(B8R »

o 7 B R A (ELIE JR AR
AT AR 2 T 3 WO (M A L 2
AE) (FEZ=H) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR a B R MR E

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 3 W B PR H OB R BOR ()

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 2 AR (4
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liability that are T REIHLR 73* =H=A=1—H
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2013. ZARMER AR B E AR -
The Group The Company
AEH N/
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F# BB B E b F# i B et
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ERTE W% T EWTI  #WTn  #WTx  WWTn  #WTx W% Tx

Assets B
Financial assets at fair /3 f (i
value through profit 5 AR 45 &

or loss 2B G
- debt securities —fEHHH 97,407 76,724 - 174,131 = 15,512 = 15,512
— equity securities — AR ES 170,342 = - 170,342 31,756 = = 31,756
- exchange-traded =35
funds HHEAS 606 - - 606 606 - - 606
- mutual and hedge ~ —HH K
funds Rl - 41,709 526 42,235 = - 506 506
—foreign exchange  — A4
linked notes i = = 18,380 18,380 = = = =
Derivative financial — fifAE R H
instruments TH - 82 82,282 82,364 - 62 - 62
Available-for-sale [t
financial assets EU%%??
— equity securities — AR HSH = = 3,880 3,880 = = 3,880 3,880
— private funds — RS = - 189,012 189,012 = - 189,012 189,012
Total assets A 268,355 118,515 294,080 680,950 32,362 15,574 193,398 241,334
Liability it
Derivative financial ~ fijt: 7%
instruments TH = (5921) (25,0000  (30,921) = (5,870) = (5,870)
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ARG TS TR M R

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 3 HA S R B 4 B AR R BSR (4)
(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 & s fliat (40
The following table represents the Group’s assets and liability that TERBIMER % A=A St
were measured at fair value as at 31 March 2012. o Sl A W A -
The Group The Company
AL A
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
H— B8 = i H—# g H=8 B
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT WlWTor mWTr W TT  BMTr W¥Tr WWTx BT
Assets 4¢3
Financial assets at fair %/ fL{HFIA
value through profit 1A 2
or loss MG
- debt securities it 64,867 84,783 - 149,650 - 26775 - 26775
— equity securities — A ES 121,824 - - 121,824 14,817 - - 14,817
— exchange-traded - ZH A E
funds He 407 - - 407 407 - - 407
- mutual and hedge ~ — T3 R ¥
funds g - 1,461 507 1,968 - - 466 466
- equity linked notes  — Rt 5 52 - - 18,910 18,910 - - 8,579 8,579
Derivative financial /L%
instruments TH - 400 42,888 43,288 - 202 - 202
Available-for-sale Alflki 2
financial assets W g
- equity securities — AR % - - 3,880 3,880 - - 3,880 3,880
- private funds -EEE - - 234328 234328 - - 229,689 229,689
Total assets A 187,098 86,644 300,513 574,255 15,224 26,977 242,614 284,815
Liability £tk
Derivative financial — fii/E#HH
instruments TH - (21,907) (24,962) (46,869) - (21,715) - (21,715)
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is QT TR o= = P R 7 /NI W [E
based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. TR Pt AR 2 i S BB RO - M
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and W8 5 o B e W B 2SS B - ST
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry AL~ AT~ e RS B A A
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices HAS o T A% S R A S LB SR T AN
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on B2 AN RER 2 58 5 > RIRZ T B
an arm’s length basis. The quoted market prices used for financial A0 4 1 B o AN [ BT R A B S R T
assets held by the Group is the closing bid price. These instruments Z A S T B S o %% THFEA
are included in level 1. B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR A B R I E

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 3 S5 I b A PR AR R BOR ()

(continued) ] )
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 2 reAiflist (48)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments
include:

¢ Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

e The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is calculated as
the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves

e The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined using forward exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period with the resulting value discounted back to
present value

e For unlisted securities or financial assets without an active
market, the Group establishes the fair value by using
valuation techniques including the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, reference to net asset value of investee
and discounted cash flow analysis, making maximum use
of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-
specific inputs. If none of the valuation techniques results in a
reasonable estimate on the fair value, the investment is stated
in the statement of financial position at cost less impairment
losses

e Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments

WAL R Ay B R 2 g T H (I
Y SN A T ) 208 SO 3R T A (B4 i
fRE o %S A (B il 25 8 3R T R A B
P CANRTARE)) > 3 35 D AR A S 2 b
o MFH i TR SR T 2 T R
AR - RIEE L HFEASE 8] o

(R EALEPN (¢ 3 SR t)
TG MR RIRZ T RS ASE =5 -

R RAEAT B 85 B Al 8 2 5 S Al (L 0
i

o RPN TR 2 T35 AE 38 5 v

18

o I # Z2 0 SR AR AT AR
25 BT AN R R A i B BLAE
"HE

o EMIIMES £ 2 SR IR
WIR 2 i e S 5 - S 45 R E
SR 2 B

o LG METE TG 2 bR R S
BB o A EBR A (0l
SO HA FE o E LR A
NV~ S REAKREARR 2 T
Ho- Z2RPE AT 2 EETE K
I B i B A - FE A AT T
R BB ED R ERE S - i
A (R T R BE A BAG HLA f
(B > BT Bl 450 AR Bl 2% Bl (L
B2 IR MBRILE

o HERIB L H Z A AR fE Ll H b
> {51 G i B B L 0 A
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KA T R I R

3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 3
(continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for
the year ended 31 March 2013:

S 5 Dl B 4 PR AR R BOSRE (sg)

3 R it (480
TARHEIE SR T HREE X — =4
ZHZE—HIEEZ S

3.3

The Group
A%
Mutual Equity Foreign
Equity Private and linked  exchange Put Performance
securities funds hedge funds notes linked notes options  guarantee Total
HER B 5 hb e
BeARS  REEREE BRSO BEER BEER O RWNE RHER ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EWTL  EWTr BT BT BWTx  EWTx  #WTx BRI
At 1 April 2012 WoE—TAF
WH—H 3,880 234,328 507 18,910 - 17,926 - 275,551
Purchases/capital A/
contributions BABA = 827 - = 18,600 = = 19,427
Receipt for capital W[l
returns [ - (22,572) = = = = - (22,572
Fair value losses AL 2
recognised in other MR 2N foll
comprehensive fetH >
income, net TREE = (15,462) = = = - - (15,462)
Fair value gains/ s £ R 2
(losses) recognised in /A feffidds,/
income statement, net  (fE1R) > F4H - - 56 2,090 (220) 33,049 6,307 41,282
Disposal i - (8,109) (37)  (21,000) = = - (29,146)
At 31 March 2013 i
“H=+—H 3,880 189,012 526 - 18,380 50,975 6,307 269,080
The Company
AR
Mutual Equity
Equity Private and linked
securities funds  hedge funds notes Total
LER JBE 5
JBe AR R 2 FASEE 42 Bk 4 HE TR A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T T
At 1 April 2012 RoE TN —H 3,880 229,689 466 8,579 242,614
Purchases/capital contributions A /EAHA - 827 - - 827
Receipt for capital return i ] & A = (22,572) = = (22,572)
Fair value losses Al A T i AR
recognised in other [ SR PA/NSINE]
comprehensive income, net 1 > R = (10,823) = = (10,823)
Fair value gains R lEE KR 2
recognised in income VAVNIELL &
statement, net B - - 55 1,421 1,476
Disposal & - (8,109) (15) (10,000) (18,124)
At 31 March 2013 [
=“HA=1—H 3,880 189,012 506 - 193,398
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3 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for

the year ended 31 March 2012:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR A B R I E

3 B R B A P H AR R BUR (90)

3.3 2 RAEA R ()

TARHEINE R THREE % — 4

ZHZtr—HIREEZ )

The Group
AL
Mutual Equity Foreign
Equity Private and linked exchange Put
securities funds  hedge funds notes  linked notes options Total
HER % ShE
Bk#s  REEE HivEe BEREE  BBER EIE Eat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T MW MW T Tk WRTx WhTx
At T April 2011 WZF——FM—H - 236,357 8,049 10,809 3,895 26,401 286,111
Purchases/capital contributions ~ BEA /EALEA 3,895 18,420 - 21,000 - - 43,315
Receipt for capital return I EA - (11,859) - - - - (11,859
Recognised on disposal of CPHL i H 437 T 2 - - - - - (24,549) (24,549)
Fair value (losses)/gains IR TR ERERZ
recognised in other AREER) /i
comprehensive income, net B (15) 79 - - - - 64
Fair value gains/(losses) Pl R
recognised in income statement, /A At/
net (R - HE - - 301 (1,899) - 16,074 14,476
Disposal il - - (8,43) (11,000) (3,895) - (23,338)
Derecognition B IEER - (8,669) - - - - (8,669)
At31 March 2012 e ey o 3,860 234,328 507 18,910 - 17,926 275,551
The Company
AT
Mutual Equity Foreign
Equity Private and linked exchange
securities funds  hedge funds notes  linked notes Total
HER B SN
A Ak Hib ke 0% R M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
At 1 April 2011 AR ——IFENR—H - 230,952 584 1,449 1,948 234,933
Purchases/capital contributions WA/ BABA 3,895 18,420 - 10,000 - 32,315
Receipt for capital return Il A - (11,859 - - - (11,859)
Fair value (losses)/gains recognised in - F* JiAl 2 [ 2 HE2 2
other comprehensive income, MUE (R s
net #H (15) 845 - - - 830
Fair value losses recognised T RHER 2 A A
in income statement, net i > T - - 91) (1,370) - (1,461)
Disposal i - - (27) (1,500) (1,948) (3,475)
Derecognition #EHER - (8,669) - - - (8,669)
At 31 March 2012 ey 3,880 229,689 466 8,579 - 242,614
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ARG TS TR M R

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

(@)

(b)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties held directly by the Group is
made on the basis of the “Market Value” adopted by the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS”). It is performed in accordance with
the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties published by HKIS. The
valuation is reviewed annually by qualified valuers by considering
the information from a variety of sources including (i) current prices
in an active market for properties of different nature, condition
or location, adjusted to reflect those differences; (ii) recent prices
of similar properties in less active market, with adjustments to
reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those parties; and (iii) rental income
derived from existing tenancies with due provision for reversionary
income potential based on market conditions existing at the end of
the reporting period.

These methodologies are based upon estimates of future results and
a set of assumptions specific to each property to reflect its tenancy
and cashflow profile. The fair value of each investment property
reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases
and assumptions about rental income from future leases in light of
current market conditions including open market rents, appropriate
capitalisation rates and reversionary income potential. Discount
rate in the range of 4% to 6% (2012: 4% to 6%) were used in the
discounted cash flow analysis. The fair value also reflects on a
similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in respect
of the property.

As at 31 March 2013, if the market value of investment
properties had been 10% (2012: 10%) higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the carrying value of the Group's
investment properties would have been HK$340,727,000 (2012:
HK$267,969,000) higher/lower.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment and land use rights are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts of property, plant and equipment and land use rights
have been determined based on the higher of their fair values less
costs to sell and value-in-use, taking into account the latest market
information and past experience.

4 [ a4l EH 2O B
T B T A A th A S LA 72
B % LA R 3 L6 B UL T ARG
HE AR 2 B F AR -

ASE 7 RAAE tH AL T BB » BTS2 gt
A R 2 S S AR D SR B B PR A RN - L
AT R B B R B R TN ELA T —
A8 B A B A A o R W 2 it AR EAE
DA &

(a)

(b)

st EMEZ ~ R

AL A 2 R 2 A ETIR
P s AR ([ A s A 22 )
PRz [ B e - 1 7 o ) A il 5
AR 2 7 s ) AR ) A (B YR T
HEAT o i (B PR 5 A At (81 R 5 47 A Sl
57 E25 8 ooy SUROR R NGRS
R DL B B 2 ) S I B T 3 2 BUAT A
o SEAE R AR A B 22 R 5 (i)
AW SE TR AN T8 B T o 2 JE W (B A >
AR A LR 1 % 5 22 B 1 2SI
A ZATATREFEAR DL T 5 S (i) BUA A
B2 RGO > 3R ARSE R AR
I 2 T LS A 8 2 T RE T AT L

FEAE DT TR R AR AN T S TH Y
2 — RGN AR WA £ K B
SWMERD - FEBREWEZ A RME
R (s sk A B A E A
WA DA B AR A 3 i T 0 (LA A B T 45
4~ W2 EAR R A sz
T8 77) B A KA B 2 B WA B
e MBIBl SR EMNT AN F4% 2
6% (. FE— 5 1 4%FE6%) Z M E o
7 FRAE I A AU U i R A% ) 2 T T
W Z AT AR -

W oE—ZAEZA =4 —H o A
AT S R R AR AR 2 UL T >
WEZNELA S THEI0%(ZF—
F 0 10%) » AREEBEY) % 2R (E
BT T 3 40,727,00070 (&
— A4 #%267,969,00000) ©

st Pn3E ~ Wz Kk i Je L fE
B2 PR AA

HAPRBURYE - WS B Kt i
o2 A 2 R T L T RE ik i el o 33
EATRAT o W - RS B Bt Ml
FHE 2 W] W o] e ) 12 FL O SO (BB B
JRA S PP B W 2 s
it B B 11T 35 OB RO AL KCBR e S
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(continued)

()

(d)

(e)

()

Estimated impairment of goodwill and other intangible
assets

The Group tests whether goodwill and other intangible assets have
suffered any impairment in accordance with accounting policies
stated in note 2(ab) to the consolidated financial statements.
The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations or its fair value less cost to sell,
whichever is higher, and both bases require the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. Please refer to notes 17, 18 and 39 to
the consolidated financial statements for details.

Estimated useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and
consequent related amortisation rate (if any) for its other intangible
assets. These estimates are based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of comparable intangible assets in related
industries. Actual economic life may vary from estimated useful
life. Periodic review could result in a change in amortisable lives
and consequently increase or decrease in amortisation expenses in
future periods. Please refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements for details.

Impairment assessment for available-for-sale investments
The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when an
equity available-for-sale investment is impaired. This determination
requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost; and the
financial health of and short-term business outlook for the investee
and historical price volatility of these investments.

If all of the declines in fair value of an equity available-for-sale
investment below cost are considered significant or prolonged,
an additional loss of HK$13,347,000 (2012: HK$11,610,000)
would be incurred in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2013, being the transfer of
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity on
such available-for-sale investments to the consolidated income
statement.

Fair value of available-for-sale investments and derivative
financial instruments

The fair value of available-for-sale investments and derivative
financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of
each reporting period.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR A B R I E

4 BABEEEHh e RO B ()

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

il wH v e L At i T B TR AL

AR AR BB R M SR 2(ab) BT it 2 &
FEECSR > A AR [ e % L A ST
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LA 2 AT ] S R A ) PR B (E R
T UM L SR BR B B A (DL
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B A B 2 TR R BL g Ui i -
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B U R D TR o M T AR OB (E A
o TR 2 B AR S BB REM 7
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fili At 40 2 A 2 T ) 4 0
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=
e

SRR R M

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(continued)

(g

(h)

(M)

Net realisable value of properties under development and
properties for sale

The Group writes down properties under development and
properties for sale to net realisable value based on assessment of
the realisability of properties under development and properties
for sale which takes into account cost to completion based on
past experience and net sales value based on prevailing market
conditions. If there is an increase in cost to completion or a
decrease in net sales value, the net realisable value will decrease
which may result in writing down properties under development
and properties for sale to net realisable value. Write-downs are
recorded where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, the carrying value of
properties under development and properties for sale is adjusted in
the period in which such estimate is changed.

Estimated fair value of put options

The determination of the fair value of the put options as detailed in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements requires the use of
estimates and judgement. The Group uses its judgement to select
appropriate method in determining fair value and make assumption
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of
the reporting period.

Determination of insurance liabilities

The Group’s insurance liabilities mainly comprise provision for
outstanding claims. The Group determines these estimates on
the basis of historical information, actuarial analysis, financing
modeling and other analytical techniques. The estimated insurance
liabilities are affected by assessed net loss ratio. Assessed net
loss ratio for 2013 and 2012 was 76% and 68% respectively.
Differences resulting from reassessment of insurance liabilities are
recognised in subsequent consolidated financial statements. The
Group continually reviews the estimates and makes adjustments as
necessary, but actual results could differ from what is envisioned
when these estimates are made.

4 BABEEEHh e RO B ()

(g)

(h)

@
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(continued)

()

(k)

M

Construction contract revenue recognition

According to the accounting policies of construction contracts as
stated in note 2(0), the Group uses the percentage of completion
method to determine the appropriate revenue to be recognised in a
given period. The stage of completion is measured by total amount
of work done certified by customers over total estimated contract
sum.

Upon applying the percentage of completion method, the Group
needs to estimate the gross profit margin of each construction
contract, which was determined based on the estimated total
construction contract costs and total construction contract sum,
including variation orders and claims. If the actual gross profit
margin of construction contract differs from the management’s
estimates, the construction contract profit to be recognised in the
following years will need to be adjusted accordingly.

Income taxes

As at 31 March 2013, a deferred tax asset of HK$22,023,000
(2012: HK$19,615,000) in relation to unused tax losses had been
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future taxable profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual taxable
future profits generated are more or less than expected, additional
deferred tax assets or reversal of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in the consolidated income statement
for the period in which such an addition or a reversal takes place.

Also, the Group, including associates and jointly controlled
entities, is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Impairment of the Group’s investments in associates and
jointly controlled entities

Management regularly reviews whether there are any indications
of impairment of the Group’s investments in associates and jointly
controlled entities primarily based on value in use calculations.

In determining the value in use, management assess the present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from their
businesses. Estimates and judgements are applied in determining
these future cash flows and discount rate. Management estimates
the future cash flows based on certain assumptions, such as
revenue growth.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KA T R I R

5 Revenue 5 WA
2013 2012
s =i b S
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T oo
Revenue represents amounts received and AR LT 25 TH 22 Bl
receivable from: JRE NS KA
Construction and installation contracts HERTHERR 1,755,751 1,563,586
Sale of information technology equipment, BB A~ R &
motor vehicles and others HoAh > G 803,188 821,796
Food and beverage BAR 589,443 571,433
Senior housing operations Y 247,556 128,005
Sales and leasing of properties YyESH A 224,650 163,412
Warehouse and logistics operations B ) i s 172,513 170,848
Insurance premium 15 b 2 156,916 231,747
Provision of maintenance and property PR
management Wy 245 FLIR S 140,366 119,477
Dividend income from listed securities HH s RS 44,931 22,147
Hotel operations TG 5 40,286 44,372
Interest income from investments R B HE 2 AR A 8,743 11,557
Leasing of vehicles and equipment VREL & 4,915 1,400
Total revenue (note 38) A (F5E38) 4,189,258 3,849,780
6 Other Income, Net 6 HibUg A - FH
2013 2012
e e
HK$/000 HK$’000
W T T oo
Gain/(loss) on investments at fair value through %7\ fL{H 5 AR 25 B HH 2 S5 & 1Y
profit or loss Weti, ()
— held-for-trading —FHERE g 39,437 (11,460)
— designated upon initial recognition — AP E R IR W 3,066 (1,559)
Gain/(loss) on derivative financial fiHE s TH 2 e ts
instruments (fs18) 35,587 (1,505)
Commission income [HER N 5,325 3,983
Interest income from associates (note 46) A& [ Wk o8 w2 FLB A (M EE46) - 5,691
Management fee income from associates and A A B A F B SRR il g 2
jointly controlled entities (note 46) FHAEWA (Hitd6) 30,304 27,271
Sales and marketing services income from an o B — [ A R 2 B
associate (note 46) 7 HE B RS WA ([ 5E46) 22,224 23,524
Others HAth 11,253 7,290
147,196 53,235
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7 Other Gains, Net

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG TS TR I R

7 HAtas -

2013 2012
—E =4 CE AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T o0 T T
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HERMN&IEY (B1R) i
— Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited (“CPHL") — H Az s AT IR
(note 47(c)) (THAzE D) (BEE47(c) - 135,426
— other subsidiaries — HAL KB A (6,169) -
Increase in fair value of investment properties TG R A AEG
(note 14) (KaE14) 670,113 255,546
Loss on disposal of investment properties HE R EY 2 IR (300) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and Y - R B kA B
equipment and prepaid lease payments FEATAH 55 30OH 2 U i 157 19,871
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments & n] ikt 8 7 #& 191k 4 289 8,669
Impairment loss on property, W~ RRF Bk 2 WA R 1R
plant and equipment (note 15) (KfF&E15) (4,516) (4,856)
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payments TEASHAR 5 T 22 W (s 4
(note 16) (KtE16) - (2,876)
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 17) PR B IR (B RE17) (6,805) -
Impairment loss on other intangible assets A AT 7 U e 4R
(note 18) (FifET8) = (12,177)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments ] {8 2 43 & 14 ik (5 54 (4,639) (765)
Impairment loss on amount due from an associate i — [ 4% 2 FIIR 3k ok (E e 18 (2,316) (5,994)
Impairment loss on trade debtors B 5 IEMUIR 3k 2 B 1 (3,772) 211)
Impairment loss on retention receivables JRE i £ B8 R 2 Ul 4H (32,606) (570)
Exchange gain/(loss) M Siss (ks 18) 7,603 (2,233)
617,039 389,830
8 Finance Costs, Net 8 WMEEHM  F#H
2013 2012
—g-=g g
HK$’000 HK$’000
T o T T
Interest expenses on bank overdrafts and SRATIE S MR TR N R B
borrowings wholly repayable within five years R iPRIsS 93,845 46,429
Less: Amounts capitalised to properties B BEHEER R R 2R B
under development (note) (BF5E) (19,442) (14,724)
74,403 31,705
Less: Interest from bank deposits W SAT A AL B A (14,606) (8,528)
59,797 23,177

Note:

Wt

WEZR-=ZFZA =+ HILFEE  BRREH
AT A AR ) 2 2 B W E AL RN T
5.9%%E7.8%(“F— 4F 1 6.4%%£7.8%) °

The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed and used for the development
of properties was between 5.9% and 7.8% per annum during the year ended 31
March 2013 (2012: 6.4% and 7.8%).
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LR B BB R RE
9 Profit Before Taxation 9 B i vai A1l
2013 2012
TR EAE S
HK$’000 HK$000
W T T o0
Profit before taxation has been arrived at after A Ay 5 R 1 BR
charging the following: THEE -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ ~ 5 Kt 2 978
(note 15) (FfF5E15) 86,204 70,146
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work W BEA K TR &% 1,772 (1,721),
84,432 68,425
Staff costs (note a) B T B SZ (fsta) 854,044 735,549
Less: Amount capitalised to contract work W BEEH TR &5 (116,275 (98,909)
737,769 636,640
Operating lease payments in respect of leasing of &I NIHH A HH &% 1
— premises (note b) — M (Kt 3Eb) 92,366 83,708
— equipment — % 1,234 291
93,600 83,999
Auditors’ remuneration 1% S P P 4 10,155 8,805
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments (note 16) FE {70 & A #ES (i 3E16) 26 351
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 18) ﬁii,fﬂfﬁ/gﬁﬁﬁé fftaE18) 5,497 5,929
Write down of inventories to net realisable Mﬂﬁ PR E
value, net VR EE 7,711 -
Write down of properties for sale to net realisable s 45 £ 4 3 % 7T 4 5311 >
value, net FRH 199 -
Share options granted by a listed subsidiary — [A]_E T B 2 m) T i e
- consultancy services received — CEEGE IR = 5,558
Acquisition-related expenses WSS AR B S 35,153 10,036
and crediting the following: Wrt ATHIER :
Gross rental income of HK$132,037,000 (2012: ¥ & Al A#%132,037,00000
HK$121,358,000) from properties less direct <: F— A4 ¢ #121,358,000
operating expenses (note ¢) TC) W RS S ([ i) 103,370 94,925
Write back of inventories to net realisable [E]ﬁ"f%ﬁ‘f AR VRA(E
value, net AR - 1,423
Write back of properties for sale to net Al 8 R A W S & P SR BLTRE
realisable value, net A = 2,312
Notes: B3 -
(@) Details of Directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed in note (a) WHMECEIEEER LR > HERELE
40 to the consolidated financial statements. A IR M G40 B 7F -
Included in staff costs are an amount of HK$268,000 (2012: HK$601,000) B TP S48 1 B TAE 2 08 #1048 R s
in respect of termination benefits made to staff and an amount of #268,0007C (~F— "4F : ##601,0007T)
HK$38,520,000 (2012: HK$27,596,000) in respect of contributions T B BR B R i it ?kZﬁmﬂlék SRR
to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes, net of forfeited B %538,520,00000 (& — 4F ¢« ik
contributions. 27,596,0007C) °
(b) Included in operating lease payments in respect of leasing of premises are (b) AR MET X A BT 2 AL SR TH 4
contingent rentals of HK$1,836,000 (2012: HK$1,908,000). 1,836,000 70 ( & — 4F = #5% 1,908,000
JC) ©
(c) Included in rental income is an amount of HK$1,663,000 (2012: (€) 4 S0 A A 35 A e (] 42 o) O W B 2 R 4 s
HK$1,310,000) less outgoings of HK$1,097,000 (2012: HK$1,092,000) #1,663,00070 (& — 4 {%‘%1 310,000
from jointly controlled assets. Included in rental income is a gross amount JC) W3 Hi s 1,097,000 ( AR
of HK$125,485,000 (2012: HK$111,915,000) derived from investment #1,092,0007C) %E/‘llﬁt)\@ﬁﬂéﬁﬁé‘%
properties. ¥ A MBE I 125,485,00000 (& —
4 #5%111,915,00070) ©
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10 Income Tax Expenses

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG TS TR I R

10 P58 2

2013 2012
B2 St o
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T o0 W T
Current tax ARAEFERLIH
Hong Kong T 61,565 45,965
Overseas HEZAN 23,600 13,246
Under/(over)-provision in prior years AT RS R GREBR A1) 7,098 (192)
92,263 59,019
Deferred tax IRAEF I
Origination and reversal of temporary W IR R 22 1 2 B
differences (note 37) Lo lml ¢ (B 3E37) 4,844 8,248
97,107 67,267

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits. Taxation on overseas profits has
been calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at
the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group

s W AT BL T kAl 5T RE BB U R B R
16.5% (. F— "4F 1 16.5%) 51 E - B4
AT F AT 0 Ak 5 I SR s R Ak A 4 [ 4
EEBIER R 2 AT REE -

operates.

Details of deferred taxation are disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the profit

&

o

SERLIH 2 REIG IR A MBS R I R 3 7 A B

Fo e W P BRI ViR ) B AS A T T A S

before taxation per consolidated income statement as follows: Bz EEHIT
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 5 T on
Profit before taxation [ ot i g ) 1,180,393 771,116
Adjusted for: ki
Share of results of associates JUT A B A ) A (96,583) (94,478)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities JIT A 3 [ 2 o £ 2 3E AR 18,611 62,033
1,102,421 738,671
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% F A b T A BLBL % 16.5%
(2012: 16.5%) (ZF—T4F 1 16.5%) 5B 2 BiIHE 181,900 121,881
Effect of different tax rates on subsidiaries TE HoAth =) v B o [ 48 2
operating in other jurisdictions WL e 2 ) R ) AS ) 8 % 2 3 (7,568) 2,624
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ASEHEFN ST 22 B IE R 2 22,738 20,328
Tax effect of non-taxable income BHERERLA 2 Bl IH 2 (129,494) (102,338)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R T GRS s 1 2 B TE S 2B 25,225 32,611
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses and other R 1 R T R
deductible temporary difference not previously %5 18 K Ho A AT 13 2
recognised W I P 2 5 R T (8,432) (11,904)
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BB AR R R 7,098 (192)
Others HoAth 5,640 4,257
Income tax expenses for the year AFJE TSRS 97,107 67,267
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KA T R I R

11 Earnings Per Share 11 &R A
(a) Basic (@) HEA
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit T BEEA BRI AR A LS w RS A A
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted JRE Ak Y ) B DA A 4 B 2 B8 173 3 A 22
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. RET- ¥ 8GTE -
2013 2012
R =4 ST
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T
Profit attributable to equity holders A A RERER N
of the Company JEAL U5 A 1,011,923 657,897
2013 2012
e e o
Weighted average number of ordinary CETRERe
shares in issue (‘000 shares) JIAE -2 8 (T %) 278,140 277,564
Basic earnings per share (HK$) A5 A B A (s ) 3.64 2.37
(b) Diluted (b)
As at 31 March 2013, the Group did not have any dilutive equity AT B —ZHEZH =+ —H o AKEHE
instruments (2012: nil). G AT AT B 2 2 AR TR (2%
— A ) o
12 Dividends 12 k&
2013 2012
R = TE AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT ou T
Interim dividend of HK$0.20 (2012: HK$0.20) TR I B A B Hr0.20 00
per share paid (ZF—4F - #k%0.2070) 55,513 55,513
Final dividend of HK$0.65 (2012: HK$0.35) SRR R TS i 0. 650
per share proposed (=& —4F - ##0.3570) 182,901 97,148
No special dividend (2012: special dividend AEEIRAS I (T — T4
HK$0.40 per share) proposed 158 UR 5 P 1 B IR 0,408 - 111,025
238,414 263,686
Of the dividends paid during the year, HK$40,751,000 was paid in form ERCIRMZ S ks - F— ==
of shares under the Company’s scrip dividend scheme in respect of the A=t—HIHEEZ DA S » Hduk
interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013. M40,751,0007C IR A LS 7 LABAC S 5t 31
PAIR A S A o
A final dividend of HK$0.65 per share totalling HK$182,901,000, AR IR B AR W B A 0.6500 0 &
with an option to receive shares of the Company, has been proposed L% 182,901,00070 - 3lf7 B 2 35 Wi iU AR
by the Directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the DN 2 FER) > HZE AR R B B 2 AR A
forthcoming annual general meeting. The amount will be reflected as an FERE PR R o 2 AIIERE
appropriation of retained profits for the year ending 31 March 2014. F—WAEZH =+ — H AR R 2 5

UK o
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13 Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the
Company

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company is HK$6,883,000 (2012:
HK$211,501,000).

14

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG TS TR I R

13 A2 v Je Bl A N B A i A0

ENY/NEIN & ESE RN Ui = e i
6,883,0007C EL T AARN A A BS K B (=%
— A #%211,501,00000) ©

Investment Properties 14 BEWE
The Group AR
2013 2012
—E =4 TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
biEkicon IR T T
At 1 April REA—H 2,679,689 1,718,530
Exchange realignment e 5 i 8,392 19,113
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 47(b)(ii)) WA B — [ A 2 ] (B 247 (b) (i) - 686,500
Additions WWE 15,533 -
Disposal e (8,388) -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment and % [ 42 - rﬁB‘%& Sl &
prepaid lease payments AL AROE 41,927 -
Increase in fair value (note 7) N e AE R (B E7) 670,113 255,546
At 31 March W=HA=1—H 3,407,266 2,679,689
The Group’s investment properties at their carrying values are analysed I A2 ] 2 PSR T E AT
as follows:
2013 2012
e S TE A
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T IC
In Hong Kong i
On medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) RHAFH A (= L 4F) 2,132,748 1,651,735
Outside Hong Kong AUk BEA
Freehold KA ZEME 518,825 325,821
On long-term leases (over 50 years) WA (R L) 693,320 634,520
On medium-term leases (10 to 50 years) FRFRA) (& A 4E) 62,373 67,613
3,407,266 2,679,689
Notes: BFRE

(a)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and overseas as at 31 March 2013 had been arrived at on the basis
of valuation carried out on that date by Knight Frank Petty Limited or DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, which are independent qualified professional
valuers and have appropriate qualifications and experience in the valuation
of properties in the relevant locations. The valuation, which conforms to the
HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties published by HKIS, was arrived at
with reference to market evidence of transaction prices of similar properties
or calculated on the net income allowing for reversionary potential.

Investment properties in Hong Kong with a total carrying value of
HK$33,667,000 (2012: HK$29,667,000) represent the Group’s share of
interests in jointly controlled assets.

Charges were created on the investment properties with a total carrying value
of HK$2,068,734,000 (2012: HK$1,573,938,000) for the purpose of securing
banking facilities granted to the Group.

(@) ALEEAAEEE B KR 2 SE Y
ER_F = EA = B2 A RETI
Il P B8 S A S A B 2K b7 R R AT AT
PR 7] sk R A SR AT A PR WA 8 H AT 2 Al
B2 AL YE 24 Ty BT SR AR 2 M S
FEAG R > S A AT T M e A AT 1 A (2
KEBR o WA R ST A i A AR BT LA
Z*P%{E'Jiﬁmm@%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁfmﬂl AE 3]
5 LR SE 2 A2 5 8 SRR 2 A T
A 2 FHALAE A -

(b) (VA T b 2 B ) 2 (B A 48 81 i A 4% ] 2 )
A 2 RE AR ) 2 R T ARAE 2y 133,667,000 7T
(ZF—4F ¢ #29,667,00070) °

(c) T Ifd 48 {f ¥ %5 2,068,734,000 0G0 ( & —
4E  #W1,573,938,0007C) 2 HEW EEAE
A - V62T A RIS S 2 B4R -
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SR e B R M E
15 Property, Plant and Equipment 15 W3 ~ W K st
The Group A% 4 E
Furniture,
fixtures,
Plant, other
Other  machinery  equipment
Cold storage Hotel  properties and  and motor
warehouse  properties for own use  equipment fgfﬁ\ve%lcles Total
Hfb R M bR R
RMEH ) 4 3% EYjikZES B it fh K A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T T BT BT
Cost AR
At 1 April 2011 e S
JWA—H 239,038 164,536 532,564 95,280 278,788 1,310,206
Exchange realignment 1 50, 74 5 - (4,132) (3,199) (191) 969 (6,553)
Acquisition of senior W B 2 B A
housing business % i
(note 47(b)(i)) (BiFaE47(b)(0)) - - 236,864 - 19,349 256,213
Acquisition of a group ﬂﬁlﬁﬁff?ﬁﬁﬂf’\ KE
of companies owning Z—TEYIZEI
Froperty in Tsmg Yi —Hnw
Island (note 47(b)(iii)) (FFRE47(b) (i) - - 286,000 - - 286,000
Additions NE - 1,090 4,110 25,595 43,457 74,252
Disposal ik - (39) (11,982) (24,882) (8,570) (45,473)
Disposal of a listed A — ] TR
subsidiary (note 47(c)) ~ ) (HiE47(c) - - - (5,710) (25,063) (30,773)
At31 March 2012 R4
=A=+—8H 239,038 161,455 1,044,357 90,092 308,930 1,843,872
Exchange realignment T 50, 94 % - (2,779) (1,401) 768 951 (2,461)
Acquisition of senior WOEZ E b
housing business ey
(note 47(b)(i)) (B aE47(b)(i)) = - 327,441 - 43,549 370,990
Additions RE = 1,620 18,601 25,312 49,933 95,466
Disposal th = = - (11,080) (12,950) (24,030)
Disposal of subsidiaries H B T N = = = (3,267) (7,551) (10,818)
Transfer to investment [
properties L/ES - - (10,902) - (1,617) (12,519)
At31 March 2013 RF— A
=A=t+—8H 239,038 160,296 1,378,096 101,825 381,245 2,260,500

Accumulated depreciation Rl
and impairment YRCTIN

At 1 April 2011 \QZZ#QE
JgH— 56,146 55,869 159,901 53,932 170,143 495,991
Exchange realignment {Eﬁrﬂ% - (1,275) (1,396) (186) (80) (2,937)
Charged for the year FRATE
(note 9) (Fi3E9) 6,124 3,741 21,872 10,391 28,018 70,146
Impairment loss (note 7) mﬁféﬁa Bt 3E7) - 4,338 - - 518 4,856
Disposal - - (10,003) (15,367) (6,976) (32,346)
Disposal of a listed ﬂE fH] L i Y
subsidiary (note 47(c)) 8wl (BEE47(0)) - - - (3,700) (17,430) (21,130)
At 31 March 2012 WA
=H=1+—H 62,270 62,673 170,374 45,070 174,193 514,580
Exchange realignment T i o 4 = (906) (670) 702 1,318 444
Charged for the year TR
(note 9) (Wi9) 6,125 2,574 27,183 12,896 37,426 86,204
Impairment loss (note 7) WE R (FfaE7) = = = = 4,516 4,516
Disposal o - - - (9,701) (8,435) (18,136)
Disposal of subsidiaries b I R A ) - - = (885) (2,367) (3,252)
Transfer to investment [ e
properties L/ES = = (2,283) = (462) (2,745)
At 31 March 2013 WE— A
“H=+—H 68,395 64,341 194,604 48,082 206,189 581,611
Carrying value W T
At 31 March 2013 WZFE— A
=H=+—H 170,643 95,955 1,183,492 53,743 175,056 1,678,889
At 31 March 2012 A
=H=+—H 176,768 98,782 873,983 45,022 134,737 1,329,292
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15 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The Group (continued)
Notes:
(@) The carrying value of properties comprise:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B TR IE
15 #13¢ - Jﬁleﬁ& 3 A (480
ARG (%
ik -

(a) WA ES -

2013 2012

e Jaet.d e Suted

HK$’000 HK$'000

W T o0 T o0

Freehold land and buildings thereon A A ERE T S L | 2 i 735,957 404,741
Leasehold land and buildings thereon FHE T J i L | 2 pl 714,133 744,792
1,450,090 1,149,533

(b) Charges were created on the properties, plant and equipment with a total (b) MRTEAR(EHE¥5930,169,0007C ( —F — 4 ¢

carrying value of HK$930,169,000 (2012: HK$608,576,000) for the purpose
of securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

##608,576,00070) Z W2 ~ WUE M E

PEHEHT > AR S 32 T AR SR B ARAT 15 B Z 45 PR

16 Prepaid Lease Payments 16 TEAHHLEE K H
The Group AL
2013 2012
—E =M TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
T o0 T T
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:  ASE [ 2 FAS L& R IEALEE -
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: FlE b2 HE T
On long-term leases (over 50 years) RIFHA (40 E) - 345
The movements in the Group’s prepaid lease payments during the year ACSE AR N TE A I ERORE T 2 AT
are analysed as follows:
2013 2012
—E =4 TE AR
HK$’000 HK$'000
H W T o0 T T
At 1 April AHA—H 345 3,564
Exchange realignment T 0,3 1 8
Impairment loss (note 7) ﬁfﬁ@?@ iE7) = (2,876)
Amortisation (note 9) HHESH (K 3E9) (26) (351)
Transfer to investment properties (LR g S/ES (320) -
At 31 March H=H=1T—H - 345
17 Goodwill 17 H&
The Group AL
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
W T o T T
At 1 April AEA—H 129,696 126,994
Acquisition of senior housing business WAt 22 It i 26T
(note 47(b)(i)) (B k47 (b)) 558,852 10,253
Disposal of a listed subsidiary (note 47(c)) i — Fﬁj:ﬁi[?ﬁ]%"ﬁj (KtEE47(c)) - (7,551)
Impairment loss (note 7) W E R (KEsE7) (6,805) -
At 31 March e R 681,743 129,696

Details of the impairment assessment of goodwill are disclosed in note

39 to the consolidated financial statements.

TR 2 (L AT 17 A 5 5 B 5 AR B
39 -
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KA T R I R

18 Other Intangible Assets

18 H At JE 2 ¥ e

The Group AN 4
Cold
Roads, storage and
drainage public Trademark
and bonded of
waterworks warehouse restaurants Favourable
license licenses and bars lease Others Total
B B R R
FoR#BELR ABREE BEEWEY
it B it Bt Z B RS oAt A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T W T W T W% T T
Cost A
At 1 April 2011 R E
JMH—H 26,534 3,000 23,976 11,855 9,847 75,212
Exchange realignment 3 5§ - - - - (47) (47)
Addition NE - - 500 - - 500
Disposal ek - - - - (252) (252)
Disposal of a listed 4 — ] i
subsidiary Wi Jag 2 W
(note 47(c)) (F$5E47(c)) - - (700) - - (700)
At 31 March 2012 i S =1
“A=+—H 26,534 3,000 23,776 11,855 9,548 74,713
Exchange realignment T 5 4 = = = = (275) (275)
At 31 March 2013 T F—=A4F
“A=+—H 26,534 3,000 23,776 11,855 9,273 74,438
Accumulated ZEl 8y
amortisation and p3
impairment IRAE
At 1 April 2011 A
J9H—H 14,357 2,737 1,896 741 3,975 23,706
Exchange realignment — fE 56,3 % - - - - (21) (21)
Charged for the year T B
(note 9) (Fft3E9) - 263 1,750 2,964 952 5,929
Impairment loss (note 7) W (E M54 (Bt 5E7) 12,177 - - - - 12,177
Disposal e - - - - (204) (204)
Disposal of a listed 4 — ] T
subsidiary Wi J 2 )
(note 47(c)) (F3E47(c)) - - (517) - - (517)
At 31 March 2012 T F— AR
“A=+—H 26,534 3,000 3,129 3,705 4,702 41,070
Exchange realignment T 5, = = = = (152) (152)
Charged for the year G di]
(note 9) (K5E9) - - 1,584 2,964 949 5,497
At 31 March 2013 R T AR
Z“H=+—H 26,534 3,000 4,713 6,669 5,499 46,415
Carrying value R 1A
At 31 March 2013 hF =4
“A=+—H - - 19,063 5,186 3,774 28,023
At 31 March 2012 W TE - AR
=H=+—H - - 20,647 8,150 4,846 33,643
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19

Other Intangible Assets (continued)

Other intangible assets (other than roads, drainage and waterworks
license (“License”) are amortised on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of following estimated useful lives or license period:

Cold storage and public bonded warehouse licenses 10 years
Trademark of restaurants and bars 15 years
Favourable leases 4 years

The Directors are of the opinion that the upkeep of this License is at
minimal cost and the Group would renew this License continuously.
This License is considered by the management of the Group as having
an indefinite useful life and will not be amortised until its useful life
is determined to be finite upon reassessment of its useful life annually
by the management. Instead, it will be tested for impairment annually
and whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired. Particulars
of the impairment testing are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The trademarks and favourable leases of restaurants and bars were
purchased as part of business combinations in prior years. The
trademarks and favourable leases are considered by the management
of the Group as having finite lives of 15 years and 4 years respectively.
These intangible assets will be tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired. Particulars
of the impairment testing are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Interests in Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG TS TR I R

18 H b B & & (50

HABSEIE G (B B - IR MoK TR
IECTRRIR 1) 81 ) T LAE B335 45 81 Akt n] il
P S0 e A T o 2 e A T i

VTR IR R 2 SR AR BT e I t4E
A T TE 2 A T
AT E PO 4

HHRE > EAIM IR TR A R > AR EE
NG A% L R BEOR B oy o ACE I A B R R
IR R AT R KR AT AR > OHOR bl
B > T & TE A SR g EL nT AR AR S
FEAG AR o B EL AT (AR B B 2 1k o o
AR AT S AR B RT RE W(E B 52 Rp A 17 9 (B
WL 7 BRIt 2 W I O 45 A A 5 i
FMFEE39 ©

A HE T N 2 A R AT R BT A AT AR
FEOERS A DR A o ACHE [ BB 0 1 L5
T8 8 B AT A AR B 2 A7 BRAT 4R 0 20 il 2%
AR R PUAR o AT T T S A AR S T
B AT B BBl 5 50 IR AT B Tk » A7 B
WAE B 2 R MO A 5 AT R 5839

19 Fie 0 Bk J&§ 2 vi) 2 i 2

The Company A H]
2013 2012
Y 37 gy
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T o0
Non-current: FEwE
Cost less impairment BLAR FI R ok (B
Unlisted shares JE LT 2 ey 955,231 955,231
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE g o J 2 ] i K 2,234,354 2,030,917
3,189,585 2,986,148
Current: WE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JHRE M A Jo 2 R R 2,480,524 1,985,227
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST A Ji 2 ) K 2,777,599 2,636,112

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2013 are
set out in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

Amounts due from subsidiaries classified as non-current assets are
unsecured, interest-free and considered equity in nature.

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries under current assets and current
liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand; except
for a sum of amounts due from subsidiaries totalling HK$313,401,000
(2012: HK$195,550,000) which is interest bearing at Prime Rate of The
Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (“Prime Rate”) or
Prime Rate plus 3% (2012: Prime Rate plus 3%) per annum.

WoF—=ZFEH = A2 EEMEA A
R RN AR S A F IR N RE49 o

TR R VLY Y S 2 FIR A fE
A S S A AR R

R B T B AR B A R A
FR R A A R R PR R R - M
Wi B i > IR A s 6313,401,0000T (—
F— 4 1 #%195,550,00000) 2 A
TR A R A T PR ) 2 B B R R ([ SR B
FIEE ) ol B A RN AR B R 3% (=% —
A R N4 B 2R3%) B ©
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KA T R I R

19 Interests in Subsidiaries (continued) 19 Pl Adi BRI 2 Wl Z R 4k (sg)
The carrying amounts of the amounts due from/to subsidiaries under MEE A ARIE 2 A B A F
current assets/liabilities approximate their fair values. W 39 2 MR T (L B P AR A
The carrying amounts of the amounts due from subsidiaries are JRE ST o8 2 R K 2 MR TR (BT LA R B B
denominated in the following currencies: BEAV :
2013 2012
gk s
HK$’000 HK$'000
W T oo T T
Canadian dollar JIIE/NTH 208,402 212,161
Hong Kong dollar W 4,181,610 3,464,141
Renminbi NV 184,877 176,252
Singapore dollar T 126,121 154,519
Others HoAth 13,868 9,071
The carrying amounts of the amounts due to subsidiaries are JRE AR B o 2 )R 3k 2 MR T () LA T B B
denominated in the following currencies: B
2013 2012
e R
HK$’000 HK$'000
T o T T
Euro [k 2 56,105 58,867
Hong Kong dollar il 2,432,743 2,311,713
Macau Pataca T 286,677 265,532
US dollar ETT 2,074 -
20 Interests in Associates 20 PGS A 6 2 HE 2R
The Group The Company
A4 A 2 ]
2013 2012 2013 2012
R = TE T R = TE AR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

W T el T T W T8 it T T

Non-current: FEE) -
Interests in associates, including R - GNCIFA £
goodwill (oEiTE 560,250 539,152 89,594 89,594
Amounts due from associates JRE VST B A5 2 R K
(note b) (Pt 5EDb) 413,264 389,876 - -
973,514 929,028 89,594 89,594
Current: W
Amounts due from associates JREMAC B 25 A mI R 3K
(note b) (if3¥b) 33,830 32,163 38,083 -
Amount due to an associate JEASE— 1B 5 2 m) W 2K
(note b) (F3Eb) — - - 5,795
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 Interests in Associates (continued)
The movements in the Group’s interests in associates during the year are

an\ = A PA TR R

iFs

20 Friliee A vl Z REAR ()

AL BAR I T AG B0 2 B 2 HEAR B E) 2 A0 AT

analysed as follows:

LU

2013 2012

—e-p e

HK$’000 HK$’000

ikl P T T

At 1 April WA —H 539,152 502,162
Exchange realignment T 5, e 2,545 5,370
Addition N E 4 -
Share of results RNE 96,583 94,478
Disposal of an associate (note 47(d)) & — s A ] (FEE47(d)) - (2,558)
Dividends i S (78,034) (60,300)
At 31 March W=H=1+—H 560,250 539,152

The summarised financial information of the Group’s associates is set

out below:

AR PG O ) 2 B ORI B O I R

2013 2012

=R = e e

HK$’000 HK$'000

T 0 T 0

Total assets ML 6,221,114 5,434,399
Total liabilities PN =L (4,680,458) (3,983,099)
Non-controlling interests IEHE A 25 (107,508) (43,531)
1,433,148 1,407,769

Revenue A 9,771,330 8,931,292
Profit for the year AE IS | 185,648 232,804

Notes:

(@) Particulars regarding the principal associates as at 31 March 2013 are set out
in note 50 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b)  Amounts due from associates are unsecured and interest-free, except for the
Group'’s balance of HK$73,652,000 (2012: HK$155,077,000) which bears

interest at rates mutually agreed between relevant parties.

Amounts due from associates of the Group under non-current assets are
considered equity in nature while amounts due from/to associates under
current assets/liabilities are repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to associates under current
assets/liabilities approximate their fair values.

Bt -

(@) MZF—ZF=A=+—HKEEHEAHA
2R O S A S R I 550 o

(b HEMACHH 25 /A MR K By A e e B o A4
[ 2 4 B 73,652,00070 ( % — —4F ¢ il
5 155,077,00070) 1 A BT % 77 35 s e 19

FIFHE

& i i By AR S T R A D R B
WAMERR R - MBWEEEAMZE
e, A W DR B 2B 4 SR

JE L) R RIE R 2 MR RE A
R A 2 W TR BRLEC Y S ERRAT
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KA T R I R

20 Interests in Associates (continued) 20 PGS A 6]l 2 HERR ()

Notes: (continued) BFGE - (48D
(b)  (continued) (b) (&)
The carrying amounts of amounts due from associates are denominated in the R WA B 45 2 ) R K 2 R TR (I TS DA R B B
following currencies: B
The Group The Company
ASE A Tl
2013 2012 2013 2012
R4 i SRS TR TR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T W T T 0
Hong Kong dollar i 209,919 138,741 38,083 -
Renminbi N 237,175 283,298 - —
The carrying amount of amount due to an associate is denominated in the JRE AR — YT 25 2 D MR 2 MR T (LTS LA 91
following currency: W S B
The Group The Company
ASE M Ao
2013 2012 2013 2012
e —E - e e St S
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
W T T T T T 0
Hong Kong dollar ok - - - 5,795

21 Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities 21 P fli 3t [ 48 i) 4 2 2 HE 4

The Group AER M
2013 2012
et Y e
HK$’000 HK$'000
Wi T T
Non-current: )
Interests in jointly controlled entities, e Ay e (] e ) 4 3 2 A
including goodwill 455 7 A 330,083 347,811
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities JRE S e ] 2 i 4 HE MR 3K
(note b) (Ffkb) 893,046 327,322
1,223,129 675,133
Current: )
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities JRE g e ) 2 1 £ SR K
(note b) (i 5ED) 378,065 557,286
The movements in the Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities A B A 79 T A S m] P ) A S RE AR A B
during the year are analysed as follows: AT
2013 2012
e St 2 TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
At 1 April WEA—H 347,811 389,564
Exchange realignment e 58 3,714 20,280
Share of results JIRICE S (18,611) (62,033)
Dividends [itgEN (2,831) -
At 31 March W=H=+—H 330,083 347,811

114

Chevalier International Holdings Limited - [# B4 45 FRA 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG TS TR I R

21 Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities (continued) 21 JIr Al 36 W] 458 il 4 36 2 BE AR ()
The summarised financial information of the jointly controlled entities B AR AR [ BT A5 RE 45 AT I 2 L[] 2 o £ 2 2 B
related to the Group’s interest is set out below: BE R R

2013 2012

e S et

HK$’000 HK$'000

T o0 W T 0

Non-current assets I Eh 464,673 448,505

Current assets S E 901,676 946,582
Current liabilities E) B (833,203) (966,016)
Non-current liabilities I Ui ) £ A (234,058) (113,331)
299,088 315,740

Revenue A 117,720 102,791
Expenses, including taxation X (B BLIA) (136,331) (164,824)

Notes: B3 -

(a) Particulars regarding the principal jointly controlled entities as at 31 March (@) MFE—=F=H = H & EE I

2013 are set out in note 51 to the consolidated financial statements.

(b)  Amounts due from jointly controlled entities are unsecured and bear interest (b)
at rates mutually agreed between relevant parties, except for the balance of
HK$78,000 (2012: HK$79,000) which is interest-free.

Amounts due from jointly controlled entities under non-current assets of
HK$404,000,000 (2012: HK$214,347,000) are considered equity in nature
and HK$489,046,000 (2012: HK$112,975,000) are not repayable within one
year while amounts due from jointly controlled entities under current assets
are repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from jointly controlled entities under
current assets approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from jointly controlled entities are
denominated in the following currencies:

136 2 OB OO B 5 AT R I RES T -

JRE Wi 3 (7] 42 ] A R By SRR S 4% A B
[ 2 FIRGTEL - MeAEBRs 78,0000 (=%
—TAF  {#79,00000) B o

JE FF U B TE R 2 R S R 4 A 2E R
Mk W 404,000,000 70 ( S E — AE
W 214,347,000 76 ) B 2 B RE 45 ME B %
# #5 489,046,000 JC ( = F — T4 ¢
112,975,000 7C ) 9 Z8 s —4F W1 PR (A fi 4 > i
R A Y TEN 2 R A [ A R R
TR -

JiE U T IR 2 i [R]  A SEIR K
W ThG {1 BEL L o (AN

JAE i [ 2 o A SE R K MR T ()9 DA 81 8
W I LA

2013 2012
e et TR AR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T e "
Hong Kong dollar i 874,560 623,718
Renminbi NG 396,551 260,890
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KA T R I R

22 Available-for-sale Investments 22 Wit EZRE
The Group The Company
N AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—®= B4 RSk —E4F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

T I0 T T W T W T T

Unlisted investments, at fair value:  JF F & » /A fofd -

— equity securities — AR I 3,880 3,880 3,880 3,880
— private funds (note) — RLFEHE A (B aE) 189,012 234,328 189,012 229,689
192,892 238,208 192,892 233,569

Analysed for reporting purposes as: it F & 4T 5

Non-current assets JE ) & 192,892 230,099 192,892 225,460
Current assets B = 8,109 = 8,109
192,892 238,208 192,892 233,569
The carrying amounts of available-for-sale investments are denominated Ak B 2RI E T L NS A
in the following currencies: i
The Group The Company
N AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
B ey Ty Sy Y e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T I0 T T W T T T

Euro e 23,286 17,441 23,286 17,441
US dollar ET 158,629 208,579 158,629 203,940
Others HoAth 10,977 12,188 10,977 12,188
192,892 238,208 192,892 233,569
Note: BiFRE -
The fair value of the private funds of the Group and the Company are determined A B B Ay ) 2 FL BRI 2 0N SRAE T 4 AR b T
based on the quoted market prices of the underlying listed investments and the B2 MG IR R L B 2 A el REE - TR
fair values of the unlisted investments, which are determined based on financial b 2 N SR A ) i A A AR S (B 3 B 4
models (such as discounted cash flow model) on the funds. TR ) E o
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ARG TS TR I R

23 Properties under Development 23 R
The Group y, N Y|
2013 2012
R =4 TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
bickic aPIn T I
At 1 April AEA—H 803,067 690,878
Additions INE 111,476 112,189
At 31 March W=HA=1—H 914,543 803,067
Analysed for reporting purposes as: R &
Non-current assets FE B & E 702,569 803,067
Current assets Ty B 211,974 -
914,543 803,067
The balance is related to a property development project in Changchun, R B LR B A R A T — IR e R I
Mainland China. A8
The borrowing costs capitalised to properties under development is B P S G AL A O WO 5 A TS
disclosed in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. RMIFES o
Properties under development are classified as current assets unless PR Y EN S BB EE - BRI A B
the construction period of the relevant project is expected to complete TE 2 0 T R O A ) 2
beyond normal operating cycle. The amount classified as current assets B R E-ZHE A Z+ - HER AR
as at 31 March 2013 was not expected to be realised within the next B EE 2 R A g R R T ZE AN
twelve months. BEHL o
24 Other Non-current Assets 24 Hth Ik i B & 2
The Group AL
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
# T o0 T T
Deposits paid for a property development project EAf—IH42E 88 RIAH 2 # 4
(note) (Fft&E) 67,599 45,894
Others oAb 38,538 37,591
106,137 83,485
Note: BFGE -
The balance represents deposits paid for a property development project in AP RRAE T —JHY R RIA A 2 O ATHE
Changchun, Mainland China. & e
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KA T R I R

25 Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

25 ARSI AR BRIERL 2 1 E

The Group The Company
AR M A 7
2013 2012 2013 2012
e et T AR R =4 TE A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
W T o0 T T #W T oo T T
Listed investments: R
Held for trading FrfE B8 &
— debt securities —(EHB 97,407 64,867 = -
- equity securities listed in —Fis bz
Hong Kong JBe A 8 25 59,549 57,570 31,756 14,817
— equity securities listed —ish b2
overseas 7 % 55 110,793 64,254 = -
— exchange-traded funds — Xy ITHE RS 606 407 606 407
268,355 187,098 32,362 15,224
Unlisted investments: BT
Held for trading FrfE U &
— debt securities —fiEH s I 28,077 37,245 = 2,925
— mutual and hedge funds SCR Y& plIE = 42,235 1,968 506 466
— equity linked notes — IR 8 SR - 18,910 - 8,579
— foreign exchange linked notes — HMIE 4 S 18,380 - - -
Designated upon initial recognition A %] i g #R IRF Bl 46 2
— debt securities — B IR 48,647 47,538 15,512 23,850
137,339 105,661 16,018 35,820
405,694 292,759 48,380 51,044
The fair value of the listed investments are determined based on the ETBCE 2 SUAE TR R A B 52 5 B B R
quoted market bid prices available on the relevant exchanges and the T A& E - Mk EiE 2N
unlisted investments are determined based on financial models or with To4 BB AL B E > BB B AR A B B S
reference to quoted prices from relevant financial institutions. A o
The carrying amounts of investments at fair value through profit or loss O MBS AAE 4 B B 8 2 R T (B A
are denominated in the following currencies: T B A LA
The Group The Company
A4 A 2 )
2013 2012 2013 2012
R CE A —E =8 S S
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T T W T
Hong Kong dollar ks 64,598 81,479 31,756 23,396
Japanese yen R 110,793 64,254 - -
Renminbi N 18,380 - - -
US dollar W 211,923 147,026 16,624 27,648
405,694 292,759 48,380 51,044
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LR B BB R MR
26 Inventories 26 7 E&

The Group AL
2013 2012
R =4 TE TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
W W0
Raw materials JEA B 14,269 14,592
Finished goods B R 186,022 154,097
Consumables FEH R 3,403 7,590
203,694 176,279

27

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost of
sales amounted to HK$682,223,000 (2012: HK$778,938,000).

Charges were created on the inventories with a total carrying value of
HK$47,174,000 (2012: HK$28,956,000) for the purpose of securing
banking facilities granted to the Group.

£ RERR £ = 30 3 A B 45 AR 2 A7 B AR
5% 682,223,00000 ( —F — Z4F - K
778,938,0007C) °

M T 44 (B 5 47,174,00008 ( & — T 4F ¢
H#28,956,00070) 2 7 & CAEHKHH - 1E 4
BT ALMRTEEZIER -

Properties for Sale 27 feEE
The Group AL
2013 2012
? Sy B
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T
Prepaid land leases A+ TH B
- in Hong Kong — s 26,629 32,806
— outside Hong Kong — HEE M TS 8,912 8,840
Development costs B B8 A 21,707 68,866
57,248 110,512

Properties for sale include the Group’s share of jointly controlled
assets with an aggregate book value of HK$18,129,000 (2012:
HK$18,130,000).

The cost of properties sold and included in cost of sales amounted to
HK$53,477,000 (2012: HK$24,177,000).

Charges were created on the properties for sale with a total carrying
value of HK$1,900,000 (2012: HK$24,858,000) for the purpose of
securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

P75 ) 2 A4 A 4 [T P Ak 3 () 428 o E 2
1A A8 (H 25 W5 518,129,000 00 ( & — —4F ¢
#:#18,130,0007C) °

EEWIAMERAZEEYWEREL
53,477,000 00 ( & — T B
24,177,0007%) ©

I T 48 (B 5 51,900,000 00 ( —F— 4 « i
#24,858,00070) & 5 O IR - 1
PR TARLEBBITEE IR -
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KA T R I R

28 Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments 28 JEWCIR K ~ £7 ¥4 K FE AT K H
The Group The Company
A 4 A2 )
2013 2012 2013 2012
=g oo SRS B
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000

T I0 T T W T W T T

Trade debtors B 5 RS 410,237 555,768 - -
Less: Provision for impairment W U T (18,450) (16,611) = -
Trade debtors, net B 5 ESME K > AR 391,787 539,157 = -
Retention receivables JE i {4 B K 183,763 186,204 = -
Less: Provision for impairment W AT (33,595) (989) = -
Retention receivables, net JE W B8 3k 0E - AR 150,168 185,215 = -
Other debtors, deposits and HA RO R - A7 <
prepayments Fe A A 400,146 598,623 1,530 1,745
942,101 1,322,995 1,530 1,745
The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each AR B AL B R F LR 2 1R
of its core businesses. The average credit period granted to trade debtors BHK - B TEEEF ZFHYESE /60
is 60 days, except for insurance business where credit terms granted to Ko MEfG TIRBREEDS 2 25 T & 7 15 S
certain debtors are over 60 days. 60K -
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade debtors is as follows: ASE I B 5 ENOIR sk 2 WRE BT n
2013 2012
E =4 TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T T
0 - 60 days 0- 60K 248,933 391,212
61 —90 days 61 -90K 41,437 75,806
Over 90 days HI0R 101,417 72,139
391,787 539,157
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28 Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31 March 2013, gross trade debtors balances totalling
HK$39,162,000 (2012: HK$22,942,000) were individually determined
to be impaired, which were related to customers that were in financial
difficulties. The management assessed that only a portion of these
balances is expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific provision
for impairment of HK$18,450,000 (2012: HK$16,611,000) was
recognised as at 31 March 2013. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. The movement in the provision for impairment

during the year is as follows:

ARG TS TR I R

28 MEWCRK ~ A7 % 5 B R AT K IH

(#5)

AT —-=ZE=A=1+—H > KAHH
B R T 2 b E R AR &S e A L
£ 39,162,00000 ( —F — —4F - ik
22,942,000 70) - B8 B B E 28 T
{8 o $3E G 2 5PAl - TE R AR e =138 4 i
SR o L R FE—-Z4E=HA=1+—H
Tile 55 9 9 (L 8 A4 2 5 95 18,450,000 7T (—
F— T4E  #EH16,611,0007T) o A4
0l 5% SR R A AT AT G o A AR A 3
2 2#HT -

2013 2012

R =4 e e

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T o0

At1 April A — A 16,611 8,268
Exchange realignment ATk S (9) 557
Impairment loss recognised i ek s 4R 4,502 545
Impairment loss written back B [ (e 18 (730) (334)
Uncollectible amounts (written off)/written back — (#i8#) /[l # A< ] g 1] 2 4 %56 (1,924) 7,575
At 31 March B=H=+—H 18,450 16,611

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are not considered to be

impaired is as follows:

BN T 98 (E 2 B2 5y IR WSO 3k 2 MR i 20 A7
W

2013 2012

g —%

HK$’000 HK$'000

W T o0 T T

Neither past due nor impaired Sz 470 1 B el 1 202,225 314,038
Up to 60 days past due 60K A 149,404 177,892
61 — 90 days past due w61 — 90K 12,904 8,761
Over 90 days past due w90 K 6,542 32,135
Amount past due but not impaired 2 (A R (B 168,850 218,788
Total HAH 371,075 532,826

Trade debtors balances that are past due but not impaired mainly relate
to individuals or companies that have been the Group’s customers for
more than six months with no history of default in the past.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade debtors are denominated in

the following currencies:

WL 12 0 B2 5 MO A5 B AR
R 4 2 R 1 LA K 8
At -

A A [ ) B WSONR S MR T (T DA 51 55
AL

2013 2012
S et e S
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T s T on
Australian dollar i 1,393 4,047
Hong Kong dollar il 286,888 452,835
Macau Pataca R 9,386 14,791
Renminbi ANEHE 1,262 2,785
US dollar ¥t 66,536 38,868
Others HoAth 26,322 25,831
391,787 539,157
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28 Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments (continued) 28 MEWCHESK ~ 1 k& B AT BROE
(78)
As at 31 March 2013, retention receivables amounted to AE—-=ZF=A=+—H  BEIHEHY
HK$33,595,000 (2012: HK$989,000) was individually determined to s 33,595,000 ( ~F — 4 B
be impaired, on which the Group experienced unexpected difficulties 989,0007C ) & Fll 48 188 7 J i T AB - T AR
during the collection process from the customers. The management SERITA B 25 i ] R SO T A b R 2 A
assessed that the balance is not expected to be recovered and full PO o AR PR RN - TEIUIR BRI &5
provision for impairment loss was recognised for the year. DR i A 4 135 78 SHORRE R 25y W (B R 1R, o
The carrying amounts of other debtors and retention receivables as at AZE—ZEZH =1 AR K
31 March 2013 were mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollar and e JREMSCR B SR TE 2 MR T 2 DA e AR
Renminbi. HHIE -
The carrying amounts of debtors and receivables as at 31 March 2013 MoE—ZAEZ A =+ —H o RERIR
approximated their fair values. WS I 2 MR T L BRLHL 20 AR (B AR A o
Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments is the Group’s share of JRE WO 3K~ A 4 4 M TE A BCE N C A
receivables of HK$266,000 (2012: HK$192,000) in relation to jointly A A T A R IE R 18 ) EE T AL 2 R
controlled assets. Koo B 266,00000 (F — AF T
192,0007C) °
29 Amounts Due from/to Customers for Contract Work 29 A A LR % )5 W XA
Z K
The Group A 4 ]
2013 2012
R =4 SR
HK$’000 HK$'000
T o T T
Contracts in progress at the end of the RHE AR Z
reporting period: T A AT
Contract costs incurred CEAEZ A HBA 6,956,657 6,025,709
Recognised net gains/(losses) CflEaR s, (s ) 1F 8 86,807 (110,649)
7,043,464 5,915,060
Less: Progress billings BBl : P RIE (7,450,934) (6,434,350)
(407,470) (519,290)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: R R T S
Amounts due from customers for contract work L AL A I B EE A AL 49 TR
included in current assets JE 1] % 5 iR 2 300 175,155 103,317
Amounts due to customers for contract work CEFRREAEAR AL TR
included in current liabilities JRE 1) 7% 5 A 2 O (582,625) (622,607)
(407,470) (519,290)
Advances received from customers for contract work amounted to MAEH TR RREF B & A&
HK$7,653,000 (2012: HK$15,000,000) and were included in creditors. 7,653,0007C (& — 4 : #%15,000,000
Je) - M B AL EE AT IR A
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30 Derivative Financial Instruments 30 fiAE M T H
The Group The Company
A4 [H A2 H]
2013 2012 2013 2012
=R—=4F TR TR =R =4F TR TR

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T T T 0
Financial assets/(liabilities) in respect fii /£ % T2 2
of derivative financial instruments % /(£ 1)
— interest rate swap contracts — M RHEE4
(note a) (B 5Ea) (5,207) (20,961) (5,207) (20,961)
— foreign currency forward — i B AMIE A £
contracts (note b) (B 5EDb) (632) (76) (601) 59
— put option (note c(i)) — BRI IHE (K 5Ec(i) 75,975 42,888 = -
— put option granted — PR R
(note c(ii) (BfF T (i) (25,000) (24,962) - -
— others — HAth 6,307 (470) - 611)
51,443 (3,581) (5,808) (21,513)
Analysed for reporting purposes as: it f & AT 4 -
Current assets Vi & 82,364 43,288 62 202
Current liabilities i A fif (30,921) (46,869) (5,870) (21,715)
51,443 (3,581) (5,808) (21,513)
Notes: Bi3E -

(a) Interest rate swap contracts of the Group and the Company with a total
notional amount of HK$1,070,000,000 (2012: HK$620,000,000) were
entered to swap floating interest rate to fixed interest rate or to swap between
different floating rates. These contracts will mature within the period from 14
July 2013 to 29 September 2015 (2012: period from 25 January 2013 to 15
July 2013).

(b)  Foreign currency forward contracts of the Group and the Company with a
total notional amount up to HK$79,744,000 (2012: HK$37,513,000) were
entered to swap various foreign currencies to other cross currencies. These
contracts will mature within the period from 9 April 2013 to 2 July 2015
(2012: period from 3 April 2012 to 20 July 2012).

(c)(i) The fair value of the put option was assessed at HK$75,975,000 as at 31
March 2013 (2012: HK$42,888,000). This results in a fair value gain of
HK$33,087,000 (2012: HK$16,487,000) included under other income, net
of the consolidated financial statements. The put option was exercised by the
Group subsequent to the end of the reporting period as detailed in note 48 to
the consolidated financial statements.

(i) The fair value of the put option granted was assessed at $25,000,000 as at
31 March 2013 (2012: HK$24,962,000). This results in a fair value loss of
HK$38,000 (2012: HK$413,000) included under other income, net of the
consolidated financial statements.

(a)

(b)

AR ) e A ) 19 U B ) 2 4w 400 2 1] E R
R o 2% A [7] 77 Y ) 3 [H] 2 6 300 1 57 57 ) 3R i
WG #  HAAFERRE 5 H1,070,000,000
JC (=% — AR ¢ i %620,000,00008) © BE
FHHMR - F-=FLATNAE %
—HAENH LA MBR (ST AR R
CE-CE—A T HEAE - F—SELE N
T H IR B

A B T B AR R By S [R) S A 0 B At 58
NEMEm A L MAMNES S > HAEKES
B 79,744,000 00 (& — T4 1 ¥
37,513,0007C) » W% G KM R =% —=
MARAE-Z—HFLA ZHMMAR (=%
SR E - TENA S E R
ELH T HBEAN) B -

DRBWMBER - F -2

oAl #E 4% B s ¥ 75,975,000 G ( & —
i W 42,888,000 00 ) o HET 5] BUA AR
{H W 25 33,087,000 JC ( = % — T4 ¢ ik
16,487,0007C) 7 A %5 & BA B IR F AU
PRI - A% » AEMEAT MR
HRE - SRS HOR S A TS R M R 48 -

(I R —F — ===+~ 2

7S Fe Al wF % B s 25,000,000 00 ( & —
A W15 24,962,000 70 ) 0 BT R A
FefE G R s #38,00000 (& — T4F ¢
413,00070) 5F A&7 G BB MR AR - F
BT o
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30 Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

31

The derivatives are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Their fair values are determined with reference to fair values
of comparable instruments in the market or quoted prices from
counterparties, except for the fair values of the put options as stated in
note (c) above. The net carrying amounts of derivatives are denominated
in the following currencies:

30

A8 TR ()

bl g T RS S MR 2 e ldst & o
i b SR RE (o) 32 Je 2 iR IR 28 R fE A1
ML THRZ A RETIRE R T H 200
By os A B T A R - AR TR 2R
TAVF(E TS LA R 51 5 o B0

The Group The Company
N YN/

2013 2012 2013 2012
TR T DR SE T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T T W T T oo
Hong Kong dollar it 52,075 (3,787) (5,207) (21,713)
US dollar S = 275 = 141
Others HAth (632) (69) (601) 59
51,443 (3,581) (5,808) (21,513)

Bank Balances and Cash 31 ST H T ABE

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held, short-term bank deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less and cash placed with
financial institutions. The carrying amounts of these assets approximate
their fair value.

The carrying amounts of bank balances and cash are denominated in the
following currencies:

SRATHA? LB & AR B E - J5OF B
PR % =AW A 58 AR 22 S5 3 SR AT A 50 A A
B S 0 2 Bl o B4 A 2 MR A i B FG
N SAEARA

SRATH5AF B Z MR TAT (LS DA R 31 4 W 2 e

i :

The Group The Company
A 4 A H

2013 2012 2013 2012
SR E4E SR E DB EgE R 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt i o bickica IR T
Australian dollar i 32,250 25,410 13,533 3,407
Canadian dollar JIE D NTH 34,368 34,423 10,120 10,252
Hong Kong dollar I 496,491 513,013 17,125 133,832
Macau Pataca VL s 14,676 6,012 = -
Renminbi N 314,039 171,305 119,714 112,864
Singapore dollar oM ot 5,207 37,240 57 33,689
US dollar SV 355,572 228,084 49,658 27,101
Others HoAts 27,413 19,722 5,748 4,261
1,280,016 1,035,209 215,955 325,406

As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s bank balances of HK$235,085,000
(2012: HK$52,629,000) were pledged to banks for the purpose of
securing banking facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 March 2013, the effective interest rate on short-term bank
deposits of the Group and the Company was 1.5% (2012: 1.6%) and
2.6% (2012: 1.8%) per annum respectively; and these deposits had an
average maturity of 28 days (2012: 24 days) and 29 days (2012: 24 days)
respectively.

MoE-ZAEZA=+ 0 AEHZ LT
a7 5235,085,00000 (& — T 4F - K
52,629,00070) E LM FRIT - (EARTA
B RATE 2SR -

AT —ZEZHA=E—H o REE AN
A] 2 BASRAT A L B R AE R R B 1.5%
(B — T4 0 1.6%) }2.6% (. F— T4E ¢
1.8%) > WA B H 2 Bl 2528 K
(CF— T4 124 K) 29 R (. F— 4 ¢
24K) o
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32 Creditors, Bills Payable, Deposits and Accruals 32 JEAFIRSR ~ HEAT SRR - TS
KR E
The Group The Company
A4 A H]
2013 2012 2013 2012
e S TR TAE e St R TAE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T BT W T T
Trade creditors and bills payable 5 REAST IR 2 S A 22 48 179,121 226,279 = -
Accrued contract costs THR A # AR 175,423 248,930 = -
Other creditors, deposits and FALREA IR -
accruals FEAF S st A 438,585 380,973 15,719 7,044
Retention payables JE A5 B8 Sk IE 119,301 110,590 = -
912,430 966,772 15,719 7,044

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade creditors and bills payable is as

AR ) T TR A B MRS S350 2 MR i 20 AT

follows: o
2013 2012
e Sy TR TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
#H T T T
0 - 60 days 0-60K 145,494 192,736
61 —90 days 61 -90K 3,381 2,636
Over 90 days 90K 30,246 30,907
179,121 226,279

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade creditors and bills payable

are denominated in the following currencies:

A5 [ 2 B ) E A R R B A SRR 2 IR T
Ty LA 5 85 W J LA

2013 2012

SRR TR

HK$’000 HK$’000

ik i P T IC

Hong Kong dollar s W 134,176 178,963
Macau Pataca B 7,472 18,352
US dollar B 16,959 12,071
Others HoAth 20,514 16,893
179,121 226,279

The carrying amounts of other creditors and retention payables as at 31

March 2013 and 2012 were denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The carrying amounts of creditors and payables as at 31 March 2013

and 2012 approximated their fair values.

Included in creditors, bills payable, deposits and accruals are the
Group’s share of liabilities of HK$51,000 (2012: HK$80,000) in relation

to jointly controlled assets.

NE RN FE-CFEEAET—H
At AT R B AT R P K L 2 W TR (L LA o
W B o

MR —CAER B TAEZH = —H
R AP 5 e R A Sk L 22 W T L BHL 2% o (EAH
P

JEATIR R - MEAT SR8 - FE A S R
TR EL B35 A4S 42 18 Ak AT B I 42 1 7 T A 2
Bl BEH51,00000 (F— 4 B
80,0007C) ©
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33 Outstanding Insurance Claims 33 R ERE
Insurance claims of the following business classes are not usually settled NE BRI 2 B R E— AR TE— A
within one year: H
— Employee compensation — fE B B
— Motor third party liability — RER = H |
— Public liability - AT
The claims development, net of reinsurance, are disclosed as follows: BB (INBR L) PR T
Underwriting year ZRAEE 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Total
SRLLE ZERNE ZERRNF CERE DR DR DR B

HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
NI ¥ IR (IR (i IR (i AP VRN (1 AP VRNNNR | WPV - I

Estimate of cumulative  fh#t 25

claims g
At end of accident year T AME ALK I 60,371 88,767 39,575 57,615 87,099 131,582 155,800
One year later —iEf 87,731 84,866 50,541 57,145 54,009 105,091 -
Two years later W4ER 78,949 55,288 45,852 52,207 67,192 - -
Three years later = 70,027 44,324 40,146 46,556 - - -
Four years later O 445 65,290 44,418 38,954 - - - -
Five years later TR 65,051 45,708 - - - - -
Six years later NIER 65,041 - - - - - -
Cumulative claims ZEtRE 65,041 45,708 38,954 46,556 67,192 105,091 155,800 524,342
Less: Cumulative W BR

payments E A 65,041 43,972 37,556 32,510 29,515 23,632 15,185 247,411
Claims outstanding as at A —&—=4F

31 March 2013 ZH=EF—HZ

R - 1,736 1,398 14,046 37,677 81,459 140,615 276,931

Claims outstanding as at j* ~%— "4

31 March 2012 ZHEF—HZ
KR 10 2,584 8,752 30,048 39,604 121,839 - 202,837

The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event PRBR & FJE N 2 8B ) 58 A B R R 2 A
will occur including the uncertainty of the amount and timing of any B > ELHE B 2 ANHE R TR R AT AT iy e 2R
resulting claim. The principal risk the Group faces under such contracts R o A BRI S S AR E
is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying R 2 B R R B A < A R R o £
amount of insurance liabilities. This is influenced by the frequency of R TET (B o Y2 B R E AR - R AR
claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid which are greater than JE RS R DS A T R B AR A AR A
originally estimated and subsequent development of long tail claims. PRI
The Group manages its insurance risk through underwriting limits, A [ A P R AR B BE ~ T E E R
approval procedures for transactions that involve new products or OB R 2 oy WAL ST - AT oL EH 15
that exceed set limits, pricing guidelines, centralised management of G~ B e L O Bl 22 B B ey S R
reinsurance and monitoring of emerging issues. LR R B o
The Group manages the variability of risks by careful selection and the A £ 1 FE LR 7 A BLURL R 2 2 B M A7 AN
implementation of underwriting strategies, arrangements of reinsurance, PR RIS ~ PR OR B AR T
strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims as BRIE B LA BT A 22507 B A 88 AR 2 R
well as the investigation of possible fraudulent claims. The Group also A K ) A G ke 2 R I o AR BN EAT
enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing of claims, T b L I VIR 2 PR By 2 O > LA T
in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments A3 A A [ 2 AN R S 288 2 O ] T U R AR
that can negatively impact the Group. Jit 2 JE B o
The Group’s underwriting strategy seeks diversity to ensure a balanced AR A ) 2 R R S = R — A o3 W - 1
portfolio and is based on a large portfolio of similar risks over a number HLE JFE T 2 AR AR — 0 B R 2 AR R
of years and, as such, reduces the variability of the outcome. ZH R0 JRER 4G DA ) BUARTS 2 1 -
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34 Bank Borrowings 34 HATHK
The Group The Company
A< 4 18 A2l
2013 2012 2013 2012
e St B S S B =8 TE AR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

W T T T T W T T

The borrowings are repayable it i 2 1

as follows: mr
Within one year —4ER 944,285 1,559,426 47,000 1,002,000
More than 1 year but not — AR ER

exceeding 2 years T AF 1,389,036 838,235 213,000 15,000
More than 2 years but not W4E LA _EAH AR A

exceeding 5 years FAE 1,989,470 442,610 1,639,271 200,000
More than 5 years A8 AR - 140,000 = -

4,322,791 2,980,271 1,899,271 1,217,000

Less: Amount due within one year ¥ : ¥ —4F X1 £ 436 £

disclosed under current TLEN A
liabilities WiwE 2 &% (944,285)  (1,559,426) (47,000) (1,002,000)
3,378,506 1,420,845 1,852,271 215,000
Presented by: 2505
Secured PEE il 2,054,220 1,343,804 15,000 17,000
Unsecured QAL H 2,268,571 1,636,467 1,884,271 1,200,000
4,322,791 2,980,271 1,899,271 1,217,000
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate their fair ﬁ%ﬁﬁ}ﬁ%ﬁuﬁﬁﬂi}fii AT %%fZTE
values as majority of the borrowings carried interest at floating rates. iﬁif%gﬁi/ﬁ‘“ SUEARAT » SRAT R LA S0 EL R 2
The bank borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: AL
The Group The Company
Iy A4
2013 2012 2013 2012
SR = SR SR R4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T W T oo T
Canadian dollar JJIE=NPTH 47,174 28,957 = -
Hong Kong dollar ki 3,016,846 2,532,675 1,899,271 1,217,000
Renminbi N 363,861 214,266 = -
US dollar B 894,910 204,373 - -

4,322,791 2,980,271 1,899,271 1,217,000
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34

Bank Borrowings(continued)

The effective interest rates per annum of the bank borrowings at the

reporting date were as follows:

34 SUATAE K (a

R SRATE R H R AE AR

The Group The Company
A4 A 2 ]

2013 2012 2013 2012

B L e - U et O

Canadian dollar Y E N 2.3% 3.8% - -
Hong Kong dollar e 2.3% 1.2% 2.7% 0.8%
Renminbi ANE#E 6.6% 7.5% - -
US dollar o 4.9% 4.7% - -

Bank borrowings of HK$2,054,220,000 (2012: HK$1,343,804,000) are
secured by charges on the assets of the Group as set out in notes 14, 15,
26, 27 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

SRAT 8 O %5 2,054,220,000 00 ( & —
4 HEE1,343,804,000 7T ) 5 DL AR 4E [ &
FEAEIRAH > R AEA MBI EM 5114~ 15
26~ 27 K31 N P#E -

35 Share Capital 35 BeA
Number of shares Share capital
Jeetn e H Jie A
HK$’000
W T T
Ordinary shares of HK$1.25 each g I8 T P 1. 2.5 7 2 4 i
Authorised: e A
At 1 April 2011, AT —H
31 March 2012 and CE-CEEAETHK
31 March 2013 R = =H=1—H 540,000,000 675,000
Issued and fully paid: BT RBRIRA
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012 and AT H—H
1 April 2012 TR -THE=ZHA=FtT—HK
SER-THEMA—H 277,564,090 346,955
Issue of shares under scrip dividend scheme FRAE LA AC 5T 54T I 0y 3,822,721 4,779
At 31 March 2013 W E—=F=H=1—H 281,386,811 351,734
128 Chevalier International Holdings Limited - [# B4 45 FRA 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR A B R I E

36 Reserves 36 f#ffi
The Group AR H
Other
Capital ~ Investment assets Share  Exchange
Share Capital  redemption ~ revaluation ~ revaluation option fluctuation  Retained
premium  reserve  feserve  reserve  reserve  [eserve  feserve profits Total
Bk fE HfbEE B MBS
R ARRH WG ERRE EERE fife EERE REER Fid
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
WETT lEFr BETr BWTx BWTx kMTx BETx ENFr BETx
(note)
(L)
At 1 April 2011 REZ——FN—H 417,860 365,125 8,799 42,730 179,057 3,967 422,597 2,692,475 4,132,610
Profit for the year AR - - - - - - - 657,897 657,897
Exchange difference on HSEAANE AR
translation of operations of UG
overseas subsidiaries, LR EEL
associates and jointly EHIEEL
controlled entities SNER A - - - - - - 69360 - 69361
Impairment loss on available-for- 7 fitii# 7 # %
sale investments transferred to -~ (A REE
consolidated income statement A & - - - 765 - - - - 765
Gain on disposal of available-for- & fithEZ
sale investments transferred to BEMfGEEE
consolidated income statement &4 i & - - - (8,669) - - - - (8,669
Change in fair value of available-for- - ATfitHi .2 f &M/ Rl
sale investments, net S8 5 - - - 64 - - - - 64
Exchange difference released HE-HEEL AR
upon disposal of an associate  JMESHEH
(note 47(d) (Hft47(d)) - - - - - - 1492 - 1,492
Total comprehensive (expense)/ AT () /lta
income for the year fak) - - - (7,840) - - 70,853 657,897 720,910
Dividends paid EARS - - - - - - (208,173) (208,173
Share options granted by a listed ~ —H il BAAEZT
subsidiary - consultancy services B — £ R
received i3 - - - - - 3,009 - - 3,009
Cancellation of share options SH—H AR
granted by a listed subsidiary trgwd 1/¢ 1 - - - - - (6,976) - 6,976 -
Acquisition of additional VB A E 2
interests in subsidiaries KAMER - (1,254) - - - - - (1,254)
Disposal of a listed HE—H LREAR
subsidiary (note 47(c)) (Jit3E47(c)) - (391) (14) - - - (332) 405 (332)
At 31 March 2012 e 417,860 363,480 8,785 34,890 179,057 - 493,118 3,149,580 4,646,770
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36 Reserves (continued) 36 ffifffi (40
The Group (continued) A8 (458)
Other
Capital  Investment assets Exchange
Share Capital redemption revaluation revaluation  Hedging fluctuation  Retained
premium  reserve  reserve reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
#A fE g SR
Befriifl  EARE PR R RGO EWEG RBEE  REEA A
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
e W W #WTx W%t #WTx W #WTx #WTx
(note)
()
1 April 2012 [ St 1] 417860 363480 8785 34890 179,057 - 493,118 3,149,580 4,646,770
Profit for the year A = = = = = = - 1,011,923 1,011,923
Exchange difference on translation Tﬁ%’ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@“ﬂ
of operations of overseas B Rt A2
subsidiaries, associates and Z%T%ﬁfr?ftz
jointly controlled entities MBS ER - - - - = = 17,344 = 17,344
Fair value surplus of properties B & it 4 £
upon transfer to investment WEZME
properties Bl - - - - 31,833 - - - 31,833

Impairment loss on available-for- 7 {2 &

sale investments transferred to BAEREREE

consolidated income statement Atk - - - 4,639 = = = - 4,639
Gain on disposal of available-for- &t EZ

sale investments transferred to frgs

consolidated income statement GRWEE = = = (289) - = = = (289)
Change in fair value of available-for- AT ik fy 2 8t & A9 A 72 (8

sale investments, net 28 55 - - = (15,462) - - = - (15,462)
Fair value adjustments on the derivative 472 £ 514 i &4 )

financial instruments designatedas i EBTE TR

cash flow hedge in respect of TS ]

interest rate swap contracts R AfE e - - - - - # - - 4
Total comprehensive AL /i

(expense)/income for the year Fit = = = (11,112) 31,833 H 17,344 1,011,923 1,050,029
Dividends appropriated EMRRE - - - - - - - (263,686)  (263,686)
Issue of shares under R BB

scrip dividend scheme AR 35,972 - - - = - - = 35,972
At31 March 2013 RoBosESf= o0 433832 363480 8785 23,778 210,890 4 510462 3,897,817 5,469,085
Note: Fft -
The balance arose mainly from various Group reorganisations in the past including Zefl LRI E i L 2 TE A E AR IE o RN
redomicile of the Company, spin-offs and privatisation of the Group’s entities. B~ LA R -
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36 Reserves (continued) 36 fifi i (40)
The Company y, N/
Capital  Investment
Share  Contributed  redemption  revaluation Hedging Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve profits Total
A %%
Bt 3 i 1 BB Ji ek Bl Bl TR A bkl

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
oL T T W T EWTE O BWTx

(note)
(BisE)
At 1 April 2011 S
JUH—H 417,860 95,413 8,799 44,163 - 877,189 1,443,424

Profit for the year A B i

(note 13) (BEE13) - - - - - 211,501 211,501
Gain on disposal of HEAfnE L

available-for-sale BE M

investments transferred %

to income statement e - - - (8,669) - - (8,669)
Change in fair value EIRE =P g il

of available-for-sale ARMEED)

investments, net T - - - 830 - - 830
Total comprehensive FERE )/

(expense)/income for it

the year B - - - (7,839) - 211,501 203,662
Dividends paid EATRE - - - - - (208,173)  (208,173)
At 31 March 2012 WZFE—TAF

=A=+—H 417,860 95,413 8,799 36,324 - 880517 1,438,913

Profit for the year AF B i

(note 13) (BEE13) - - - - - 6,883 6,883
Gain on disposal of T

available-for-sale e yllE

investments transferred LA 5

to income statement feti % - - - (289) - - (289)
Change in fair value Tt 6 2 B

of available-for-sale NREEE

investments, net T - - - (10,823) - - (10,823)

Fair value adjustments on #8725 Bl 47 &

the derivative financial 9 fiizk

instruments designated % TR

as cash flow hedge in A BfI%

respect of interestrate G A

swap contracts AR = = = - 41 - 41
Total comprehensive AT

(expense)/income for () /s

the year Fik i) - - - (11,112) 41 6,883 (4,188)
Dividends appropriated B /MRS - - - - - (263,686) (263,686)
Issue of shares under Uit DYy |

scrip dividend scheme  #17/ fi 35,972 = = = = = 35,972
At31 March 2013 e i

=A=+—H 453,832 95,413 8,799 25,212 41 623,714 1,207,011
Note: it -
Contributed surplus represents the difference between the value of net assets of AN BB T 22 T B N N ) 2 B B
subsidiaries acquired and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for B T B AT AR N )4y 22 T ([ 2 254« ARPE T 5eis
their acquisition. Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda, the contributed = JUN—AEN RN » AN T 2 BT T ] ik 4y
surplus of the Company is available for distribution to shareholders. RHE R > 4t -
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37 Deferred taxation
The Group

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting years:

37 EREBEIH

A4
T SCHTER TG AR R R A B 1 R AR R
ZEREIRERIEE M AR ) KIS

Accelerated Revaluation Allowance
tax of for doubtful Tax
depreciation  properties Trademark debts losses Others Total
Jn i
750 JE I GRTE/ES ik SRR 48 i BiIE e 1 Hpe ok
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
WHET o T T T T T T
At 1 April 2011 W oE A
MH—H 39,851 100,720 3,474 (24,391) 19,862 139,520
Exchange realignment 5o i % 134 3,165 - 2 479 3,780
Acquisition of WS W
subsidiaries AH]
(note 47 (b)(ii)) (BiHaE47(b)(i)) 1,894 - - - - - 1,894
Disposal of a listed 5 — i LT I
subsidiary (note 47(c)) A ( M]“j‘i47(c)) - - (30) - - - (30)
Charged/(credited) to  FEAFRE4E R
consolidated income Wt #5 %
statement for the year 11K/ (5FA)
(note 10) (F5ETO) 1,911 6,655 (175) 24 4,774 (4,941) 8,248
At 31 March 2012 \QE**E
“H=+—H 43,790 110,540 3,269 28 (19,615) 15,400 153,412
Exchange realignment JEE‘EET‘L% (124) 919 = = = 136 931
Charged/(credited) to  fE4FRE4i &
consolidated income W5 %
statement for the year 1Bk (5FA)
(note 10) (W3E10) 1,999 12,715 (256) 5 (2,408) (7,211) 4,844
At 31 March 2013 W R =4
=H=+—A 45,665 124,174 3,013 33 (22,023) 8,325 159,187

For the purposes of consolidated statement of financial position
presentation, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset.
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial

reporting purposes:

B A ARG I BTRILR Z B 51 07 5K - 5 Tk
T TE 7 % A RS TR AR o R IE B IA &5
IR BA T i 2 AT F

2013 2012

—g=g g

HK$’000 HK$000

W T T oo

Deferred tax liabilities R AEBEIE A A7 185,510 166,884
Deferred tax assets 0 S T (26,323) (13,472)
159,187 153,412

As at 31 March 2013,

the Group had unused tax losses of

HK$2,011,074,000 (2012: HK$1,953,664,000) available for offset
against future taxable profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of HK$111,569,000 (2012: HK$115,723,000) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$1,899,505,000 (2012: HK$1,837,941,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in tax losses are
losses of HK$5,304,000 and HK$65,103,000 (2012: HK$18,992,000
and HK$44,657,000) of subsidiaries in Macau and Mainland China
that will gradually expire until December 2014 and December
2017 respectively; the remaining tax losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

AR —ZEZHA=Z—H > REMEK
W 2 BiE 5 48 4 W 962,011,074,000 G
(=& — 4 «%%1,953 664 OOO7|:> )
W] P HE 65 0% A 2 B B e R o ol
111,569,000 70 ( = & — — 4« #5 H
115,723,0007t)Z$EIEE§T Eﬁﬁ By iR
BLIEE FE o [R A A vas 1 DA L 1) Eﬁc]ﬁﬂf?}c
£ T 2 Bl TE 5 18 %1,899,505,000 76 (-
FT— T 51,837,941 00075)5%.%/
R BT VA o 0T s L YL P % o I
i 6 2 w4 A 4 A AR+ A
M F—LAaE T H 2 R S5,304,000
JC M HE ¥ 65,103,000 70 ( % — TAE ¢ HkE
18,922,000 7C M #k ¥ 44,657,0007C) 5 11 £
T 2 B TE R 4R T A PR A A o

32}
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37

38

Deferred taxation (continued)

As at 31 March 2013, deferred tax liabilities of HK$17,032,000
(2012: HK$14,395,000) had not been recognised for the withholding
tax that would be payable on the unappropriated earnings of certain
subsidiaries. Such amounts were expected to be reinvested.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had unrecognised deductible
temporary differences of HK$8,522,000 (2012: HK$8,106,000). No
deferred tax asset had been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

Segment Information

Management has determined the operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the Directors, the chief operating decision-maker,
that are used to make strategic decisions. The Directors consider the
business from a product/service perspective. Principal activities of the
segments are as follows:

Construction and engineering: Construction and engineering work for
aluminium building materials and curtain walls, building construction,
electrical and mechanical, lifts and escalators, pipe rehabilitation and
environmental contracts.

Insurance and investment: General insurance business except aircraft,
aircraft liabilities and credit insurance, and investment in securities.

Property: Property investment, development and management, cold
storage and logistics, senior housing and hotel operations.

Food and beverage: Restaurant and bar business and branded coffee
shop business.

Computer and information communication technology and others:
Sale and servicing of information technology equipment and business
machines, retailing, trading and servicing of motor vehicles, and grocery
trading.

Segment revenue is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement, except that it also includes the Group’s
share of revenue of associates and jointly controlled entities on a
proportionate consolidated basis. The sales from associates and jointly
controlled entities to the Group and sales between individual associates
and jointly controlled entities are not eliminated.

The Directors assess the performance of the operating segments based
on a measure of segment results. This measurement includes the
Group’s share of results of associates and jointly controlled entities on
a proportionate consolidated basis. Unallocated corporate expenses,
finance income and costs, income tax expenses and other major
items that are isolated and non-recurring in nature are not included in
segment results.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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38

SR A B R I E

WEAEBEIH (4)

AR -ZAEZAZ 0 RAERS TR
JB 4 w4 IR 2 R AT R S A 2 FE B E R
R 2 B TE B R 17,032,000 (& —
4 3 %514,395,00000) > TEHIRZ S KIEE
FER#E -

AR —ZEZA=E—H > AEMEMZ R
R ] A e 2 B R s ¥ 8,522,0000T (—
F—4F 8,106,000 ) © FHFHE KA
S 4 A 40 2 M R B T R AR TR A B 2 T
FIVCET R 22 B WO R TR AT B 2 3R B
RIEBITEHERE -

7 RE R
LRI (CE R RO ) E M L
1 ot SR e 2 o LR T - D
FE S £ TSRS - A R
BT

HSE TR AR - R SR A SRR B R
T M A - B RER - TR R R
b~ EIEBE TR BRI AR LM T

FEAHT o

PREE R ALE - — PR BT R @G R
TRME AT 5 AR B) B SR 4

ES
Y

CWIERCE - B BE R - VRS R
~ T B BLRSE E 2E S o

BAR R T B B R I 26 o

M e U alVR B B A - IR i
Lo v Itk < S s - IREEE - B
Je W5 BUME L B2 5

B Z w7 LR i R 2w T
K20 BRULLASMIRBLAE 2 [ A 45 [ BT A5
B ) B I P A S LU A R HE 2
Ao B 2 ) R 3 [a] e b A SE T AL 1
DA A 1 W 8 ) e [ 42 o 4 26 ) 2 9
A AREEH -

AR B R AT AR 2
KB o iZat i ELAR A [ AR SR BB 4G B A
Do SR R] e ] £ S 4 B Ao 2R 2 2B o K
OYBLZA F SO B BT - TR B S
B H A B B R RS M B IH A A
TR IR EA
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38 Segment Information (continued) 38 S EER (@)
Segment assets mainly consist of non-current assets and current assets SRE E EE AR S MESIR I RN 2
as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position except T Ui ) SR o MR B T E
deferred tax assets, prepaid tax, unallocated bank balances and cash A BLIE ~ R B ERAT 4507 S B4 K HoAh ok
and other unallocated assets. 53 e B E BR AL
Segment liabilities mainly consist of current liabilities and non-current SHEEAE TR A MEIR LR AR 2
liabilities as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position B B IR B B e TR LA
except current income tax liabilities, bank borrowings, deferred tax R~ SRATA RR - R A o E A B LAt R 4 e
liabilities and other unallocated liabilities. AMEERA o
Revenue and results NS E S
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering investment Property heverage and others Total
4R TR RE
REIHE TR R bE Bk BRI A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EH T EW T W T T T EH T
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-F- 2R - DL
REVENUE BA
Total revenue 10N 1,952,629 220,371 811,273 589,443 678,658 4,252,374
Inter-segment revenue HEZHIA - (9,782) (42,943) - (10,391) (63,116)
Group revenue ERIA 1,952,629 210,589 768,330 589,443 668,267 4,189,258
Share of revenue of associates and jointly controlled  f7 {8 /A J bl Pl
entities N 1,979,322 - 62,454 166,401 753,261 2,961,438
Proportionate revenue from a jointly controlled entity ~ E ¥ A — kR H &%
eliminated BRI (59,894) - - - - (59,894)
Segment revenue AERA 3,872,057 210,589 830,784 755,844 1,421,528 7,090,802
RESULTS EH
Segment profit/(loss) MR/ (BE) 301,614 96,037 919,154 (11,190) (38,659) 1,266,957
Included in segment profitloss) are: HRER/ (Bl df
Share of results of associates R UNGE 110,615 - 43,070 (32,203) (24,899) 96,583
Share of resuls of jointly controlled entites TR R EES 872 = (19,483) = = (18,611)
Depreciation and amortisation, TERES
net of capitalisation TRERL (6,420) (1,064) (44,173) (30,269) (8,029) (89,955)
Increase in fair value of investment properties BEDEL LA B = - 670,113 - - 670,113
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 1%~ i Rkl Bl - - - (4516) - (4,516)
Impairment loss on goodwill e BEER = = = (6,805) = (6,805)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments & 7 ft & f 1 - (4,639) - - - (4,639)
Impairment loss on amount due from an associate U~ & A HUE 2 Wl B - - - (2,316) - (2,316)
Unrealised gain on investments at fair value through — f/A fb [ A SR 6 168 2 £ 00
profit or loss RERG = 41,886 = = = 41,886
Write back/(down) of inventories to net W/ ()RR TEBFE
realisable value, net e 124 - - - (7,835) (7,711)
Write down of properties for sale to net W HENESTRATE
realisable value, net ik - - (199) = = (199)
Impairment loss (recognised)/written back on trade  (FEzE) /4 % 5 ek
debtors WEER (1,675) 56 (734) (1,229) (190) (3772)
Impairment loss on retention receivables TR IR BB R (32,606) 5 = - - (32,600)
Unrealised gain on derivative financial instruments i i TR 2 & E Bl - 15,940 - 39,356 - 55,296
134 Chevalier International Holdings Limited - [# B4 45 FRA 7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR A B R I E

38 Segment Information (continued) 38 /3 HE R ()
Revenue and results (continued) N E 345
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering investment Property beverage and others Total
BEL EILER
BMTE  RRRGE P B BB o

HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T BRI BT T T T

For the year ended 31 March 2012 BREZZ-ZHESAZ—HIEE
REVENUE KA
Total revenue BRA 1,692,951 276,430 608,696 571,433 761,720 3,911,230
Inter-segment revenue M2 IR - (10,980 (47,119) - (3,351) (61,450)
Group revenue SRRA 1,692,951 265,450 561,577 571,433 758,369 3,849,780
Share of revenue of associates and jointly e 6 ] AL

controlled entities A 1,912,920 - 54,355 119,324 509,115 2,595,714
Proportionate revenue from a jointly controlled L ##3k A — bR HI A%

entity eliminated HGAILION (52,948) - - - - (52,948)
Segment revenue i LN 3,552,923 265,450 615,932 690757 1,267,484 6,392,546
RESULTS *
Segment profit/(loss) AR/ ) 208,860 (4,545) 408,866 24,419 (2,037) 635,563
Included in segment profit/(loss) are: SR/ ()
Share of results of associates Rl YNk 104,205 - 21,248 (15,545) (15,430) 94 478
Share of results of jointly controlled entities PR & %5 489 - (62,522) - - (62,033)
Depreciation and amortisation, net of HEPE iR

capitalisation REA{L (3,672) (1,019 (41,602) (26,626) (1,786) (74,705)
Increase in fair value of investment properties &% 2 /A RN - - 255,546 - - 255,546
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 41 + K5 Kk {2 Wi (ki R - - (4,338) (518) - (4,856)
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payments BNHESEZ WEER - - (2,876) - - (2,876)
Impairment loss on other intangible assets Jhde B 2 Wi EE (12177) - - - - (12177)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments ] i & 7 £ % (i s 42 - (765) - - - (765)
Impairment loss on amount due from an associate  FEYx— B E A Rl 2 2 Bl 48 - - - (5,994) - (5,994)
Unrealised gain on investments at fair value /A L (51 A3 IR 4L &40

through profit or loss FER G - 17,753 - - - 17,753
Write back/(down) of inventories to net M/ (W) SRR ERRE

realisable value, net e} 3,275 - - - (1,852) 1,423
Write back of properties for sale to net MR ETEE I ERHE

realisable value, net T - - 2312 - - 2,312
Impairment loss written back/(recognised) on [/ (Hz2) 455 el 3.2

trade debtors WEEH 8 (42) 2 - (179) (211)
Impairment loss on retention receivables JEN IR B 50R 2 Wi R (570) - - - - (570)
Unrealised (loss)/gain on derivative financial i MBETRZ KSR

instruments (ER) - (3,227) - 16,074 - 12,847
Inter-segment revenue is charged at prices determined by management BB 2 WA 238 5 (B 46 B B g AR T
with reference to market prices. By IEAE EE o
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38 Segment Information (continued) 38 &R )
Revenue and results (continued) WA B 3645 (7])
Total segment revenue are reconciled to the Group’s revenue in the BT RN SR AR B A A 5 i 2 R A 2 A
consolidated income statement as follows: IR T -
2013 2012
e S E S
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T o0 W T T
Total segment revenue AR A 7,090,802 6,392,546
Add: Proportionate revenue from a jointly s BB B R
controlled entity eliminated A2 7 Fe el A 59,894 52,948
Less: Share of revenue of associates and BB T A R ) B SRR
jointly controlled entities RZEIA
Construction and installation contracts BERLHELH 1,657,212 1,608,836
Sale of information technology equipment, B A - R &
motor vehicles and others HoAth > g 752,896 508,880
Food and beverage R 166,401 119,324
Sales and leasing of properties YR A 24,001 30,851
Provision of maintenance and PEALLRAE I
property management SE S-S iE 322,746 304,543
Hotel operations G 38,182 23,280
2,961,438 2,595,714

Total revenue in the consolidated income statement  JiA 454 i #6 32 2 AR A

(note 5) (B 5E5) 4,189,258 3,849,780
Reconciliation of segment profit to profit before taxation is provided as 338U A B BRABEA Vi A 2 iR AT
follows:

2013 2012

—eE—=kE R TAE

HK$’000 HK$000

W T T o0

Segment profit 4345 1,266,957 635,563
Gain on disposal of CPHL AR Ay B 2 iR — 135,426
Gain on disposal of an associate HE— B AR 2 ik g = 44,333
Unallocated corporate expenses R 2 H (26,767) (21,029)
Finance income AU A 14,606 8,528
Finance costs B2 (74,403) (31,705)
Profit before taxation R ot 11 Vi ) 1,180,393 771,116
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38 Segment Information (continued) 38 B HER @)
Assets and liabilities 1209 =N
Computer and
information
Construction Insurance communication
and and Food and technology
engineering  investment Property heverage and others Total
BER ERRER
PR L RERBE LiE Bk BRI s

HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000
T BT BT BT T T

As at 31 March 2013 RoB—-ZEZHZ4—H

ASSETS 43

Segment assets AERE 1,127,915 1,069,473 8,879,226 369,499 893,354 12,339,467
Included in segment assets are: SMEEEALE

Interests in associates il gNbe ) 382,145 = 165,525 6,683 419,161 973,514
Interests in jointly controlled entities Frif LRI 2 M 10,941 = 1,212,188 = = 1,223,129
Amounts due from associates i3l YNl 12,271 - 32 18,748 2,779 33,830
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities R R F 4 S 78 - 377,987 - - 378,005
Additions to non-current assets (note) R B EE () 10,619 112 1,050,244 49,613 41,727 1,152,315
LIABILITIES ffk

Segment liabilities B 1,070,565 509,319 231,745 99,945 77,228 1,988,802
As at 31 March 2012 WoE-"E=H=+—H

ASSETS ki

Segment assets &R 1,167,501 989,356 6,797,096 394,010 842,185 10,190,148
Included in segment assets are: EER QL

Interests in associates Bl A ml 2 i 342,833 - 125,643 40,665 419,887 929,028
Interests in jointly controlled entities Frib IR fE A B 12,894 - 662,239 - - 675,133
Amounts due from associates TEdicB & A Al R 2k 12,742 - - 19,421 - 32,163
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities FE S P b 0 3 79 - 557,207 - - 557,286
Additions to non-current assets (note) WEFEEE (M) 15,631 485 1,263,117 43,388 761 1,323,362
LIABILITIES A

Segment liabilities SR 1,223,957 499,956 209,967 77,38 75,859 2,086,977
Note: FffEE -

In this analysis, the non-current assets exclude financial instruments (including ARSI BB G SRR T B (5B
interests in associates and jointly controlled entities) and deferred tax assets. W N T J LRI e A 2 2 B R% ) SR AE R TG o
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38 Segment Information (continued) 38 7 AR ()
Assets and liabilities (continued) & RkalE g
Reconciliation of segment assets and liabilities to total assets and A E S B AUE E N A S SR
liabilities is provided as follows: T
2013 2012
R4 TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
#H T T T
Segment assets G 12,339,467 10,190,148
Unallocated bank balances and cash KA ECERAT 4547 S Bl 4 422,207 382,617
Deferred tax assets % HIE R TE 7 26,323 13,472
Other unallocated assets HA A3 AL 7,782 5,864
Total assets G R 12,795,779 10,592,101
2013 2012
TR TE TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT U T I
Segment liabilities AR 1,988,802 2,086,977
Bank borrowings ST IE K 4,322,791 2,980,271
Deferred tax liabilities 0 SiE o T 4 A 185,510 166,884
Other unallocated liabilities HoAth 73 & & 87,634 40,399
Total liabilities AR 6,584,737 5,274,531
Geographical information Hb [ & B
The Group’s operations in construction and engineering are mainly AEMEE LW TR SRR - /WM&
located in Hong Kong, Macau and Australia. Insurance and investment T AR o AR R G2 A kB
business is mainly conducted in Hong Kong. Property operations are fE o W2E2ER ETmAEFEE - PN - 227
mainly carried out in Hong Kong, Mainland China, the United States B (25 1) ~ sk S iy i g o
of America (“US”), Canada and Singapore. Food and beverage business BAREAE R - PR A M ~ PR S R
is carried out in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Macau and Australia. Ve o 5 B8 B s SR 3 2675 £ WA A i %
Computer and information communication technology operations are FEREVE o HAb 3B 2B & f A o
mainly carried out in Hong Kong and Thailand. Other operations are
carried out in US and Canada.
The associates’ and jointly controlled entities’ operations in Wi % ) e L[] 2 o) s 2 2 S S AR T AR
construction and engineering are mainly located in Hong Kong, R BN A S PN - EE B
Mainland China, US, Singapore, Australia and Europe. Property B~ VI S RN A o W AR R R B
operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Fts o P A AR o RERES N E W - P
Food and beverage business is carried out in Hong Kong, Mainland ) A b B NS AR o At KR A ST B
China and Singapore. Other operations are carried out in Mainland 58] A b % YR M 4 A o
China and Australia.
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ARG TS TR I R

38 G R (4)

Hb sk R (768)

Segment revenue by geographical market

B  2 R
Associates Associates
and jointly and jointly

Company and controlled 2013 Company and controlled 2012

subsidiaries entities Total subsidiaries entities Total

AAdk  BEANR  CF2E Ak WERER  ZF-CE

WEAR  HREEHRE A WEAE RS 2
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
4 T T % T T T T %
Hong Kong i 2,864,052 520,414 3,384,466 48 2,658,458 483,666 3,142,124 49
Mainland China R 50,777 2124392 2,177,169 31 44,725 1,572,918 1,617,643 25
Us FH 366,194 - 366,194 5 246,987 3,923 250,910 4
Canada maEk 352,384 - 352,384 5 383,420 - 383,420 6
Macau it 284,853 11,590 296,443 4 321,143 - 321,143 5
Singapore Hmgg 12,576 244,610 257,186 4 11,621 284,716 296,337 4
Australia kil 179,967 - 179,967 2 131,781 38,944 170,725 3
Thailand R 62,443 - 62,443 1 39,127 - 39,127 1
Europe B - - - - - 141,666 141,666 2
Others Hit 14,012 538 14,550 - 12,518 16,933 29,451 1
4,189,258 2,901,544 7,090,802 100 3,849,780 2,542,766 6,392,546 100

' The proportionate revenue from a jointly controlled entity is eliminated.

The Group maintains healthy and balanced portfolio of customer basis.
No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: nil).

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of non-current
assets other than financial instruments (including interests in associates
and jointly controlled entities) and deferred tax assets analysed by
geographical area:

A — b A 3 2 A B
5 -

AL R o 2 REAA - HEC
F At HIREE s RS
TEASE [ 2 B A 10% B L b (=& ——
A E) o

PR % W 5 R (L4 A1 B o 2 ) R 3
(7 2 o) A 3 2 M i ) R A G T D Ah
M It 30 5 22 I i B R T (A

Non-current assets

I i By
2013 2012
e S TR TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T T T
Hong Kong s 3,454,045 2,616,533
Mainland China Hh R A b 1,438,678 1,500,776
us FEH 869,407 286,183
Singapore TN 507,617 325,694
Canada YN 184,035 185,321
Macau e 27,697 33,015
Australia M 13,201 23,827
Others HoAt 19,640 22,157
6,514,320 4,993,506
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KA T R I R

39 Impairment Testing of Goodwill and Other

Intangible Assets

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in business
combinations, licenses, trademarks, favourable leases and others are
allocated, at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from
such intangible assets. The respective carrying amounts as at 31 March
2013 and 2012 had been allocated as follows:

39 P B L fth S B A - DAL T A

FERT AR R - SR A U A 2 R
JELRE ~ TEAS - A7 IAH B R HL A T TR U IR
B =AML B PR L Bl &
AL o R F SR TE - TE S
=t—H > HFAHZIREEC SR

Favourable
Goodwill License  Trademark leases Others
i TR HtE AR Jif
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EHTr WMt #WTe WWTx #% T
Cost B
Construction and engineering AR R TR
- roads, drainage and waterworks — iR R RO TR - 26,534 - - -
Insurance and investment [ vEie = = = = 4,743
Property LUES
- cold storage and public bonded — AR R R R
warehouse (note a) (Ff7ta) 66,027 3,000 = = =
- senior housing (note b) — TR (Hikb) 569,105 - - - -
Food and beverage Bk
- restaurant and bar (note c) — BB R (i sEc) 183,880 = 23,776 11,855 =
Computer and information communication T J & U BB &
technology and others Ay - = = = 4,530
819,012 29,534 23,776 11,855 9,273
Accumulated amortisation/impairment loss B3t 8, /WA
Construction and engineering LT
— roads, drainage and waterworks — iR R RO TR - (26,534) - - -
Insurance and investment TRER B A& - - - - (3,598)
Property kS
- cold storage and public bonded — R R R R
warehouse (note a) (FifzEa) (1,461) (3,000 - - -
~ senior housing (note b) —ZER % (Mikb) - - - - -
Food and beverage B
— restaurant and bar (note c) — R O (W iEe) (135,808) = (4,713) (6,669) =
Computer and information communication Tl K & sVl sl BH &
technology and others Al - - = = (1,901)
(137,269) (29,534) (4,713) (6,669) (5,499)
Net book value at 31 March 2013 R-B—-=H=H=+—H2
W T ¥ £ 681,743 - 19,063 5,186 3,774
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SR A B R I E

39 Impairment Testing of Goodwill and Other 39 R AL fth SR B At TR B

Intangible Assets (continued) (%)
Favourable
Goodwill License  Trademark leases Others
i 2 R i AT HoAh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT i
Cost AR
Construction and engineering AR LR
- roads, drainage and waterworks —E B R BOKE LR - 26,534 - - -
Insurance and investment b S & - - - - 5,020
Property LES
- cold storage and public bonded — RSN RRBLE
warehouse (note a) (Fitzka) 66,027 3,000 - - -
- senior housing (note b) — G4 (Hstb) 10,253 - - - -
Food and beverage E31
— restaurant and bar (note c) — R ST (i Ec) 183,880 - 23,776 11,855 -
Computer and information communication B R AR
technology and others Hoty - - - - 4,528
260,160 29,534 23,776 11,855 9,548
Accumulated amortisation/impairment loss B8, /WA EE
Construction and engineering 24 1 Wk
- roads, drainage and waterworks — BB I SOk LR - (26,534) - - -
Insurance and investment TR R B - - - - (2,803)
Property L/ES
- cold storage and public bonded — VR L A R R B
warehouse (note a) (H3ta) (1,461) (3,000) - - -
— senior housing (note b) —ZHBE (H3Eb) - - - - -
Food and beverage B
- restaurant and bar (note c) — BB R (Wi iEc) (129,003) - (3,129 (3,705) -
Computer and information communication T R e R
technology and others HAt - - - - (1,899)
(130,464)  (29,534) (3,129) (3,705) (4,702)
Net book value at 31 March 2012 R-B—-H=HA=+—HZ
LIRE 129,696 - 20,647 8,150 4,846
The Group tests goodwill and other intangible assets annually for A% B 1B g A Nl R R S A O
impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that they might T BEAE » BUE A BE DS
be impaired. HEATHIE -
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the o T PR R AR O A E (A
higher of the value-in-use or fair value less cost to sell. Both approaches HANG s E A ZEmE o B0 M
require the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise B ST TN e EEEESE
from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present 2R T A B SO B > DIFT R B
value. 1 -
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39

Impairment Testing of Goodwill and Other

Intangible Assets (continued)

The recoverable amounts of CGUs in food and beverage operation are
determined from fair value less cost to sell approach while recoverable
amounts of CGUs for remaining operations are determined from value-
in-use calculations approach.

The key assumptions for both approaches requires the entity to estimate
the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices
and direct costs. Management estimates appropriate discount rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGUs. Changes in selling prices and direct
costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes
in the market. Management determined budgeted growth rates and
gross margins based on past performance and market expectation. The
discount rates used are post-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant CGUs.

Notes:
(a) Cold storage and public bonded warehouse business

Goodwill, after impairment, of HK$64,566,000 (2012: HK$64,566,000)
is allocated to the Group’s cold storage and public bonded warehouse
business. The estimated recoverable amount is determined based on value-
in-use approach. The calculation uses post-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a one-year period.
Cash flows beyond the one-year period are extrapolated using a 3% growth
rate per annum and a discount rate of 7% per annum.

(b)  Senior housing business

Goodwill of HK$569,105,000 (2012: HK$10,253,000) is allocated to the
Group’s senior housing business. For goodwill arising from newly acquired
senior housing business in North Carolina, US, management considered the
transaction was completed close to 31 March 2013 and the consideration
paid was a fair representation of fair value less cost to sell at the end of
the reporting period. For goodwill arising from senior housing business in
Oregon, US, the estimated recoverable amount is determined based on
value-in-use approach. The calculation uses post-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a one-year
period. Cash flows beyond the one-year period are extrapolated using a 4%
growth rate per annum and a discount rate of 10.5% per annum.

(c) Restaurant and bar business

Goodwill, after impairment, of HK$48,072,000 (2012: HK$54,877,000),
trademarks, after amortisation, of HK$19,063,000 (2012: HK$20,647,000)
and favourable leases, after amortisation, of HK$5,186,000 (2012:
HK$8,150,000) are allocated to the Group's restaurant and bar business. The
estimated recoverable amount is determined based on fair value less costs
to sell approach. The calculation uses post-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a one-year period.
Cash flows beyond the one-year period are extrapolated using a 3% growth
rate per annum up to the fifth year and zero growth rate per annum from the
sixth year to fifteenth year and a discount rate of 15% per annum.

39 P B L fth S B A - DAL T A

(%)

AR BRETS 2 B i A A6 2 T ] < R T 4
O SUEANBR B AR R RIE R E o R AR
S 2 Bl 7 A B A 2w el < RS 4 A
R E R R E -

% AR O A 2 ARG A A S R R B
A R R T (E B AR 2 T ) -
LR Al AR S W I 45 I ]
(i % B A B R AT R B 2 1 TR B o
T 4548 % B4 B AR 22 5 A AR e ot 7 188 051 B
i By o e A 2 TR GE o B AR 4
LRI UM R R FE R R B A
2o T R B S BRBLAR - SIS i BRLAH ) 5
S AR BT U B 2 R TR

Wiz -
(@) WRORT R BB S5

A H564,566,00000 (& — 4F © ik
64,566,000 Z P A 43 il 28 74 55 8] 2 ¥4 3
TR BN RRARB A S o bR AT i E] 4 A T
PR P AB (B L R o A BT R
A% 2 —4F W BA S TEL L 2 PR B A% B4 i i T
W) o A — A 1 2 B i (AR 3 % 2 1
RERMBAFER7 %R -

(b) WA TS

# ¥ 569,105,000 G ( & — T 4F ¢ b ¥
10,253,00075 ) Z P4 43 il A SR 1 2 22 e
F T o WU O 2B AL R B AN N 2 LB
HEGEL RS > EHERLIALS
it — % — == A = —H R > et
ZARAE T 28Tl S 3 AR 2 2 Fe (ATl
BB AR o RS 5 I AR 8 e O 2 T By
TS BB S b F1 AT i [ 4 4 54 o A o A
(BRI A BIRTEE Al A PR A% 2 — 4R 10
WAFHTEE 2 BRBUA BL A T TN - R —4E I
Z B R A 4% 2 R R S A B A R
10.5%7fE5 -

(c) AR BT 2E TS

Tk (9% 5 W5 48,072,000 00 ( =& — TA4F ¢ ¥
54,877,0007C) Z P& - #8545 #5 1519,063,000
JC (% — AR ¢ 20,647,000 70 ) Z T AR
J A 1% HE 155,186,000 70 ( 2 — AR ¢ ki
8,150,00070) Z A7 A FH B 7 i & A 4 0] 2 4%
J5 R T O 2 o At T i ] G B T4 FefE
TR B8 5 A I A o A L O A0 T4 3 A
Z AR R BB B A R T o
W HAe R 3% HMRRHE
SBIAENARE S/ AE BB T I 2 T R T
BUFE 5%
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40 HEHREMBITBABZ M

40 Emoluments of Directors and Senior Management

Directors’ emoluments £
Emoluments paid and payable to the Directors are as follows: CAT BN FERZMEWT
2013
—®—=4
Retirement
Salaries and scheme

Directors’ fee other benefits contribution Total
ek BIRGTE
R 4 oAb 1 A Z kK Ha
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W T W T T W T
Executive Directors HITER
Chow Yei Ching (Chairman) JEDRI (£ ) - 11,913 - 11,913
Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and — SRi#E (& 4 3%
Managing Director) HFAAEH) - 15,000 473 15,473
Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy eSS
Managing Director) WEE S Fsl)) = 11,000 315 11,315
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar JEI 4 1 = 3,200 165 3,365
Ho Chung Leung ] 2% gt = 2,600 150 2,750
Ma Chi Wing kg — 2,000 105 2,105
Lily Chow EETE] - 1,400 105 1,505
Non-Executive Directors FPITEF
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph? JEaLik i 200 - - 200
Sun Kai Dah, George* TRBAE 200 - - 200
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles* Wi s 250 = = 250
Ko Chan Gock, William g 100 = = 100
Poon Chung Kwong* (note a) ot (ftgka) 52 - - 52
802 47,113 1,313 49,228
2012
TR TR
Retirement
Salaries and scheme
Directors’ fee other benefits  contribution Total
e X FEXON
e AU HoAh 45 ] 2P M
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T oo T oo T oo s To0
Executive Directors HATESR
Chow Yei Ching (Chairman) JEI TR (4 ) - 11,755 - 11,755
Kuok Hoi Sang (Vice Chairman and %1/ () 1% #
Managing Director) HFHAEIE) - 11,000 375 11,375
Tam Kwok Wing (Deputy eSS
Managing Director) (Al # A AEPE) - 8,000 233 8,233
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar JRIHETE - 2,800 135 2,935
Ho Chung Leung ] S it - 2,400 135 2,535
Ma Chi Wing IS - 1,360 80 1,440
Lily Chow (note b) JRFIH] (B FEb) - 404 30 434
Non-Executive Directors FPITEF
Chow Ming Kuen, Joseph? JR WA 200 - - 200
Sun Kai Dah, George* R 200 - - 200
Yang Chuen Liang, Charles® Tz 250 - - 250
Ko Chan Gock, William = 100 - - 100
750 37,719 988 39,457

Independent Non-Executive Director

Note:
(a) Appointed on 28 December 2012.

(b)  Appointed on 1 December 2011.

S BEETE
b

(@) MoE—TAEFH A ANHBERAT -
(b) WH_F——IFETH—HERME -
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40 Emoluments of Directors and Senior Management 40 EHEHHATBANBZME @)
(continued)
Employees’ emoluments 1 B B <
The five highest paid individuals include four (2012: three) Directors, T A LG4 (S A
details of whose emoluments are set out above. The total emoluments =) ES S B MR C RS L o
paid to the remaining one (2012: two) highest paid individual(s) are as I TFHESE -2 (T8 MA) REH
follows: P - 2 JE I A
2013 2012
e Sy TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind B~ RN K H A A A 1,974 2,863
Performance-based bonus e R BRI AL AL 2,532 4,856
Contributions to retirement scheme FEYINS - [P e 95 103
4,601 7,822
The emoluments of the remaining one (2012: two) highest paid Hfp—& (—F— 4 ML) RE iz A
individual(s) fall within the following bands. AT A B4 B T AR o
2013 2012
- e
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 #E 3,000,001 7C - ##:3,500,0007C = 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 #%$4,000,0017C - #%4,500,0007C - 1
HK$4,500,001 - HK$5,000,000 #%4,500,0017C — #%5,000,00070 1 -
1 2
The above emoluments paid and payable to Directors and employees bl T R B TR R RE AT 2 B4 R B R
also represent only benefits paid to the Group’s key management during BE - FSER FE - AE=A=+—H
the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012. AR 1) A B ) S T RE A O — A
H o
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41 Contingent Liabilities 41 AR AT
As at 31 March 2013, the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of ATR—ZFEZAET—H o AEERED
guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in relation to: B A AR 2 AR RR A S
2013 2012
R4 S S
HK$’000 HK$’000
ikl P T IC
Banking facilities granted to associates BZTEE AT ZBITEE 119,255 133,872
Banking facilities granted to a jointly BT —HIEE SR R EZ
controlled entity ST & 112,975 -
Banking facilities granted to a joint Br—AaEpte
venture partner HATEE 168,300 168,300
400,530 302,172
As at 31 March 2013, the Company had contingent liabilities in respect AR ZA ST —H o AARRED
of guarantees issued for utilised borrowings in relation to: B AR 2 B AR SRR A R
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
W T o0 T T
Banking facilities granted to subsidiaries 2T M E A w2 BT E 2,245,947 1,734,062
Banking facilities granted to associates BT S NT ZRITER 119,255 133,872
Banking facilities granted to a jointly BT — MRS
controlled entity HATE R 112,975 -
Banking facilities granted to a joint venture BT—288%%E2
partner AT & 168,300 168,300
Performance bonds and demand bonds of Bib IS A IR BE A T B 402
subsidiaries under certain contracts JBE A PR A B R AR R 42,101 56,334
2,688,578 2,092,568
As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s share of contingent liabilities of its MEF—-ZFZH=1—H > AL PTG
jointly controlled entities was as follows: FIRI PR 2E 2 s B T
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
W T o T IC
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage facilities #4788 17 % T L 1A] #4242
granted to certain buyers of the jointly WA T HR A4
controlled entities’ properties 5 S5 (7 24,466 70,938
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B AR I T
42 Commitment 42 A&
As at 31 March 2013, the Group had commitment as follows: AZE - ZH = REE RS
o
2013 2012
e Sl S S
HK$’000 HK$’000
b o T T T
Contracted but not provided for in the BT FIEH B &R A A ERELR S
consolidated financial statements in respect of BAFS R N R 2 AR IE
- acquisition of plant and equipment — WA WS KA 1,716 3,524
— a property development project — — RSB T H 472,906 74,941
474,622 78,465
Authorised but not contracted for in respect of (A EE R IH H At
a property development project TEREEHT & #) 2 AR 1,782,282 2,527,141
2,256,904 2,605,606
As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s share of the commitment of its jointly MF—ZE=ZH =0 AEETGHE
controlled entities was as follows: Sem 2 ARPET -
2013 2012
E- Sl CE A
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T
Contracted but not provided for B L H R FHE 142,581 186,693
Authorised but not contracted for EHLHEE R Z A 653,705 300,715
796,286 487,408
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43 Operating Leases

The Group as lessee

The Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises which
fall due as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

43

ARG TS TR I R

BEHE

ARSI A 2 AL

A S 40 L BAR 0 T 2 A O
T80 A A S 2 B S L T 3
WF -

2013 2012

o Y i

HK$’000 HK$’000

W T o0 T o0

Within one year —4E A 78,754 85,229
In the second to fifth year inclusive BB RAEN (BEE R MAE) 141,554 178,782
Over five years HAELL b 8,215 61,559
228,523 325,570

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic
rentals, and do not include commitments for additional rental payable
(contingent rents), if any, which are to be determined generally by
applying pre-determined percentages to future sales less the basic
rentals of the respective leases, as it is not possible to determine in
advance the amount of such additional rentals.

The Group as lessor

As at 31 March 2013, investment properties and properties for sale with
a carrying value of HK$3,257,253,000 (2012: HK$2,468,174,000) and
HK$37,402,000 (2012: HK$37,664,000) respectively were rented out
under operating leases. These properties have committed tenants within
the next five years. The future minimum lease payments receivable by the
Group under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following
periods is as follows:

B EORIE AR AR R - AR
TEAAMEA T 2 (AT &) () 2RI
% SR RN G — R I R A A 2 BT
P A A B 2 EA R G M E - KA Wl B
FOL R FAME e 2 AR

A EAE 2 A

ACFE—ZEZHA=—H S DEEMAER
T 2 18 W 2 ) o5 5 W 3 22 M i {8 40 Al 4
W ¥3,257,253,000 0 ( & — T4F 1 i
2,468,174,0007C) M # % 37,402,0007C ( —
E—T4E  #H37,664,0000T) o MY
MEFH R G8 A R AR AR N - AREFR T
G145 3 T AR 9 AR AT B 2 7 2 L A R AR

JE 2 B R T
2013 2012
—e=k e
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T o0 T IT
Within one year —4ER 89,713 81,246
In the second to fifth year inclusive BE AN (B W) 100,300 143,507
190,013 224,753
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44

Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by the
shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 20 September 2002 for
the primary purpose of providing the participants with the opportunity
to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and
its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
The Scheme expired on 19 September 2012.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of shareholders’
approval of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10%
limit is refreshed, at the date of shareholders’ approval of the renewal
of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate number of
shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes, must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue from time to time. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in any one year is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Each grant of
options to any Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder must
be approved by Independent Non-executive Directors. Where any grant
of options to a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-executive
Director or any of their respective associates would result in the shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
already granted and to be granted in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
issued share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in the
12-month period up to the date of grant must be approved in advance by
the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days from the date of
grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the
effective period of the Scheme to be notified by the Board of Directors
which shall not be later than 10 years from the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the Directors, and will not be less than
the highest of the closing price of the Company’s share on the date of
grant, the average closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant, and the
nominal value.

No options were granted or exercised under the Scheme during the year
and no options were outstanding as at 31 March 2013 (2012: nil).

44 Vi i At )

AN FIRRG 2 B HE T B (TAREEE])) Jo AR
BT AENLA H HE I ek R
WM > THEAMAG TSHEEKRG BB
AR T 2 HERE - A S 2 B AR A
oy a) S E B A 2 Ty s ) > AR A AL
Al R AR B A7 ] o ARFIBIE R
— AR A ILHE JER -

R AR 1 3] B ATA] At 51 81 T 52+ 2 B T
B A7 A BN A5 AR N D B TR E A
Fh#E H BB AT B 2 10% (1 51 #1432 4 R
B o B B SHE e S B PR A A
A% 10% IRAEME B 3% 2 BREE - (NE RS
AR T 1) AT A A i PR AR T S8 92 A 0 SR AT
il 2 B T RRE A 2 A T (R I 8 AT 2 e 2 PR M 4
B AR A A R R R E BT IS 2 30%
o AREEAN A A 2 S AHE o AT AT —
AR R T AT AT BN 22 R 1y B B R
AR AN A EBITRMNZ1% - % T
AT S~ A7 B d- B R 2 15— TE
B R 4y 0 ST FE AT LU o il )
P R s N AT S A A AT T
BN B2 WA e E SRS H
I AR A A R AT O R O R
58 SRR T 88 A7 BN B AT 2 AR A T R0
AN T Z BV BT IR AS 0.1 % S HA (1 8 et

5,000,000 » #% % HEBEAR LN F 2 R
St o

N FE R =+ B Rt T4
b PSR S A5k o W 1 T A B AN T 2 R
HE o S SBCHE AT AR AR A S B R AR R 2 A
2K PR A AT AR IR I AT O - 2 S i i )
FRAE e > A B W RO R A 52 F AT
FE AR o AT R R iy AR L E s R
DA R BAR A I AE B 2 B 2 i
B~ AL B T B B T 2
I B 5 JT £ Y- 3 i i A R A 2 ) BB Ay 2 Th
(B - DI & i o

A A ST OB AR AR T 452 ) AT G0 TR A
TR S = B R AT R
HE(CF— 4 ) o
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45 Retirement Benefits

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for the
benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in both defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Schemes”) and Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes (the “MPF Schemes”) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group and in
funds under the control of trustees. The ORSO Schemes are funded
by monthly contributions from both employees and the Group at rates
ranging from 5% to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on
the length of service with the Group. For members of the MPF Schemes,
the Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs per employee,
at a maximum of HK$1,250 per month currently, to the mandatory
contribution of the MPF Schemes.

The Group also participates in the employee pension schemes in
countries or locations where the Group operates. The Group is required
to make defined contributions at rates calculated as a certain percentage
or sum of the monthly payroll.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. As at 31
March 2013 and 2012, there were no forfeited contributions, which
arose upon employees leaving the ORSO Schemes and which would
be available to reduce the contributions payable in future years. No
forfeited contributions utilised in this manner during the year end 31
March 2013 (2012: HK$154,000). As at 31 March 2013, contributions
of HK$2,337,000 (2012: HK$1,849,000) due in respect of the reporting
period were paid over to variance schemes in April 2013.
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SR A B R I E

IR
AR 7 s I SR B 2 T 2 SRR
PRl <

AT AR [ 2 B QR 2L AR AR B 1)
SR 2 A G E (T AR & wH# ) Kt —
FRTARA 2 AT Gl AR S5
oz sl A AR (TR E ) -
FhE 2 R AR Y R A B AR
MG A FRE RS - s AR & - |
B R AL E g AR BIKH 2 5% % 7.5% 4
HERE > SIFAE B R AR 2 AR o A
SLEAREESFEZRE > WIEBAREH
ABZ 5% (B A2 Bis 1,250
I ) B A B R o A K o

74 4 ] N 22 B A (o] 28 7 35 22 I % o [
AR BRI REE o ALEFIZH S LA
Hr 2 4 T 7 2 BB SRR S

il 23 4w ) i R A A T A S e T AR,
L ¥ e Bt 3 mT A 25 A 45 130 ek 1 A5 {1k k2
e RZFE =R F - =H=1—
H oo S0 RN R 4 51 ) A B IR I 2 2R 4F 4
WA O B B R o B E =
= A= B L B 2 B
Wk (=& — —4F - @ 154,00000) o
R oFE—-ZAEZA = e
72 & 5k #0435 W % 2,337,00000 (=&
— T HEHE1,849,0000T) B W E 4
P H A e
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46 Related party transactions 46 HEAMAN L2 5
Details of the material transactions entered into during the year with A AR BT BN 2 AR G R W
related parties are as follows: T
2013 2012
e Sl S S
HK$’000 HK$'000
b I T T
Building management fee income from an associate 3¢ [ — 4% 28 7] 2 A F & H E g A 860 987
Interest income from associates (note 6) A& 5 WA )l 2 LR (B aEe) - 5,691
Management fee income from associates (note 6) & [ #5287 2 45 B UL A (K 5k6) 28,478 25,421
Management fee income from jointly controlled & [ & [a] #2 il i 3 2 B B U A
entities (note 6) (Fftzt6) 1,826 1,850
Management fee to an associate AT — TR S W) 2 B T (375) (374)
Maintenance fee to an associate T — MBS A R 2 R (5,128) (7,266)
Rental income from an associate HH— EBE A T 2 Ak A 19,308 18,935
Rental expenses to an associate AT — MBS A R 2 A S (152) (149)
Sales and marketing services income from e B — TR ) 22 B T
an associate (note 6) MBS WA (Bt ik6) 22,224 23,524
Secondment fee income from an associate A& 3 — [ A B 2 S SR A 1,100 993
Contract income from a jointly controlled entity 2 5 — H LRI fil 2 & LA 118,973 105,884
Contract services fee to an associate BT — S A w2 S8 IRE 2T (6,997) (10,134)
Sales of food and beverage to associates B TEE AT 2B/ 2,895 1,690
Purchases of food and beverage from an associate ] — ] i 4 2> 7] ik B 2 48 ik - (84)
Insurance premium from associates 2 19 Wi 8 T 2 AR B 5,602 4,835
The above transactions were entered at terms mutually agreed between bt 22 5 7% i A B A5 07 LR s 2 A GKRT
all parties involved. BYARS
The emoluments of the Directors, who are also considered to be key AN A S (DS R R 2 AR R R T A R
management of the Group, during the year is set out in note 40 to the JeE R ) 2 TR B T B R B 40 -
consolidated financial statements.
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47 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(a) Cash generated from operating activities

47 %3 B i SR N RE
(@ KEEBEEHZHE

2013 2012
—pap —F i
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T I
Profit before taxation B i i 1) 1,180,393 771,116
Adjustments for: Gk
Share of results of associates JIT A B v m) 2E AR (96,583) (94,478)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities  Jif fi 3% [F] 4 il 4> 3 35 4% 18,611 62,033
Interest income from bank deposits SRAT A7 AR (14,606) (8,528)
Interest income from associates A 1 g A m) 2 FLE A - (5,691)
Interest expenses on bank overdrafts and SRATIE L AR
borrowings FE S 74,403 31,705
Dividend income from listed securities e H LS 2 R A (44,931) (22,147)
Depreciation e 84,432 68,425
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T B E A 26 351
Amortisation of other intangible assets FoAth T8 5 4 4 5,497 5,929
Increase in fair value of investment iU/ E S/}
properties Hm (670,113) (255,546)
Loss on disposal of investment properties HEREY L FIH 300 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and EWZE - B LS B AL
equipment and prepaid lease payments FH 3 2 i 4 (157) (19,871)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of: HER N &TEZ i (1)
- CPHL —Hfzh - (135,426)
— other subsidiaries — oA Bf Jag 2 W 6,169 -
- remaining 25% interest in Sekisui SPR —Sekisui SPRER T 25% 1 i = (44,333)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sales HE & R
investments FA A i (289) -
(Gain)/loss on investments at fair value P08 FeAE B AR 25 i FE 2 $5E )
through profit or loss (ess) /a8 (42,503) 13,019
(Gain)/loss on derivative financial fiiA s TH.Z
instruments (Wess) 18 (35,587) 1,505
Write down/(write back) of inventories to net  fiftis, " ([0 48) 77 & 2 7] S 5 IF(H
realisable value, net AR 7,711 (1,423)
Write down/(write back) of properties for Mk, ([958 ) Fr 4y 3 = T s 8
sale to net realisable value, net E - A 199 (2,312)
Impairment loss on property, plant and W -~ R Az
equipment B 4,516 4,856
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payments T8 & CH 2 B (E 518 - 2,876
Impairment loss on goodwill PR B (E I 1 6,805 -
Impairment loss on other intangible assets  HAth JEf & 2 2 i (518 - 12,177
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AT 2 AR
investments A 1 4,639 765
Impairment loss on amount due from JRE S — P B A w2
an associate B R 2,316 5,994
Impairment loss on trade debtors B 5 REWIR 3k 2 s 18 3,772 211
Impairment loss on retention receivables JREMS R B T 2 i (1 s 4 32,606 570
Share options granted by a listed subsidiary — — i L7 FffJi§ 2> 7142 7
— consultancy services received JE FRARE — B A Ik 0 I s - 5,558
Operating cash flows before movements R E S 2 R
in working capital B4 i 527,626 397,335
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47 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(continued)

(a) Cash generated from operating activities (continued)

(b)

47 A B SR E XM )

(@ RAREREBHZBE (4

2013 2012
Tan—=lE b S
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T oo
Changes in working capital BEESEY)
Net (increase)/decrease in investments at o8 FRAEF A 25 R L 2
fair value through profit or loss (3 Wb AR (70,432) 57,338
(Increase)/decrease in inventories e (), (34,777) 489
Decrease in properties for sale R 2D 53,065 27,372
Increase in properties under development /& ¥ 238 i (92,034) (97,465)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors, deposits FEWCIR 2k ~ 17 4% 4 S A 3108
and prepayments Wb, () 327,835 (357,027)
Increase in amounts due from customers A # LA 1) &P Y
for contract work ERIE RS (70,066) (45,541)
Net increase in derivative financial firA s TR
instruments BED I RETE (19,396) (12,858)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to JREASH I 2 J i 25 R K
non-controlling interests (b)) /B8 (1,499) 1,444
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to WA H LRRE M & P S 2 308
customers for contract work (W) /s (39,982) 9,104
(Decrease)/increase in creditors, BEATIE R ~ HEATEEE - A4S K TE
bills payable, deposits and accruals A (b)), B (61,755) 66,668
(Decrease)/increase in unearned insurance ¥ {5 B 25 S o i B RO fE A4
premiums and unexpired risk reserves (b)) /88 In (35,439) 108,679
Increase in outstanding insurance claims RUOR B R E M 74,094 48,919
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income MEAEWCA (D) 1 (1,882) 2,407
Exchange difference e 5.2 % 3,400 19,660
Cash generated from operating activities 7R [ #E ETs 2 Blar 558,758 226,524
Acquisition of subsidiaries (b) eI B 4 Wl
(i) Acquisition of senior housing business (i) WL ER A
Pursuant to an agreement dated 11 October 2012, the Group Mg —F—-—F+A+—HZH

acquired a business operating senior housing communities
in North Carolina, US from independent third parties at an
aggregated cash consideration of US$119,623,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$928,274,000). The acquisition was
completed on 21 December 2012.

Pursuant to an agreement dated 31 May 2011, the Group
acquired a business operating senior housing communities
in Oregon, US from independent third parties at an
aggregated cash consideration of US$34,338,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$266,466,000). The acquisition was
completed on 30 June 2011.

o AR ] R M LA = W AR A
A 22 B L+ B AR 2 LB By
W > BlEHRE 119,623,000
270 (M R 497 928,274,000
JG) e RE MM E N S F — AR
FTAZ A —HER -

W —F——FHnA =+—H2ZW
o ASKE [ ) ST 5 = W AR A
7 7 55 180 B i M) 2 B S
o Bla g 34,338,000 7T
(A % #:266,466,00078) ©
PRI —F —— 4N A =+
H5E 1, -
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47 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(continued)
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARG TS TR I R

47 HiA Bl &R RN EE )

(b) WK Bt e 2 w1 (468)

(i) Acquisition of senior housing business (continued) (i) WL EREER ()

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T I

Purchase consideration satisfied by: WS 2 S AT
Cash paid ST BE 928,274 266,466

Fair values of net assets acquired Jir B A AU
(as shown below) (40 3CHR) (369,422) (256,213)

Goodwill arising from the acquisition B = T AR TR

(note 17) (Kf5E17) 558,852 10,253

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at the
date of acquisition are as follows:

A W B T T BT A K

PEnr skl B AT

2013 2012

e g

HK$’000 HK$’000

W T T o0

Property, plant and equipment (note 15) W12 ~ k&5 KA (HgE15) 370,990 256,213
Inventories pate 349 -
Debtors, deposits and prepayments MR K~ A7 Hh 4 4 S TR A kO 6,961 -
Bank balances and cash WATEEAF M A 70 -
Creditors, deposits and accruals MEATIR R ~ A ¥4 R TE R 2 A (4,284) -
Deferred income IRAEYL A (4,664) -
369,422 256,213

The goodwill is attributable to the profitability of the acquired

7R S SE B 2 R RE )

business. Ao
2013 2012
Y ey B
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T o0 T IT
Acquisition-related expenses WA AR BR) 52t
(included in administrative expenses) (FFAATECZ ) 25,839 7,179
Net cash outflow arising from the acquisition: WAl 2 B < AR
2013 2012
—g-=x g
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T W T IT
Cash consideration paid AT B U 928,274 266,466
Bank balances and cash acquired B A SRAT 4547 I Bl 4 (70) -
928,204 266,466
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47 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 47 HA B &R 2 LM @)

(continued)

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) (b) W I B & 2 W) (48)

(ii) Acquisition of a company owning a property in Kwai

Chung

Pursuant to an agreement dated 6 January 2011, the Group,
through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, acquired 100%
equity interest in a company owning a property in Kwai Chung
from an independent third party at a cash consideration of
HK$675,985,000. The acquisition was completed on 1 April
2011 and the company has become a subsidiary of the Group.

(i) WolkBEA DL S —H %

By — ] 2 7]

W T ——4F— AN H 2@
A S 975 30 — ] I 4 IR 4 | 1)
— ZA ST = OB AT 1 25 R
< — WA — A 2 100%HE
% B & E % H % 675,985,000
JG o RZWT SR R ——4E Y
—HIEW > MZA R M AREE
Wit g 23w o

HK$’000
T T

Purchase consideration satisfied by: W AR 2 S T
Deposit paid as at 31 March 2011 B oE—-—FEEHA =+ H2Z B4 102,525
Remaining cash consideration paid CATER T B AU 573,460
Total purchase consideration AR A AR 675,985

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at the
date of acquisition are as follows:

TP AT AT T AT L R
YRR AT

HK$'000
T T
Investment properties (note 14) PEWE (MsE14) 686,500
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JREMOIR SR ~ A7 ¥ 8 K FEAT 50008 744
Prepaid tax A BLIH 493
Creditors, deposits and accruals JEATMRER ~ A7 AF B K e A (9,858)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 37) WRIERL I A A ([ 5537) (1,894)
675,985
HK$'000
T T
Acquisition-related expenses Wi B R B S s
(included in administrative expenses) (FFAATEC ) 1,607
Net cash outflow arising from the acquisition: gl RS N R R B
HK$'000
T T
Cash consideration paid B A5 3 A0 A 573,460
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47 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 47 HEBERBEERME @)
(continued)
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued) (b) Wi B ) 2> ) ()
(iii) Acquisition of a group of companies owning a property (i) WA R T REZ —HY

in Tsing Yi Island

Pursuant to an agreement dated 27 May 2011, the Group,
through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, acquired 100%
equity interest in a group of companies owning a property on
Tsing Yi Island from independent third parties at an aggregated
cash consideration of HK$297,915,000. The acquisition was
completed on 15 June 2011 and the group of companies has
become a group of subsidiaries of the Group.

EW— A )

W _F——FHA T+ LHZ
bk o AN K B M — B IF & E I
J& 2 ) 1) 8 ST =05 Wi R A
NHEKREZ —HYWEN—HAA
Z100% M 45 B4 A AE 2 W T
297,915,000 ° #% i i H IE 7 —
F——4ENH+FH S > MiZ—
M A AR B A A o

HK$'000
W T 0

Purchase consideration satisfied by: WA 2 S AT =
Cash paid EATH 4 297,915

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as at the

TP AL AT AT L R

date of acquisition are as follows: R AR
HK$’000
T IC
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) W~ R R (B sE15) 286,000
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JRENSTNR 3K~ 7 4% 4 S FEAT SR 504
Bank balances and cash SRATHATF KB 11,434
Creditors, deposits and accruals JEATRR ~ 7 AL & M FE IR 2 H (23)
297,915
HK$'000
BT IC
Acquisition-related expenses S A B St
(included in administrative expenses) GGEAATEC 1) 710
Net cash outflow arising from the acquisition: WA Bl 2 B4 U AR
HK$’000
T T
Cash consideration paid AT B4 A 297,915
Bank balances and cash acquired T A SRAT 4517 S B 4@ (11,434)
286,481
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47 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(continued)
(c) Disposal of a listed subsidiary

On 17 June 2011, the Company entered into an agreement with
Wincon Capital Investment Limited (“Wincon”), an independent
third party, to sell its entire interest of approximately 54.14%
in CPHL and its subsidiaries, (together, the “CPHL Group”), the
Company’s subsidiary with its shares listed on the Stock Exchange,
to Wincon at a cash consideration of HK$243,622,000 upon
completion of the asset reorganisation of CPHL described below.

On 17 June 2011, the Company entered into an agreement with
CPHL to acquire CPHL's entire interest in Sharp Rise Limited
(“Sharp Rise”) at a cash consideration of HK$246,000,000 (the
“Asset Reorganisation of CPHL”). Sharp Rise holds (i) a 20% interest
in Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited, together with its subsidiaries
engaging in branded coffee shop business; (ii) a 60% interest in
Cafe Deco Holdings Limited, together with its subsidiaries engaging
in restaurant and bar business; and (iii) other investments in
venture capital fund. After the Asset Reorganisation of CPHL, CPHL
continues to hold a 100% interest in World Pointer Limited (“World
Pointer”) which in turn holds 51% interest in its three subsidiaries
(the “World Pointer Group Companies”) owning 9 restaurants and
bars and 3 kiosks (including Watermark, The Boathouse, Pier 7
Cafe & Bar and Cafe de Paris (Soho)). The remaining 49% interest
of the World Pointer Group Companies are indirectly held by Cafe
Deco Holdings Limited.

47 &G B & E LW EE g

(c) HifE—F _EmipHE AW

e S S/ = e i i = IR N7 R
& J8 ST =0 K OE G AR E A R A F]
([ 5 1) 7T ek - AR SCTal AR A ]
B 3w ez R > B R B 5 BT
L B A\ (FiAR [ H s
M ) 2 e A SR AR R i
A 54.14% 2 A HAE 48 T KO > Bl 4
1B B #:H243,622,0007T ©

AR ——EANHTEH > RAF I
Tt vz BEET SO R o DA I v 5 R A
FHAEBRAF ([ FIT]) 2 2R > Ha
1B % 246,000,000 7T ([ H 432 8
EEHEAM ) o FFHEA ()Pacific Coffee
(Holdings) Limited Z 20% HE % » % [7]
LIS 28 w48 B R o B Ol ZEES S (i)
Cafe Deco Holdings Limited 2 60% #
i » Cafe Deco Holdings Limited %k [f]
LB 2 R A S RO W 5 M
(i) oA A A 5 B 4 2 30 o Ho bz an
B mAE > HEw mgeR A World
Pointer Limited ([ World Pointer ] ) 2
100% %5 » 1 World Pointer HIl #: 4 H
= [H] B JE 2~ 7 (T World Pointer £E [#] 23
A l) Z51%MHE % > World Pointer 4E H
N FHEAT O [T 4 o T L DA R 3 TRT /N A
(B $EWatermark ~ The Boathouse * Pier
7 Cafe & Bar}¢Cafe de Paris (Soho)) °
World Pointer4E [ A @ik N 49%HE £
Cafe Deco Holdings Limited [ #:F¢47 »
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47 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 47 HEBERBERMEE @)
(continued)
(c) Disposal of a listed subsidiary (continued) (c) W8 i b s 2wl (48)
HK$'000
T T
Total consideration satisfied by: AAUE 2 o 5
Cash received CHiE
Fair value of 49% retained equity interest in World fifliWorld PointerfE 423 7] 2 49%
Pointer Group Companies PR I HE 2 A Fu Ml 243,622
Less: Professional fees and expenses W ST RS (17,621)
226,001
Net assets of CPHL Group as at the date of disposed: i H O A TR
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) Wk ~ W Bkt (MERE15) 9,643
Goodwill (note 17) P (FfEEE17) 7,551
Other intangible asset — trademark (note 18) HAb IR & - AR (M sE18) 183
Other non-current assets FoAth v 8 2,744
Inventories pace 1,311
Debtors, deposits and prepayments MR R ~ A7t 4 4 S TEAS R 0H 2,677
Derivative financial instruments A7 A B s T 24,549
Bank balances and cash RITEEAE LIS 153,301
Creditors, deposits and accruals MEATIRR ~ A AIE 4 K TEE 2 A (10,582)
Amount due to a former fellow subsidiary JRE A — I T[] 2% A J 2wk (26,876)
Current income tax liabilities IR A (42)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 37) WRAE AL TH A A ([ 5537) (30)
Non-controlling interests I P JHE 2 3,482
167,911
Share of 54.14% net assets of CPHL Group disposed of B H 8 Fr il H 497 55 4 [ & E V(2 54.14% (90,907)
Exchange fluctuation reserve released upon disposal B R (] 48 S IE 5045 T 0 48
(note 36) (Bfs3e) 332
Gain on disposal of CPHL (note 7) Hh vz 2 s (B RET) 135,426
Net cash inflow arising from the disposal: B T A B I AR AR
HK$’000
T T
Cash consideration received Bl R &l 243,622
Bank balances and cash disposed of CHERATA A L Bl (153,301)
Professional fees and expenses BLRER ) K S (17,621)

72,700
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47 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(continued)

(d) Disposal of an associate
Pursuant to an agreement dated 27 March 2012, the Group
disposed of its entire interest in an associate, Sekisui SPR Europe
GmbH (“Sekisui SPR”), to an independent third party. The
completion of the disposal took place on 27 March 2012.

47 A B SR E XM )

(dy 8 —H 2 2
WE_F—F=HA L H 2%
AR ) — 24 M SL A = 0 B R —
[H]8 %2 /2 F Sekisui SPR Europe GmbH
([Sekisui SPR)Z &= ¥#ifEss o HiH5IA
WoE A=A B HER

HK$’000
T oo

Total consideration satisfied by: HAE 2 oy K
Cash received D B4 49,600
Less: Professional fees and other expenses T SER T R A S (1,217)
48,383

Net assets disposed of: OB 2 R A
Interest in an associate (note 20) B A — R A W 2 RE 45 (K 5E20) 2,558
Exchange fluctuation reserve (note 36) HINIEE 50457 Bh 6 5 (B aE36) 1,492
4,050
Gain on disposal of an associate L — P B 0 ) 2 WA 44,333

Net cash inflow arising from the disposal: WA E A 2 BT AT

HK$'000
T o0
Cash consideration received B AR A 49,600
Professional fees and other expenses HiE A R H A S (1,217)
48,383

48 Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Subsequent to year end, the Group has exercised its right under the
put option pursuant to the shareholders agreement dated 7 July 2010
in relation to the disposal of its 20% equity interest in Pacific Coffee
(Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries (together, the “Pacific Coffee
Group”) at an exercise price of HK$81,660,000. The transaction
has been completed on 11 June 2013. After the completion of the
transaction, the Group has no longer held any equity interest in the
Pacific Coffee Group.

Subsequent to year end, CAAM Limited (“CAAM”), an associated
company of the Group, has completed its acquisition of 70% equity
interest in Moraitis Group Pty Limited and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Moraitis Group”) on 8 April 2013. The Moraitis Group is a fruit
and vegetable supplier aggregator and a supplier of fresh produce
in Australia. As of the date of this report, the Group has subscribed
5,000,000 ordinary shares (representing approximately 38.46% of
all the issued ordinary shares) and 29,471,104 preference shares
(representing 100% of all the issued preference shares) of CAAM. The
preference shares are convertible into ordinary shares of CAAM on a 1:1
basis.

48 b RS IE

EEEHA > REBERER - —FFEH
L H RS 22 e B A T o LA RR T AR TE
HIRER] - 5 IR Pacific Coffee (Holdings)
Limited & F B J&§ 2 ® (% 8 [ Pacific
Coffee 21 1) 2 20% R £5 » 47 8 24 U5 ¥
81,660,0007C ° #ZJHAL 5 Bk ZF— =4
A+—H5EmW - LML S 1% » AEFEARH
A Pacific Coffee® B HIAL [ HE#5 -

A H & ARERZ — MBS A A CAAM
Limited ([ CAAM ) B A =& — =40 A N\
H 5¢ Bl i H - Moraitis Group Pty Limited
T H: I 28 7 (588 [ Moraitis#£ [ 1) 2 70%
HEZE > Moraitis4E 5 £ 7K 3B K bi e 1L e 2
VEE 4 7 B foF SR AR 2 AL IR » AR AR
H > AEETZEBCAAMZ 5,000,000 5%
AL R (20 O AT IR 4938.46%) I
29,471,104 B 18 5 B (15 2230 C 88 17 48 50 ik
100%) o %55 M 5 e n] 22 1 501 Lo i) S 4% 7
CAAMZ 3 fif -
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49 Principal Subsidiaries 49 FEMIE 2w
Place or country Issued and paid Eifective percentage of
of incorporation up share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/ Class of registered Number of registered capital held
Name of company operation shares held capital Shares by the Company Principal activities
R/ R BEGYE ARTRHTERA/
gk HA% e b Bk /MR Reft ¥R REMHRA 2 BEWR T B FEEH
Directly Indirectly
1k i
% %

Cafe Deco Franchise Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 60 Restaurant and bar and

Limited it T #1007 restaurant franchising
BERATL R
BRI
Cafe Deco Holdings British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary US$1,000 1,000 - 60 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong L 1,000%7% fetik
SRR/
it
Cafe Deco Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 60 Restaurant and bar
Fib i #1007 BEREE

Cafe Deco Macau Limited Macau Ordinary MOP25,000 2 - 60 Restaurant and bar

RMGREERRAT i i 25,0007 BB

Capital World (H.K)) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000 5,000 - 60 Restaurant and bar

B (Fk) HRAA &il i s, 0007 {3 Il

Champ Success (Hong Kong) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 60 Restaurant and bar
Limited Fil il T BT

1Rk (Bl AR A

Changchun New Star Universe  Mainland China Not applicable RMB540,871,428 Not applicable - 96 Property development
Sheng Chi Real Estate E eyl NRH540,871,4287C AR B
Development Co., Ltd. (note a)

RENETRAFNERR
FREAAT (W)

Chevalier (Aluminium Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Supply and installation
Engineering) Hong Kong ik L o of aluminium building
Limited materials and curtain walls

AEGATR) FEARAR SRR R RIS

2R %A

Chevalier (Aluminium Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Supply and installation
Engineering) Limited (note b) ~ %k i3l 00T of aluminium building

H (TR ARAT (Bt Deferred HKS2 2 - 100 materials and curtain walls

414 T SRR R RIS
2R

Chevalier Automobiles Inc. Canada Common CAD$101 200 - 100 Sale and servicing of

LI L [LIpESST automobiles
PG RIS
Chevalier Beaverton, LLC us Not Applicable US§500,000 Not Applicable - 100 Operating of senior housing
EH AR 500,000 AER BRLERE
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49 Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

49 FEE A H ()

Place or country Issued and paid Effective percentage of
of incorporation up share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/ Class of registered Number of registered capital held
Name of company operation shares held capital Shares by the Company Principal activities
P/ C#frRAE ARTRHTEINA/
kA % e Tk /LB Rt %A REMHB A 2 BEH T B B3 >4/}
Directly Indirectly
HH LGS
% %
Chevalier (Building Supplies  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Supply and installation of
& Engineering) Limited (note b) % i HE100 building materials and
HE (EH IR ARATA Deferred HK$2 2 - 100 equipment
(Hfitb) i3 o TR RL R M LR S
Chevalier Cali Holding us Common US$4,012,000 4,012,000 - 100 Grocery trading
(Cal Inc. %K L 4,012,000% ¢ REHS
Chevalier (Chengdu) Investment ~ Mainland China Not applicable RMB250,000,000 Not Applicable - 100 Investment holding and
Management Limited (note c) "B A RER ABR250,000,00070 S providing management
Hd (R B service
AR (Wite) PSRRI B g2 O SR
Chevalier Chrysler Inc. Canada Common CADS$101 200 - 100 Sale and servicing of
SN iE 101mgkE automobiles
R AN
Chevalier Cold Storage Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 75 Operation of a cold storage
and Logistics Limited il L kT warehouse and logistic
HLRERA A business
TRV AR RIS
Chevalier (Construction) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,500,000 60,500,000 - 99.67 Building construction and
Company Limited i T 860,500,000 maintenance
HL (@8 ERAT W R AR
Chevalier Construction (Hong  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 - 100 Building construction
Kong) Limited (note b) &t L 1, 0007 EEduds
ALREFE) ARAT Deferred HKS10,000 1,000 - 100
(Hrith) it 10,0007
Chevalier (Corporate Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 100 Provision of corporate
Management) Limited Hik i L YO management services
He(EER) ARAT RO T
Chevalier Development () Singapore Ordinary §$2,500,000 2,500,000 - 100 Property investment
Pee. Lid. A ki 2,500,004 M3 VESES
Chevalier (E & M Contracting)  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$69,200,000 69,200,000 - 100 Installation of electrical and
Limited Hik L 169,200,007 mechanical equipment
RL(BETRARAA and provision of project
management service
GARER MR b
TR E R
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49 Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 49 B 2w )
Place or country Issued and paid Effective percentage of
of incorporation up share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/ Class of registered Number of registered capital held
Name of company operation shares held capital Shares by the Company Principal activities
oL gt R C# T RARE ARTRHTRINA/
b % B0 Wk /R Rt % REMHB A 2 B T B B3 >4/}
Directly Indirectly
H# [E5
% %
Chevalier Enviro Services, Inc.  Philippines Common Peso8,750,000 87,500 - 100 Waste disposal treatment
FHE #i 8,750,000 FE L% services
SRREmES
Chevalier (Envirotech) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$148,600,000 148,600,000 - 100 Environmental engineering
et (REEH) AR A Fif ¢ 148,600,000 RIRTE
Chevalier Gresham, LLC Us Not applicable US$400,000 Not applicable - 100 Operating of senior housing
*H AR 40,0003 Iyt TELERA
Chevalier (Insurance Brokers) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 100 - Insurance brokerage
Limited it i E11,000,00072 REEIR

L (RBRE) AR

Chevalier Insurance Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 100 - Insurance underwriting
Limited Fil il 1£7#200,000,0007C (R
HERBARAT
Chevalier iTech Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Trading and servicing of
R IRARAH it it AN computers and business
machines
U LGES
Bl
Chevalier iTech Thai Limited ~ Thailand Ordinary BAHT18,980,000 189,800 - 100 Trading of computers and
(note d) (ffzkd) R i 18,980,000 5k business machines
Preference BAHTI,020,000 10,200 - 100 EIERTERERS
[ 1,020,000%5
Chevalier (Macau) Limited Macau Ordinary MOP100,000 2 - 100 Building construction
LR ARAR i Hi #Fi%100,0007 and installation of air-

conditioning systems
and aluminum building
materials and curtain walls

BT BERLER RGN

EE RN RBOR R
Chevalier (Network Solutions) Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 100 Network systems and solution
Limited Fifs L B services
(B0 ARAT BERG AR
Chevalier Network Solutions ~ Thailand Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 Trading of telecommunication
Thai Limited RE L 15,000,000% £k equipment
(EEE
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49 Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

49 FEE A H ()

Place or country Issued and paid Effective percentage of
of incorporation up share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/ Class of registered Number of registered capital held
Name of company operation shares held capital Shares by the Company Principal activities
P/ C#frRAE ARTRHTEINA/
kA % e Tk /LB Rt %A REMHB A 2 BEH T B B3 >4/}
Directly Indirectly
HH LGS
% %
Chevalier (OA) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 100,000 - 100 Trading of computers and
KL (HERG) AR it i 100,000 office equipment
TRRRLERE
Chevalier Pipe Rehabilitation Hong Kong Ordinary HK$43,400,000 43,400,000 - 100 Design and construction for
Hong Kong Limited i T 143,400,000 flushing water, cooling
HEEEBEREAR AR water, gas, sewages and
drainage pipelines
et REBRRUK - 1k
R EKRKERE
Chevalier Portland Laurelhurst,  US Not applicable US$2,000,000 Not applicable - 100 Operating of senior housing
LLC #H AR 2,000,000% 72 I3l BRLERE
Chevalier Property Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$360,000,000 360,000,000 - 100 Property development and
Limited (note b) ik T 360,000,000 investment
HERRARA (kD) Deferred HKS51 51 - 100 P RErE
it ELRb
Chevalier Property Management  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Property management and
Limited (note b) ik T #1007 security services
AL ERDFERARAA Deferred HKS1,002 1,002 - 100 4PEE R AL
(HF3t) it i&H1,0027
Chevalier (Satellink) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,165,000 1,165,000 - 100 Installation and maintenance
H-(GRERARAR i i 81,165,000 of satellite antennae
THRREREERAR
Chevalier (Travel Agency) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,500,000 15,000 - 100 Travel agency
Limited Fit i 1,500,000 Tt (O
Hifcl A RAH
CIH (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 1 100 - Investment holding
LR ANE il ESH fR
CPC Construction Hong Kong  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$183,400,200 1,834,002 - 100 Civil engineering
Limited (note b) Fi il 183,400,200 TALR
AR ARAH (W) Deferred HK$25,936,200 259,362 - -
e 125,936,200
Full Ascent Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 75 Property investment
Limited Fit ki T ESIY

BARRARAH
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49 Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 49 B 2w )
Place or country Issued and paid Effective percentage of
of incorporation up share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/ Class of registered Number of registered capital held
Name of company operation shares held capital Shares by the Company Principal activities
oL gt R C# T RARE ARTRHTRINA/
b % B0 Wk /R Rt % REMHB A 2 B T B B3 >4/}
Directly Indirectly
H# [E5
% %
Giant Dragon (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 60 Restaurant and bar
Limited Bk Ei 10,0007 REERAR
SREEERAA
Goldyork Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 49 51 Property investment
ERBEARAT ik i #1007 LUESIN
Good Process Limited (note b)  Hong Kong Ordinary HKS149 149 100 - Property development
TS EAT A (H3th) it T 814970 B
Deferred HK$51 51 - 100
413 s
Info Dragon Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 60 Trading of food and beverage
EMARA &l Hi 10,0007 RUES
Kwai Hei Investments Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 1 - 75 Property investment
No. Limited Fik L kb IES/34
Lac Kar Investment Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3,600,000 3,600,000 - 100 Property investment
Limited Fil #i 13,600,000 7C ESE
IMEEARAF
Macleh (Chevalier) Limited Canada Common CAD101,100 10,100 - 100 Investment holding of
JIIEFN L 101,100M% K7 property investment and
hotel operation
YRGB T
LHERR
Macont Developments Inc. Canada Common CAD1,000 1,000 - 100 Property investment
nex i 1,000k 7 ESES
Marson Consultants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 10 - 60 Restaurant and bar
Bl AR AR it T 0 R
Matterhorn Properties Limited  British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 1 - 100 Property investment
EREWIHE i [ESH LUESIN
NC4 Covington, LLC Us Not applicable US$2,078,000 Not applicable - 100 Operating of senior housing
£H Nl 2,078,000% Tif TELERA
NC4 Magcreek, LLC us Not applicable US$1,652,000 Not applicable - 100 Operating of senior housing
*H AER 1,652,000% ¢ AR Augth®
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49 FEE A H ()

49 Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Place or country Issued and paid Effective percentage of
of incorporation up share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/ Class of registered Number of registered capital held
Name of company operation shares held capital Shares by the Company Principal activities
P/ C#frRAE ARTRHTEINA/
kA % e Bk /A Rt %A REMHB A 2 BEH T B B3 >4/}
Directly Indirectly
HH LGS
% %
NC4 Magnolia, LLC us Not applicable US$1,890,000 Not applicable - 100 Operating of senior housing
%8 R 1,890,000 2 i3l BRLERE
NC4 Oliver, LLC N Not applicable US$1,260,000 Not applicable - 100 Operating of senior housing
*H A 1,260,000% 7% AEH By eiing
New Global (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 60 Restaurant and bar
HEFR ARAR Fi i 710,007 BRI
Orient Talent (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 60 Restaurant and bar
Limited Eik L W RERET
T (i) ERAT
Pacific York (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 2 - 60 Restaurant and bar
T (F) HIRAR &k L o RERET
Peak Gain Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 - 100 Property investment
PAHRAT i L 07 A
Peak Restaurants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 60 Restaurant and bar
&il i #1007 R
Proud Rich Limited (note b) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$20 2 - 100 Property investment
BRARRA (Bkb) i L] 07 UESVe
Deferred HK$20 2 - 100
&t U
Quality King Investments British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$t 1 100 - Investment holding
Limited SRR il [ESH faGidn
Restaurants Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 1 - 60 Restaurants management
(Hong Kong) Limited it i ikab REER
Shanghai Chevalier Property  Mainland China Not applicable US$3,650,000 Not applicable - 100 Property management
Management Co., Ltd PR R 3,650,000£ 7 it and providing property
(note ¢) management consultation
B HAEERARA PRE R R E
(Jfztc)
Shanghai Chevalier Trading Mainland China Not applicable US$6,500,000 Not applicable - 100 Trading of lifts, escalators,
Co., Ltd. (note c) TR Nl 6,500,000 7T N electrical and mechanical

HREEEAARAR (i)

equipment
THER BB R R
55
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49 Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SR A B R I E

49 FEHE A H ()

Place or country Issued and paid Effective percentage of
of incorporation up share capital/ issued share capital/
or registration/ Class of registered Number of registered capital held
Name of company operation shares held capital Shares by the Company Principal activities
oL gt R CHRITRAR AATHHCRITMA/
b % B0 Wk /R Rt % AL A 2 BB T 4 b TR
Directly Indirectly
H# [E5
% %
Shanghai Chonmain Real Estate  Mainland China Not applicable US$18,000,000 Not applicable - 80 Property development and
Development Co., Ltd. (note a) I s KR 18,000,000% ¢ il investment
Eigdl 2 R RA R YRR REE
(Jf3ta)
Success Well (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 60 Restaurant and bar
B FE) AR AR it L tEH10,0007 RERET
Sup Aswin Limited Thailand Ordinary BAHT15,000,000 150,000 - 100 Property investment
#H i 15,000,000%5% EZE
Super Target (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 60 Restaurant and bar
Limited Fif i #1007 REERAR
S (i) AT
System Partner Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 1 100 - Investment holding
EBEWRRE i %% S
Tai Tung Industrial Equipment  Hong Kong Ordinary HK$30,000,000 30,000,000 - 87.5  Logistics services
Limited i iy 1#1#30,000,0007C i
KA LERMHRAR
Talent Luck Limited (note b) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$270,000,000 270,000,000 - 100 Property development and
HREEAR LA (D) Fit i 1#1270,000,0007C investment
Deferred HKS51 51 - 100 PUEHIERIEE
14 LRI
Union Pearl Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Property investment
Limited Fit il o ESHS
ARERARAA
Winfield Development Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 2 - 100 Property investment
HOT 8 A A it T W2 WERE
Xinyang Chevalier Hotel Mainland China Not applicable RMB55,000,000 Not applicable - 70 Hotel operation
Co., Ltd. (note &) B i Nl ARH55,000,0007 R BT
FREELAEEERAA
(ff3ta)
757040 Ontario Limited Canada Common CAD10 10 - 100 Property investment
IEIN i [LIEYNT S84
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49 Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 49 FEME 2w )
Notes: [t -
(a) Established in Mainland China as sino-foreign owned equity joint ventures. (@) DAAA A A ZE T v A ST
(b) All deferred shares are non-voting and practically have no rights to (b)  FIT A #E AE G 3 5 A S > T EC PR b R A
participate in any distribution upon winding up. TE2S B T MR AL ] SR
(c)  Established in Mainland China as wholly-foreign owned enterprises. (c)  LASIS B G A S50 v B A BT
(d) Preference shares are 10% non-cumulative and every four preference shares d) S AIERF10% @ 1 %A 7 2 B DU %
of this company carry one vote. Sl A — PR o
50 Principal Associates 50 EREE AW
Effective percentage
Place or country of issued share capital/
of incorporation registered capital
or registration/ Class of held by the Company
Name of associate operation shares held indirectly  Principal activities
A vl FEEA
J L sk N, S DT A B,
2l A E10ES JBe A3 J REM B ACHESS SRR
%o
CAAM Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 38.46 Investment holding
o AT g BB
Chevalier Engineering (S) Singapore Ordinary 49 Installation and maintenance
Pte. Ltd. B o of lifts and escalators
L P AR TH A S B AR
Chevalier (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49  Marketing, installation and
Fot: R AR A A i gl maintenance of lifts and
escalators
PURE - 226 T fRTE TRt %
EH
Chevalier Lifts Engineering Mainland China Not applicable 49 Installation and maintenance
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (5 A A3 of lifts and escalators
FA B p TR (YD) AR A A L S RE TR B IR M
Chevalier Singapore Holdings  Singapore Ordinary 49  Marketing, installation and
Pte. Ltd. I fLail maintenance of lifts and
LB R AT PR ) escalators
IHE 22 4% T R T e b
ER7RY
Elevator Parts Engineering Hong Kong Ordinary 49  Marketing, installation and
Company Limited B b3 maintenance of lifts and
TR TREAT B 7] escalators
IHE 22 4% T R T e b
ER7RY
K2 Printing Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 49  Property investments
T AEENBS AT B2 ) it g YB3y
Pacific Coffee (Holdings) British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary 20 Investment holding of Pacific
Limited WIBAET S Feiil Coffee Group
Pacific CoffeefE Bl 2 B & #E /K
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50 Principal Associates (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

50 FEBE

SR A B R I E

2 ] (44)

Place or country
of incorporation

Effective percentage
of issued share capital/
registered capital

or registration/ Class of held by the Company
Name of associate operation shares held indirectly  Principal activities
A B A
T BT 2 AT B AR 5%
kY B JBe A3y 28 GRULIES E-ae ¥
%
Shanghai Chevalier Lifts Mainland China Not applicable 49 Installation and maintenance
Engineering Co., Ltd. F I A AN of lifts and escalators
g H A LA R A T R ARFE TR B T TR
Toshiba Elevator (China) Mainland China Not applicable 20 Manufacturing, sales,
Co., Ltd. P [28] 7] 3 A3 installation, repair and
B (PR ABRA A maintenance of lifts and
escalators
Wik - G WA B R
PR T I TR R
Toshiba Elevator (Shenyang) Mainland China Not applicable 20  Manufacturing, sales,
Co., Ltd. R A A4 installation, repair and
FRZ M R) A BRA maintenance of lifts and
escalators
Wk B R HEE R
PRAE TH BB 7 o R
Yue Xiu Concrete Company Hong Kong Ordinary 25  Manufacturing and provision
Limited i W of concrete
55 YR B A BR A A R AR AR B
PO BB 1R B 5 A PR A Mainland China Not applicable 40  Trading of motor vehicles and
GHE b ANt provision of maintenance
services
TRELEE 5 R AR R s
AR RS e B P R L Mainland China Not applicable 21.33  Trading of motor vehicles and
R R ] R A AN provision of maintenance
services
TRELE 5 AR LR R B
Note:  The Group’s entitlement to share in the profit or loss in these associates is BFSE 7% S AT HE 25 2 LU A LT A B
in proportion to its ownership interest. BN 2w ke
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ARG TS TR M R

51 Principal Jointly Controlled Entities

51 T[54 3

Place or country
of incorporation

Effective
percentage of
issued share
capital/registered
share capital held

Name of jointly or registration/  Class of Form of business by the Company Principal
controlled entity operation shares held structure indirectly  activities
A w A
J S B R 2 DT A sk
I 5] 4% il £ 3 4 Hl 2 % I 5K JBe iy S50 [EES 3N R R ACRE S R
%
Lam Woo & Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Incorporated 50 Civil engineering
Wttt T 2 AT PR W) i gl Al o N
Lam Woo Construction Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Incorporated 50  Building
i it AR A PR A T il gl AL maintenance
T PR
Rosy Value Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Incorporated 50 Property
AT R T T gl Al development
LUE S
JU BB 3 5 s 7E B % Mainland China  Not applicable Domestic 44 Property
AHIRAF o 2 A i N enterprise development
N A LS9
AL E M E S RAMRA R Mainland China  Not applicable  Wholly-foreign 49  Property
wh B A AN owned enterprise development
B A2 ES 9
Note: The Group’s entitlement to share in the profit or loss in these jointly BEERE - AN T e OB A RE AR 2 EU B B LT A AL

controlled entities is in proportion to its ownership interest.

[F] 42 ol i 3 22 i P Rl 48
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